
REGULAR MEETING 
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AUGUST 1, 2022 - 7:00PM 
VILLAGE HALL - BOARD ROOM 

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals hears requests for zoning text amendments, rezoning, special uses, 
and variations and forwards recommendations to the Board of Trustees. The Commission also reviews all proposals 
to subdivide property and is charged with Village planning, including the updating of the Comprehensive Plan for 
Land Use. All Plan Commission actions are advisory and are submitted to the Board of Trustees for final action.  

 
I. ROLL CALL 
 
II. APPROVAL OF JULY 18, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC) AMENDED PETITION; Special Uses, 
PUD Amendment, Variations, and Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM JUNE 20, 2022] 
 
Requests to amend the Spectrum PUD Ordinance #A-834-24-15; special uses for an automobile 
gasoline sale station, with a convenience food store, with packaged liquor and tobacco sales, and for 
24-hour operation which exceeds the 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. permitted pursuant to section VIII.C 
of the Zoning Ordinance; special use for an outside sales display accessory to a special use pursuant 
to sections VIII.A and VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance; variations from sections 55.06.A.1, 
55.06.A.2, 55.06.A.4.a, and 55.06.A.4.b of the Sign Ordinance to permit ground and walls signs in 
excess of 100 sq. ft. of area measuring 155 sq. ft., to permit more than one wall sign per street frontage 
for a total of three, to permit a free-standing gasoline pricing sign, and to exceed the maximum sign 
face square footage for a gasoline pricing sign from 20 sq. ft. to 49.8 sq. ft. and 40 sq. ft. to 99.6 sq. 
ft.; conditional sign approval for a sign with six colors, exceeding the three colors permitted pursuant 
to Sign Ordinance section 55.06.B; and variations from Zoning Ordinance section XI.C.9.c.2 to 
permit an average foot candle light level of 4.39 exceeding the 1.0 permitted and a uniformity ratio 
of 4.39 to 1 exceeding the 4 to 1 permitted. 

 
B. Z-11-2022: Zoning Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text Amendment and 

Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM MAY 16, JUNE 6/20, and JULY 18, 2022] 
 

Request to consider text amendments to Section XIV.B of the Zoning Ordinance to create a definition 
for an attached garage.  

 
C. Z-13-2022/S-01-2022: Sign Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text Amendment 

and Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM MAY 16, JUNE 6/20, and JULY 18, 2022] 
 
Request to consider text amendments to Section 55.09.E of the Sign Ordinance to clarify regulations 
pertaining to right-of-way signs.  
 
 
 
 



August 1, 2022 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
D. Z-12-2022: Zoning Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text Amendment and 

Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM JUNE 6 and JULY 18, 2022] 
 
Request to consider text amendments to Section IV.K of the Zoning Ordinance to amend the 
definition for a commercial vehicle and regulations for commercial vehicles in residential districts. 

 
V. CORRESPONDENCE  
 

A. Board Reports 
July 25, 2022 
 

B. Building Reports 
June 2022 

 
VI. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
  
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
VIII. FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
August 8 Board of Trustees  
 
Commissioner Stratis volunteered to be the Plan Commissioner representative.  
 
August 15 Plan Commission  
 
A. Z-17-2022: Vacant/901 McClintock Dr./PIN 18-30-303-019-0000 (Cornersite, LLC); Rezoning, 

Special Use, Variation, Planned Unit Development, and Findings of Fact  
 

Requests to rezone the property from O-2/Office & Hotel to R-5/Single-Family Residential, a 
variation for minimum area for R-5 from 80 contiguous acres to 4.876 acres, and a variation to permit 
a planned unit development on less than 20 acres and less than 800 ft. of lot width all as per Zoning 
Ordinance section VI.H, to amend PUD Ordinance #A-834-27-08, and a special use for a planned 
unit development pursuant to section VI.H and XIII.L. 
 

B. Z-21-2022: 510 Village Center Dr. (Garcia/Coopers Hawk Winery & Restaurant); Special Use, 
PUD Amendment, and Findings of Fact 
 
Request to amend PUD Ordinance #A-834-10-05, special use Ordinances #A-834-10-16 and #A-
834-04-12, and a special use for outdoor dining pursuant to Zoning Ordinance section VIII.C.2 to 
install a new awning over an existing patio.  
 

C. Z-22-2022: 7600-7630 County Line Rd. (MedProperties LLC); Variation, Special Use 
Amendment, and Findings of Fact  
 
Request to amend Ordinance #A-834-02-17 for a special use for final plat approval and a medical 
office in the T-1 Transitional District and a variation from Zoning Ordinance section XI.C.8 to permit 



August 1, 2022 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
parking in the front yard. The petitioner is requesting to reconfigure the existing parking lot and add 
additional spaces.    

 
August 22 Board of Trustees  
 
Commissioner Stratis is the scheduled representative.  
 
September 5 Plan Commission – CANCELLED due to holiday 
 
September 12 Board of Trustees 
 
Volunteer needed.   
 
September 19 Plan Commission 
 
No cases currently scheduled. Newspaper publication deadline is August 29.  
 
September 26 Board of Trustees 
 
Chairman Trzupek is the scheduled representative.  
 

IX.  ADJOURNMENT 



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  
MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 18, 2022 

 
I.  ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Burr Ridge Village Hall Board Room, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois by 
Chairman Trzupek.  
 
ROLL CALL was noted as follows:   
 
PRESENT: 5 – Petrich, Broline, Morton, Stratis, and Trzupek 
ABSENT: 2 – Parrella and McCollian 
 
Commissioner Irwin arrived at 7:02 p.m.  
 
Trustee Guy Franzese and Community Development Director Janine Farrell were also present.  
 
 
II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES – JUNE 20, 2022 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Morton and SECONDED by Commissioner Broline to 
approve the minutes of the June 20, 2022 Plan Commission meeting. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  3 – Morton, Broline, and Petrich  
NAYS: 0 
ABSTAIN:  2 – Stratis and Trzupek 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 3-0 with 2 abstentions.   
 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Chairman Trzupek conducted the swearing in of all those wishing to speak during the public 
hearings on the agenda for the meeting. Chairman Trzupek noted that the agenda was very full 
and that the last three items, F, G, and H, would likely be continued to the following meeting.  
 
A. Z-18-2022: 6880 North Frontage Rd. (Premier IL Burr Ridge, LLC); Special Use and 

Findings of Fact  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Director Farrell stated that the petitioner, 
Tom Allor of Premier IL Burr Ridge LLC, is in the process of taking over Grand Avenue 
Preschool and Day Care which has an existing special use. The petitioner will operate the same 
business as Grand Avenue, utilizing the same space, enrolling the same number of children, 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

2 
 

having the same employees, the same parking area, the same fenced play area, and the same pick-
up/drop-off schedule. Grand Avenue was approved for a child care center in this location in 2020. 
Conditions #1 and #3 of that approved Ordinance stipulate that the special use was limited to 
Nancy Hayes and her business partners operating Grand Avenue. The petitioner, as the new tenant 
and owner of the business, must obtain a new special use for the child care center. Staff is 
recommending that the same conditions be applied to this request with the exception of condition 
#5 which was satisfied.  

 
Chairman Trzupek confirmed that special uses are conditioned for that particular business at that 
time, that there are no changes in operation, and that no complaints have been received about the 
business. Chairman Trzupek asked if the petitioner was present. The petitioner, Dave P. from 
Premier, stated that everything was accurate and had nothing to add.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment. There was none. Chairman Trzupek asked for 
Commissioner discussion.   
 
Commissioner Morton had no questions since it was essentially the same business and believes it 
is an asset to the community.  
 
Commissioners Stratis and Broline had no comments or questions.  
 
Commissioner Petrich asked about condition #5 and confirmed that the petitioner will still be 
required to follow the parking plan.  
 
Commissioner Irwin and Chairman Trzupek did not have any questions or comments.  

 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
close the public hearing for Z-18-2022. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Irwin, Petrich, Broline, Stratis, Morton, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Stratis to 
recommend approval of Z-18-2022, a special use for a child care center pursuant to Zoning 
Ordinance section X.E.2 and Ordinance #A-834-02-20, with Findings of Fact, and subject to the 
following conditions:  

1. The special use shall be limited to Premier IL Burr Ridge LLC in a manner consistent with 
the submitted business plan included as Exhibit A.  

2. The special use shall be limited to the 5,000 square feet of floor area shown within the 
business plan at 6880 North Frontage Road included as Exhibit A.  

3. The special use shall be limited to Tom Allor and his business partners and shall expire at 
such time that Mr. Allor and his business partners no longer occupy the space at 6880 North 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

3 
 

Frontage Road or at which time there is an assignment or termination of the lease for the 
space at 6880 North Frontage Road.  

4. The capacity of the special use shall be limited to 80 children on the premises.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Irwin, Stratis, Broline, Morton, Petrich, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 

 
B. Z-19-2022: 595 Village Center Drive (Kastanis/Yolk); Special Use and Findings of Fact 

 
Chairman Trzupek introduced the case and asked for a summary. Director Farrell stated that the 
petitioner is Yolk, which is operating an existing restaurant in the Village Center and requesting 
to have outdoor dining. Outdoor dining in this building requires a special use permit. The outdoor 
dining area will be located along Lifetime Drive and to the side of the main entrance. An in-depth 
analysis of the outdoor dining plan was provided in the packet, but in all respects, it complies 
with Zoning Ordinance regulations. Staff recommends seven conditions, including prohibiting 
platted, sit-down meals from being served at the coffee bar walk-up counter.      
 
Chairman Trzupek clarified with staff that this building and location was not part of the 
entertainment district and therefore a special use was required for the outdoor dining. Chairman 
Trzupek asked if the petitioner was present and wished to add anything. The petitioner, Peter 
Chabot, the Regional Manager for Yolk’s Chicagoland locations, stated that added pavement will 
provide safe passage of pedestrians, there would be 42 seats, and no alcohol will be served. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comments. There was none. Chairman Trzupek asked for 
Commissioner discussion.   
 
Commissioner Irwin had no comments or questions.  
 
Commissioner Petrich confirmed that the umbrellas are weighted, and floor supported. The 
petitioner confirmed four total umbrellas. Commissioner Petrich asked about off-season storage 
of furniture. The petitioner stated that all furniture would be stored off-site.  
 
Commissioner Broline asked about live entertainment and music within the outdoor dining area. 
Chairman Trzupek confirmed that the draft language for live entertainment states that it cannot 
be outside. The petitioner stated that music volume can be adjusted for the outdoor area.  
 
Commissioner Stratis confirmed with the petitioner that the fence would be permanent and that 
no advertising would be on the umbrellas.  
 
Commissioner Morton commented on the new pavement area and believed that 2% is the 
permitted cross-slope in IDOT accessibility guidelines. The petitioner stated that he can review 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

4 
 

and follow-up regarding ADA accessibility guidelines. Commissioner Morton requested a 
condition be added about grading and cross-slope compliance.          
 
Chairman Trzupek agreed with Commissioner Morton’s comments and stated that the 
information about the new pavement area was not clear on the plans.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Petrich and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
close the public hearing for Z-19-2022. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Petrich, Irwin, Broline, Morton, Stratis, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Petrich and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
recommend approval of Z-19-2022, a special use for outdoor dining at a permitted restaurant 
pursuant to Ordinance #A-834-10-05 and Zoning Ordinance sections VIII.A and VIII.C, with 
Findings of Fact, and subject to the following conditions:  

1. The special use for a restaurant with outdoor seating shall be limited to Gianluca Pesce, 
Taki Kastanis, and their business partners of Yolk Restaurant and shall not be transferable 
to any other party.  

2. The special use shall substantially comply with the submitted site plan.  
3. Music and all other amplified sound originating from the restaurant should be kept to a 

level so as not to be audible from residential units.  
4. Tables shall be cleaned promptly following use. 
5. Furniture and umbrellas shall be weighted to prevent their movement in the wind. 
6. Outdoor food preparation, storage, or display is prohibited.  
7. Plated food for sit-down service shall not be served at the outdoor walk-up coffee 

bar/counter. 
8. All grades and cross-slopes shall be in compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) requirements.   
  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Petrich, Irwin, Broline, Morton, Stratis, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 

 
 
 
 
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

5 
 

C. Z-20-2022: 11731 87th Street (McNaughton Development LLC); Re-zoning and Findings 
of Fact  

 
Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Director Farrell stated that the petitioner, 
McNaughton Development LLC, seeks to rezone the property located at 11731 87th Street from 
the R-1 zoning district to the R-3 zoning district. The petitioner’s future intent is to develop the 
site for a 20-lot subdivision. The subdivision is not part of tonight’s request, but a conceptual site 
plan was provided. The property is adjacent to the Highland Fields Subdivision which is zoned 
R-3 to the north and R-2A to the west. For the first Findings of Fact, uses within the general area, 
the petitioner’s request for single-family residential is in compliance. For the second Findings of 
Fact, the zoning designations in the area, there is R-3, R-2A, unincorporated Cook County R-1 to 
the east, and Village of Willow Springs SR-1 to the south. For the third Findings of Fact, the 
suitability of the property for uses permitted under the zoning district designation, the property is 
currently developed for single-family residential and the 15-acre site could support more than one 
home since there are utilities in the area. For the fourth Findings of Fact, the trend of development 
in the area, staff compared 2002 to 2022 aerial imagery illustrating the development of the 
Highland Fields Subdivision. The trend in development since the property was placed into its 
current designation in 2005 has been towards residential subdivision developments. For the fifth 
Findings of Fact, compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, while the petitioner’s request for 
single-family residential complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s future land use map, the goals 
and objectives #1.1 states, “maintain and encourage low density residential developments with a 
variety of lot sizes. Lot sizes are encouraged to be 30,000 square feet or larger.” The R-3 zoning 
district minimum lot size is 20,000 sq. ft., R-2B is 30,000 sq. ft., and the adjacent R-2A is 40,000 
sq. ft.   
 
John Barry of McNaughton Development LLC stated that the properties in the area are single-
family residential primarily within Burr Ridge and reiterated the surrounding zoning districts. The 
R-1 zoning is the default zoning when the property was annexed and is obsolete and impractical 
due to the cost to extend utilities and current development trends. This is evidenced by the final 
phase of Highland Fields to the west, platted in 2016, where only one lot has been sold and there 
are still three vacant lots on Heritage Dr. from the first phase. The big home on the big lot as a 
status symbol is now out and too expensive to build, maintain, and not a lifestyle someone wants. 
For the trend of development in southwest Burr Ridge, 834 acres total, there are five zoning 
districts: 90 acres of R-1, 244 acres of R-2, 34 acres of R-2B, 332 acres of R-3, 131 of R-4 which 
is an old zoning district; 55% is R-3. This will be a high-quality, low-density subdivision which 
will be a complement to the area and meet today’s needs.  
 
Chairman Trzupek confirmed that the re-zoning is the only request on the agenda for tonight and 
that the concept plan is helpful, but not under consideration and can change.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment.  
 
Mark Thoma, 7515 Drew, stated that 87th Street is the dividing line between R-3 and R-2 
properties. R-2A zoning is not obsolete and new homes are being built on R-2A properties in his 
neighborhood.  
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

6 
 

Frank Hojjat, Highland Fields HOA Board member, stated that everyone is against the proposal. 
Mr. Hojjat lives adjacent and is zoned R-2A. Mr. Hojjat stated that his home value will go down 
if the development is built. Mr. Hojjat stated that 87th Street is congested, and the street should be 
widened.  
 
Mak Maheronnaghs, president of the HOA, stated that there are issues with 87th Street congestion 
and this increase in density will make the problems worse.  
 
Beatrice Mologousis, HOA Board member, stated that the properties on Oak Knoll also use 87th 
Street. Ms. Mologousis stated that building smaller homes would affect the property values of the 
larger homes that are to the south of 87th Street. Ms. Mologousis stated that R-3 is to the north of 
87th Street and with the 40% of R-3 in the area, no more is needed. 
 
Kristina Bryndal, 8501 Oak Knoll, stated that all homes beyond the gate on Oak Knoll are on 5 
acres and are larger homes. Ms. Bryndal welcomes new development, but it should keep within 
the same sizes of the lots that are already there and the same value of the homes that are there.  
 
John Moskal, 8721 Stark Dr., owns multiple properties along Stark Dr. Mr. Moskal is concerned 
about the stormwater in the area and that the water run-off from the proposed development would 
wash onto his property. With the increase in density, water that normally filters into the ground 
would no longer be able to. The Comprehensive Plan calls for consideration about stormwater. 
Chairman Trzupek stated that stormwater is not under consideration tonight, but any 
development’s detention must account for the stormwater and the property cannot release more 
water than it does today.  
 
Ben Shipper, 8800 County Line Road, stated that people are generally in favor of development 
but that it needs to keep within the existing level of density and the existing zoning. The traffic 
will be increased on 87th Street with this proposal.   
 
John Barry stated that the homes will be $1.2M to $1.5M and not a detriment to surrounding 
property values.  
 
There was no additional public comment.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for Commissioner discussion.   
 
Commissioner Morton confirmed with Chairman Trzupek that only R-3 was being requested and 
the request could not be changed. Commissioner Morton did not support 20,000 sq. ft. lots and 
would support R-2B over R-3.  
 
Commissioner Stratis stated that engineers will review the stormwater numbers as part of the 
development. Commissioner Stratis did not agree with the property value or marketability 
comments made by the developer. Commissioner Stratis supported R-2A for the property. The 
community’s stated goal is for larger size lots especially over 30,000 sq. ft. and smaller lots are 
available in other communities. Commissioner Stratis asked about a boundary agreement with 
Willow Springs for the properties along Stark Dr. Director Farrell stated that she does not believe 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

7 
 

there is a current boundary agreement for that area. Commissioner Stratis confirmed that the 
properties on Oak Knoll are zoned R-2A with one R-1 property on 87th Street. Commissioner 
Stratis did not support R-3.      
 
Commissioner Broline stated that since 1998 the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees have 
discussed the area and mentioned R-2B which permits 30,000 sq. ft. lots.  
 
Commissioner Petrich does not support R-3 for the property due to the surrounding zoning and 
lot sizes in Burr Ridge, Willow Springs, and unincorporated Cook County.  
 
Commissioner Irwin agreed with previous comments. Commissioner Irwin noted the petitioner’s 
numbers that stated 56% of the area is R-3 or R-4 and more dense than Comprehensive Plan 
suggests. Commissioner Irwin believes that this trend should not be continued. Burr Ridge has 
seen larger homes built on larger lots recently. There is a lot of traffic at the intersection of 87th 
Street and County Line Rd. and a traffic light may be needed with an increase in density. The 
Comprehensive Plan also calls for the preservation of trees and green space. The concept plan 
shows all the trees being removed which is inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
Commissioner Irwin does not recommend R-3.  
 
Chairman Trzupek cannot comment on marketability and if the Comprehensive Plan is out of date 
in terms of market trends, but R-3 is not consistent with the area. Chairman Trzupek could see R-
2B as a transition. R-3 is to the north, but south of 87th Street has larger lots.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
close the public hearing for Z-20-2022. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Stratis, Irwin, Morton, Broline, Petrich, and Trzupek    
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Morton to 
recommend denial of Z-20-2022, a request to re-zone the property as per Section VI.F of the 
Zoning Ordinance from the R-1 Single-Family Residence District to the R-3 Single-Family 
Residence District, with Findings of Fact as prepared by staff.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Stratis, Morton, Broline, Petrich, Irwin, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0.  

 
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

8 
 

D. V-03-2022: 10S675 Glenn Dr. (Rohan); Variation and Findings of Fact [CONTINUED 
FROM JUNE 20, 2022] 

 
Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Director Farrell stated that the case was 
continued from June 20 since only four Zoning Board of Appeals members were present and four 
affirmative votes were required to approve the request. The request was amended from 5 ft. to 10 
ft. for the setback. The petitioner is requesting to permit a detached garage within the corner side 
yard area and within the corner side yard setback. The proposed garage would be located 10 ft. from 
the 94th Street property line.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked if the petitioner was present. Judith Rohan, property owner, stated that 
a second garage must be built and for a variety of reasons it cannot be located in the rear yard. 
Ms. Rohan must have access to a detached garage and if it is located in the rear yard, she would 
not have access to it due to the slope. A location in the side yard would permit easy access. Ms. 
Rohan read from an article about the Fair Housing Act (FHA) 1988 amendment, “while the Act 
prohibits intentional discrimination, it also prohibits other forms of discrimination in zoning 
including zoning laws which although neutral on their face have a disparate impact on persons 
with disabilities. And it also prohibits the failure of municipal officials to reasonably 
accommodate the needs of persons with disabilities.” Ms. Rohan stated that her request is 
reasonable, no neighbors have objected, and asks that it be accommodated.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment. There was none. Chairman Trzupek asked for 
Commissioner discussion.   
 
Commissioner Morton stated that he is unsure how to interpret the FHA. Commissioner Morton 
reiterated his comment made at the prior meeting asking why the existing garage cannot be used. 
Ms. Rohan said that the accessible van will be in the existing garage but the items in the existing 
garage will need to be moved. Commissioner Morton did not support violating the integrity of 
the Zoning Ordinance and permitting the garage outside the buildable area. Commissioner Morton 
understood there are grading challenges but believes they can be overcome. There have been 
improvements made to the home, but he does not believe that those rise to the level of a hardship. 
Ms. Rohan stated that when the improvements were made, she did not need the accessible van.  
 
Chairman Trzupek stated that a variation requires a hardship and that the petitioner is requesting 
an accommodation under ADA. Chairman Trzupek asked if there is latitude to accommodate a 
hardship using ADA. Director Farrell stated that would require a legal opinion. Ms. Rohan stated 
that the hardship is her inability to access the building if it is within the area the Zoning Ordinance 
allows.  
 
Commissioner Stratis does not have issue with what is looking to be done but cannot approve the 
request without a hardship. Commissioner Stratis stated that the property was purchased with the 
steep slope. Ms. Rohan stated that she was not disabled when the property was purchased. 
Commissioner Stratis asked if any other neighbors commented on the request, specifically the 
neighbor to the south. Director Farrell spoke with a neighbor who expressed concern about the 
request, but no official comments were received. Commissioner Stratis clarified where the 
proposed garage would be located in relation to the hammerhead turnaround.  



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

9 
 

Commissioner Broline did not have anything additional to add.   
 
Commissioner Petrich agreed with the comments made.  
 
Commissioner Irwin needed more evidence that there is no way to comply with the Zoning 
Ordinance regulations. Commissioner Irwin stated that impacting the deck is not a hardship. Ms. 
Rohan stated that a builder denied doing anything in the rear slope area and building on the other 
side of the house would make it difficult to access. The accessible van will not always be used, 
and an additional vehicle needs to be housed in a separate garage with close access. Commissioner 
Irwin asked about expanding the existing attached garage. Ms. Rohan stated that a bathroom and 
closets would be lost if the garage was extended. Commissioner Irwin requested a floorplan to 
see how the attached garage expansion would impact the interior of the home. Chairman Trzupek 
and the petitioner discussed the interior floorplan and how the expansion of the garage would 
impact it.  
 
Commissioner Stratis asked about expanding the attached garage to the south. Director Farrell 
confirmed that any expansion to the south would require a variation since it would be within the 
setback.  
 
Chairman Trzupek discussed alteration of the interior of the home to accommodate the expansion 
of the attached garage. Chairman Trzupek did not find a hardship based upon the land and has not 
seen a hardship based upon ADA accommodations. Chairman Trzupek requested the Village 
Attorney’s position on it.   
 
There was discussion about whether to proceed to a vote or table the request. The Commission 
agreed to vote and have the case proceed to the Board of Trustees. The Commission stated that 
they are a recommending body and the Village Attorney will be consulted for an opinion prior to 
the Board meeting.  
 
Commissioner Petrich asked about the vinyl sided garage and brick house and if there were 
regulations in place which required the structures to match. Director Farrell confirmed that there 
was not a requirement. Commissioner Petrich requested that the size discrepancy between the site 
plan and the text be clarified. Chairman Trzupek stated that it was not necessary.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
close the public hearing for V-03-2022.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Stratis, Petrich, Broline, Morton, Irwin, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0.  
 
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

10 
 

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Stratis to 
recommend denial of V-03-2022, a request for variations to permit a detached accessory building 
(garage) within the corner side yard area and within the corner side yard setback, from 30 ft. to 
10 ft., pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Sections IV.I.1, VI.F.7.a, IV.H.4, and IV.H.7, with Findings 
of Fact as prepared by staff. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Irwin, Stratis, Petrich, Broline, Morton, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0.  
 
E. Z-08-2022: Zoning Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text Amendment 

and Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM APRIL 18 & JUNE 6, 2022] 
 

Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Director Farrell stated that this is the third 
iteration before the Commission. The most recent Commission requests included to modify the 
definition. The first sentence of the draft definition has been removed and the remainder modified 
as presented. The Board’s direction was that live entertainment should be permitted as accessory 
to the restaurant use which is how the language has been drafted. The wine boutique language 
was clarified and shortened. For the overall regulations for live entertainment, they are the same 
as proposed in June, but the area dedicated to live entertainment has been reduced to 10% based 
upon what had been discussed in June.  
 
Chairman Trzupek was supportive of the language and having live entertainment as an accessory 
use, but is concerned about the definition of a restaurant. Director Farrell read the definition for 
a restaurant, “an establishment that serves unpackaged food and beverages in individual servings, 
or in nondisposable containers to customers who consume these foods while seated within the 
building.” Chairman Trzupek wanted to prohibit a primarily live entertainment venue because it 
could impact traffic. Chairman Trzupek would like to see primarily a sit-down restaurant with 
live entertainment, not a music venue that has food.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment.  
 
Nick Esposito, representative for Are We Live, stated that Are We Live serves small plates and 
wanted to confirm it is a restaurant. Chairman Trzupek stated that there is a loose definition of a 
restaurant and would like this to be reviewed. Mr. Esposito asked for clarification if someone is 
broadcasting a sporting event. Director Farrell clarified that playing a sports broadcast on TV is 
not considered live entertainment and would be permitted. Mr. Esposito commented that the DJ 
at Are We Live plugs into the system and may have another speaker or two. Chairman Trzupek 
stated that Mr. Esposito may question if a DJ playing through the speakers is live entertainment, 
but the Commission states that it is through the draft language.      
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for Commissioner discussion.   
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

11 
 

Commissioner Irwin clarified the Board’s direction. Chairman Trzupek stated the Board would 
prefer live entertainment to be an accessory use, but it is the Commission’s call and is still open 
to the Commission’s recommendation. Chairman Trzupek personally would prefer to have a good 
definition and allow it as an accessory use. Commissioner Irwin supports keeping live 
entertainment as a special use and supports the definition.  
 
Commissioner Petrich supports the definition. Commissioner Petrich stated that all other 
municipalities besides LaGrange require a special use and supports keeping live entertainment as 
a special use in line with other towns. Chairman Trzupek stated that he does not know how other 
towns define live entertainment.  
 
Commissioner Morton asked for the Chairman to restate a previous comment. Chairman Trzupek 
stated that with a tight definition of live entertainment, he would support it as an accessory use. 
If there was no definition, then it should be a special use.  
 
Commissioner Broline stated that at the last meeting, he wanted to keep live entertainment as a 
special use to have more control but has changed his position. Commissioner Broline stated that 
permitting it as accessory allows for confidence in expectations and if someone exceeds the 
regulations then they could make a request through the Plan Commission.  
 
Commissioner Stratis supports the final language and had suggested the 10% provision which is 
appropriate. Commissioner Stratis stated that if someone wants more, they can request it through 
the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Morton asked if live entertainment should end before closing hours. 
Commissioner Morton questioned if “lewd” and “overtly sexual” should be subject to definitions 
themselves or if that is overkill. Commissioner Morton supported live entertainment as an 
accessory use with the smaller square footage of floor space. Director Farrell stated that there 
could potentially be a definition but not having a definition allows for the staff interpretation of 
what someone is proposing. If a determination is made and if the petitioner disagrees, that appeal 
could be brought forward to the Commission. There is language regarding adult type uses which 
could help guide the definition. Closing hours could be up to the Commission for discussion.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked if “similar activity” would apply to that same staff interpretation 
process. Director Farrell stated that it would and it allows for similar uses which may not be 
expressly listed.   
 
Commissioner Irwin noted that the definition of “overtly” implies secretive acts and recommends 
striking that language. Commissioners Stratis and Morton agreed to remove “overtly” from the 
definition.  
 
Commissioner Petrich suggested 50 sq. ft. for the floor space dedicated to the live entertainment 
area. Other Commissioners felt that was very restrictive. There was discussion about limiting the 
floor space and if that was to eliminate dancing as an option. Commissioner Irwin and Director 
Farrell confirmed that current Zoning Ordinance regulations separate live entertainment from 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

12 
 

dancing. The Commissioners agreed that a 10 ft. x 10 ft. area or 100 sq. ft. would be more 
appropriate for a live entertainment area.  
 
Mark Thoma, 7515 Drew, asked for clarification on the 10% limitation. Director Farrell and 
Commissioner Irwin confirmed that it is the percent of the floor space dedicated to patrons, not 
the entire space.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Stratis to 
close the public hearing for Z-08-2022.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Stratis, Irwin, Petrich, Broline, Morton, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0.  
 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Stratis to 
recommend approval of Z-08-2022 with Findings of Fact, a request to consider text amendments 
to Sections VIII.A, VIII.B, VIII.C, and XIV.B of the Zoning Ordinance to define "live 
entertainment" and permit "live entertainment" as accessory to certain uses in the Business 
Districts. The Commissioners agreed to strike “overtly” from the language and add “10% or 100 
sq. ft., whichever is less” to the language.    
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES: 6 – Irwin, Stratis, Petrich, Broline, Morton, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0.  
 
F. Z-11-2022: Zoning Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text Amendment 

and Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM MAY 16 & JUNE 6/20, 2022] 
G. Z-13-2022/S-01-2022: Sign Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text 

Amendment and Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM MAY 16 & JUNE 6/20, 2022] 
H. Z-12-2022: Zoning Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text Amendment 

and Findings of Fact [CONTINUED FROM JUNE 6, 2022] 
 

Chairman Trzupek asked if the Plan Commissioners agreed to continue the three cases until 
August 1, 2022.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
continue the public hearings for Z-11-2022, Z-13-2022, and Z-12-2022 until August 1, 2022.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

13 
 

 
AYES: 6 – Irwin, Petrich, Stratis, Broline, Morton, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0.  
 

 
 

V. CORRESPONDENCE  
  
 There were no comments on the Board or Building reports.  
  
 
VI. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 There were no other considerations.  
  
 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 There were no other public comments.  
 
 
VIII. FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
Commissioner Broline is the scheduled representative for the July 25 Board of Trustees 
meeting.  
 
Director Farrell briefly mentioned the upcoming cases scheduled for August 1, 2022 
which included the continuation of Z-11-2022, Z-13-2022/S-01-2022, and Z-12-2022 
from this agenda and the continuation of Z-10-2022. Director Farrell did not have an 
update on Thorntons.  
 
Commissioner Stratis offered to be the Plan Commissioner representative for the August 
8 Board of Trustees meeting.   
 
Director Farrell briefly mentioned the upcoming cases scheduled for August 15, 2022 
which included the continuation of Z-17-2022 and a new petition for revised outdoor 
dining at Coopers Hawk.  
 
Commissioner Irwin stated that he will be out of town for the August 15th meeting but 
could participate by Zoom if necessary.  
 
 
 
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
July 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

14 
 

IX.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Morton and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:54 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  6 –Morton, Irwin, Broline, Petrich, Stratis, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted:  

  

 Janine Farrell, AICP 
Community Development Director 

 

 



 
Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC); Requests Special Uses, PUD Amendment, 
Variations, and Findings of Fact (see page 2 of report for full descriptions of requests)  
 

HEARINGS: 
May 2, June 20, and August 1, 
2022 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Janine Farrell, AICP 
Community Development Director 
 
PETITIONER: 
Ryan Swanson of Arc Design on 
behalf of Thorntons LLC 
 
PETITIONER STATUS: 
Civil Engineering Consultant  
 
PROPERTY OWNER: 
Burr Ridge CRE LLC 
 
EXISTING ZONING: 
B-2 PUD Business District 
 
LAND USE PLAN: 
Recommends Single-family 
residential 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
Unimproved/vacant 
 
SITE AREA: 
± 1.8 Acres  
 
SUBDIVISION: 
Spectrum Burr Ridge 
Resubdivision 

  

  

 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC); Special Uses, PUD Amendment, 
Variations, and Findings of Fact 
Page 2 of 6 

 
Z-10-2022 Requests as amended May 19, 2022:  

1. Amend the Spectrum PUD Ordinance #A-834-24-15 to permit the proposed gas station 
development.  

2. Special use for an automobile gasoline sale station, with a convenience food store, 
packaged liquor, and tobacco sales (Section VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance) 

3. Special use for hours of operation exceeding 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m., permitting 5:00 a.m. 
to 11:00 p.m. 24-hour operation (Section VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance) AMENDED 
REQUEST 

4. Special use for an outside sales display accessory to a special use (Sections VIII.A and 
VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance)  

5. Variations to permit ground and walls signs in excess of 100 sq. ft. of area measuring 155 
sq. ft. (Sections 55.06.A.1 and 55.06.A.2 of the Sign Ordinance) 

6. Variation to permit more than one wall sign per street frontage for a total of three (Section 
55.06.A.2 of the Sign Ordinance) 

7. Variation to permit a free-standing gasoline pricing sign (Section 55.06.A.4.a of the Sign 
Ordinance) 

8. Variation to exceed the maximum sign face square footage for a gasoline pricing sign from 
20 sq. ft. to 49.8 sq. ft. and 40 sq. ft. to 99.6 sq. ft. (Section 55.06.A.4.b of the Sign 
Ordinance) 

9. Conditional sign approval for a sign with six colors, exceeding the three colors permitted 
(Section 55.06.B.5 of the Sign Ordinance)  

10. Variations to permit an average foot candle light level of 4.39 exceeding the 1.0 permitted 
and a uniformity ratio of 4.39 to 1 exceeding the 4 to 1 permitted (Section XI.C.9.c.2 of 
the Zoning Ordinance)  

 
The Petitioner is Ryan Swanson of Arc Design Resources, Inc., on behalf of Thorntons LLC. This 
petition was originally heard at the May 2, 2022 Plan Commission meeting. At the meeting, the 
Commission unanimously recommended approval with ten conditions. Prior to the Village Board 
meeting on May 23, 2022 however, the petitioner amended the request. The Village Board 
remanded the request back to the Plan Commission on May 23, 2022 since the amended request 
required re-notification and a new public hearing. At the June 20, 2022 Plan Commission meeting, 
the case was continued pending the petitioner working with neighboring Burr Ridge Senior Living, 
also called Spectrum. Spectrum had submitted an objection to the 24-hour operation request 
(included as an attachment). The petitioner was going to work with Spectrum to provide additional 
landscape screening along the eastern property line to block lights and create a buffer. On July 27, 
2022, Erica Howard, General Counsel Corporate Real Estate for S-K Burr Ridge Residential LLC, 
provided a letter of no objection. In this letter (included as an attachment), GAIN properties 
(owner) as the petitioner and Spectrum agreed to a landscape plan and related agreements.      
Thorntons is proposing to develop the vacant site with a gas station and convenience store. The 
4,400 sq. ft. convenience store will have packaged liquor and tobacco sales. There will not be any 
drive-through restaurant or establishment as part of the convenience store. Outside of the 
convenience store is small outdoor display area for items like firewood or propane, commonly 
found at gas stations. This outdoor display area requires special use approval and is illustrated on 
the plans provided. Ten fuel pumps (20 fueling stations) are proposed which will service personal 
vehicles. There will not be any pumps dedicated to or accommodating semi-truck traffic. The 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC); Special Uses, PUD Amendment, 
Variations, and Findings of Fact 
Page 3 of 6 

 
petitioner is requesting 24-hour operation which is beyond the 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. permitted. 
Previously, hours of operation from 5:00a.m. to 11:00p.m. were requested and approved. In a letter 
dated May 19, 2022, the petitioner amended the request for 24-hour operation.  
Within a roughly 2.5-mile length of Route 83 running south of the I-55 interchange to the Des 
Plaines River, there are three gas stations and two more proposed (which includes Thorntons). 
These two proposed gas stations are located directly across the street from one another but are 
within different jurisdictions (Village of Burr Ridge and DuPage County). Of the three existing 
gas stations, only one is within the Village of Burr Ridge. The Shell located at 16W601 Frontage 
Rd. was approved for 24-hour operation in 1986. That approval was not through a special use 
request or other type of zoning action, but a letter without a formal Board vote. The owner at the 
time, Gas City, submitted a letter to the Board requesting the 24-hour operation which had also 
been requested the previous year. The minutes of that November 10, 1986 meeting state, “after 
discussion, a consensus of the Board indicated no objection to a 24-hour operation for the sale of 
all but alcoholic beverages which may be sold only during the hours provided for under their 
Liquor License.” For reference, Shell has a Class G liquor license which permits sales of beer and 
wine only 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Monday-Saturday and 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on Sundays. 
According to public testimony provided at the May 2, 2022 Plan Commission meeting, the 
petitioner intends to sell packaged beer, wine, and spirits which will likely fall under the Class F 
liquor license, subject to review by the Village Attorney and Liquor Commissioner. Those hours 
are the same as a Class G.  



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC); Special Uses, PUD Amendment, 
Variations, and Findings of Fact 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
Gas stations along Route 83, south from I-55 interchange to the Des Plaines River. Red boxes are unincorporated 

businesses and yellow boxes are businesses within Village of Burr Ridge.  

 
The petitioner is requesting several variations from the Sign Ordinance and conditional sign 
approval in order to install one ground sign, two wall signs on the convenience store, and one sign 
on the fuel canopy. Sign Plans are included in Exhibit A. The petitioner outlined the sign variation 
requests as part of the narrative also included in Exhibit A. 4. On May 2, 2022, the Plan 
Commission added a condition that the Thorntons sign on the rear (east) elevation be eliminated. 
This condition has been included in the Recommendation section below.  
The petitioner included a Photometric Plan (Exhibit A) and is requesting a variation from the 
average foot candle light level amount and the uniformity ratio. The petitioner outlined the 
variation requests as part of the narrative also included in Exhibit A. The increased lighting is 
primarily due to the fact that this is a gas station with fueling pumps, requiring increased lighting 
in the evening. The highest footcandle amount along the southern property line, which is nearest 
to single-family residential uses, is only 0.1. The highest footcandle amount along the Route 83 
property line is 1.0. The highest footcandle amount along the eastern property line, which is nearest 
to the senior living complex, is 1.5. The highest footcandle amount along the shared property line 
with McDonald’s is 2.7.  

Shell 
16W601 Frontage Rd. 

24-hours 
(Through a letter to 
the Board 11/10/86) 

 

Speedway 
9059 Kingery Hwy  

24-hours 

Thorntons  
9115 Kingery Hwy 

24-hours 
(proposed) 

Gas station/car wash/drive-
through/convenience store  

Hours of operation unknown 
(approved, no permits submitted) 

Clark 
11S370 Kingery Hwy 

6:00am-10:00pm 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC); Special Uses, PUD Amendment, 
Variations, and Findings of Fact 
Page 5 of 6 

 
The business plan (except for the hours of operation), submittals, plans, and other information as 
presented on May 2, 2022 remain unchanged and are included as Exhibit A. The minutes of the 
May 2 and June 20, 2022 meetings have also been provided.  
 
Public Hearing History 
Z-12-2015 (Spectrum PUD): Special use approval for a PUD. Condition B of the approved 
Ordinance (A-834-24-15) states that “the future preliminary and final plans for the commercial 
development on Lot 2 under this planned unit development shall be submitted to the Plan 
Commission for its review and recommendations, and then to the Board of Trustees for approval, 
all as required by Section XIII.L of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance.” At the time, Lot 2 included 
both the subject parcel and the parcel now occupied by McDonald’s.  
Z-10-2022 (Thorntons): May 2, 2022 Plan Commission review and approval of the proposal, now 
detailed in this report as amended. The minutes of the May 2, 2022 meeting have also been 
provided as Exhibit E.  
 
Public Comment 
Since the May 2, 2022 meeting, three new objections were received from the public and are 
included as Exhibit D.  
 
Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided findings of fact, which the Plan Commission may adopt if in agreement 
with those findings. Should the Plan Commission recommend approval of the amended request, 
staff has updated the May 2, 2022 recommendation as follows:  
Recommend to the Village Board approval of amending the Spectrum PUD Ordinance #A-834-
24-15; special uses for an automobile gasoline sale station, with a convenience food store, with 
packaged liquor and tobacco sales, and with 24-hour operation exceeding 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 
pursuant to section VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance; special use for an outside sales display 
accessory to a special use pursuant to sections VIII.A and VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance; 
variations from sections 55.06.A.1, 55.06.A.2, 55.06.A.4.a, and 55.06.A.4.b of the Sign Ordinance 
to permit ground and walls signs in excess of 100 sq. ft. of area measuring 155 sq. ft., to permit 
more than one wall sign per street frontage for a total of three, to permit a free-standing gasoline 
pricing sign, and to exceed the maximum sign face square footage for a gasoline pricing sign from 
20 sq. ft. to 49.8 sq. ft. and 40 sq. ft. to 99.6 sq. ft.; conditional sign approval for a sign with six 
colors, exceeding the three colors permitted pursuant to Sign Ordinance section 55.06.B; and 
variations from Zoning Ordinance section XI.C.9.c.2 to permit an average foot candle light level 
of 4.39 exceeding the 1.0 permitted and a uniformity ratio of 4.39 to 1 exceeding the 4 to 1 
permitted subject to four conditions: 

1. Final plans shall substantially comply with the submitted business plan, site plan, landscape 
plan, building elevations, photometric plan, and sign plans attached hereto as Exhibit A.  



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC); Special Uses, PUD Amendment, 
Variations, and Findings of Fact 
Page 6 of 6 

 
2. The special uses shall be limited to Thorntons LLC or a designated franchisee in a manner 

consistent with the submitted business plan and shall expire if Thorntons LLC or a 
designated franchisee no longer operates the business at 9115 Kingery Highway.  

3. The outdoor sales area shall be restricted to the area shown on the plan.  
4. The Thorntons sign on the rear (east) elevation shall be eliminated.  

 
Appendix 
Exhibit A - Petitioner’s Materials  

- Application  
- Business Plan with hours of operation amended request 
- Findings of Fact  
- Traffic count information/comparison to previous traffic study   
- Plat of Survey 
- Site Plan (includes a Landscape Plan) 
- Photometric Plan 
- Architectural Elevations and Floor Plans 
- Sign Plans  

Exhibit B – Excerpt from the Sign Ordinance for signs in the Business District 
Exhibit C – Excerpt from Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking lighting regulations 
Exhibit D – Public Comments  
Exhibit E – Excerpts from May 2 and June 20, 2022 Plan Commission meeting minutes  
Exhibit F – July 27, 2022 letter of no objection from Spectrum  



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGI?
RW^t^'

PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF;

APPEALS I vi!'An;l 0!'' '!;!]ii( 'wnl

1A!^ n t^ :!:J^

GENERAL INFORMATION (to be completed by Petitioner)

PETITIONER (All correspondence will be directed to the Petitioner): Ryan Swanson - OP behalf of Thomtons LLC

STATUS OF PETITIONER: ^lvl* Engineering Consultant

PETITIONER'S ADRESS: 52^ zenlth Parkway, Loves Park, IL 61072

ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: 9115 Kingery Hwy, Burr Ridge, IL 60527

PHONE:.815-484-4300x217

EMAIL:. ryans@arcdesign.com

PROPERTY OWNER:. BURR RIDGE CRE LLC

PROPERTY OWNER'S ADDRESS;

PUBLIC HEARING REQUESTED:

3010 HIGHLAND PKWY, UNIT 22S, DOWNERS GROVE IL 60515
PHONE:

/ Special Use R-ezoning aText Amendment / Variation(s)

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST:

I Please note, the GIS system currently lists the address for the property as 9115 Kingery Hwy, Witlowbrook, IL 60527.

The subject property will have a revised address of Burr Ridge if the development is approved by the Village. The PIN is 1002400020.

See supplemental narrative outlining requested special use and variations.

PROPERTY INFORMATION (to be completed by Village staff) ^

.^w^
PROPERTY ACREAGE/SQ FOOTAGE: /- EXISTING ZONING

EXISTING USE/IMPROVEMENTS:

0-

[Mm)w
SUBDIVISION:

PIN(S) # IC-O^'W^GOO
^r'M^'/^jHh'v^irry
\ I

The above information and the attached Plat of Survey are tme and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I understand the information
contained in this petition will be used in preparation of a legal notice for public hearing. I acknowledge that I will be held responsible
for any costs made necessary by an error in this petition.

& y-^v.
Petit ioner' /S ignature Date of Filing

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



March 15, 2022

From: BURR RIDGE CRE LLC
3010 Highland Pkwy, Unit 225,
Downers Grove, IL 60515
Phone: 630-686-6811
Email: tad@gaincre.com

To: Village of Burr Ridge, IL
Community Development
7660 County Line Road
Burr Ridge, IL 60527
(630)654-8181

Re: Authorization Letter for: 9115 Kingery Hwy, Willowbrook IL 60527 (PIN 1002400020)

To whom it may concern:

As the record owner of the above stated property, I hereby affirm that I have full legal capacity to

authorize Thorntons LLC (Todd Smutz), Arc Design Resources (Ryan Swanson and Lauren

Downing), and their representatives, to act as the owner's agent through the Community
Development / Variance / Special Use / Site Plan / Engineering and Building Plan review process with

the Village of Burr Ridge for said property.

Owner Name (printed): Tad Lagestee, Burr Ridge CRE LLC Title: Manager

Signature: 7^/4/Ah L^erfee Date: 3-15-22

County of Henrico

Commonwealth of Virginia

Subscribed and Sworn to Before Me This 15th Day Of March , 20__^_2

Notary Signature

Electronic Notary Public

Notarized online using audio-video communication

///l!W\^

DequanWinborne

REGISTRATION NUMBER

7940580

COMMISSION EXPIRES
June 30, 2025



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
PLAN COMMISSION AND

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

Consent to Install Public Notice Sign

The owner of the property referenced below, or an authorized representative

of the owner, which is the subject of a public hearing before the Village of

Burr Ridge Plan Commission or Zoning Board of Appeals, hereby consents to

allow the Village of Burr Ridge to install a public notice sign on the aforesaid

property. The public notice sign will be erected 15 to 30 days prior to the

public hearing and will remain on the property until it is removed by the

Village of Burr Ridge subsequent to a final dispensation of petition request

Street Address of Subject Property:

Property Owner or Petitioner:

9115 Kingery Hwy, Burr Ridge IL 60527

/^
'A ^ C- •' ~^>f^^ ^^ ^ ^

^-
(Print Name)

(Signature)



 

 



 

 

 

May 18, 2022 

 

To: Mayor Grasso and Board of Trustees 

Village of Burr Ridge, IL 

 7660 County Line Road 

Burr Ridge, IL 60527 

 (630)654-8181 

 

 

Re: Amendment to Special Use Application for 9115 Kingery Hwy, Burr Ridge, IL 

 

 

To Mayor Grasso and Board of Trustees: 

 

As part of our previous petition for special use at 9115 Kingery Hwy we requested that the proposed 

hours of operation be from 5 A.M. – 11 P.M due to hour limitations currently imposed under the PUD 

ordinance governing this parcel.  Based on further discussion internally on a corporate level, we 

respectfully request to amend our request to be changed to 24 hours of operation.   

 

The 24-hour operations are necessary to provide brand consistency among other Thorntons stores which 

are open 24-hours.  Additionally, even though it is not in the incorporated Village limits, the nearest 

fueling station is open 24-hours.  Therefore, equivalent hours are necessary to avoid a competitive 

disadvantage.  

 

We appreciate the Village considering our request to amend our previously submitted petition.  

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

      

   

 

 

Phillip A Bolduc 

Real Estate Manager 

630-674-7445 

Phillip.bolduc@mythorntons.com 

 

 

     

    
 



Thorntons of Burr Ridge, IL

Special Use and Variance Narrative
9115KingeryHwy, Burr Ridge, IL 60527

Project Summary and Proposed Use
Thorntons LLC is the contract purchaser of the approximately 1 .8 acre vacant outlot located
near the southeastcornerofthe intersection of!L-83 and 91st Street. Thorntons is requesting
approval of a Special Use, amendment to the current PUD, and variances.

PerViliage Zoning Code - Section VIII Business Districts: a special use is required for the
following items proposed for the development:

• outdoor sales
• outdoor displays of merchandise
• convenience food stores

• iiquor sales (packaged)
• tobacco sales
• Planned Unit developments
• Proposed hours of 5 AM - 11 P.M. (hours are outside 7 AM - 10 PM)

Scope of Work
The proposed includes the construction of a 4,400 SF convenience store, 10 fuel pumps (20
fueling positions) under canopy, 33 parking stalls, refuse enclosure and other related site
amenities.

The proposed building features Nichiha stone, brick and architectural panels. The canopy
columns are upgraded to feature a wrapped fa9ade of Nichiha stone and brick to match the
proposed convenience store. The refuse enclosure is also designed with materials consistent
with the convenience store and canopy.

The development will utilize existing utility connections available on or adjacent to the site.
Additionally, detention has been provided for the deveiopment as part of the Spectrum PUD

Business Operations

The proposed Thorntons development will include a 4,400 square foot convenience store which
will serve fresh and pre-packaged food products and a variety of beverages and refreshments to
the community. The proposed Thorntons store intends to sell alcohol and tobacco products.
This location will employ roughly twelve community members in both part-time and full-time
employment. The requested hours of the convenience store and fueling station are 5:00 A.M. to
11:OOP.M.

Requests for Variations
Thorntons LLC is requesting the foliowing variances to the requirements of the Burr Ridge
Village Code , Chapter 55, Signs:

Page 1 of 3



Sec 55.06. Business District Signs A.1. Ground Sign:
A.1 Requirement: One ground sign shall be permitted for each lot or parcel provided the lot or

parcel has at least 100 feet offrontage on a public street, that the height of such sign does
not exceed 8 feet, that the sign is located a minimum of 10 feet from ali property lines, and
that the combined area of ait Qround_smns_and wail signs shallnot exceed 100 square feet.
Requested Variation: Variance of 64 sf to the requirement that the combined area of ail
ground signs and wail signs shall not exceed 100 sf thereby allowing the combined area to
be 164 st.

A.2 Requirement: Wali Sign: One wall sign per street frontage shall be permitted for each lot or
parcel provided that the combined area of all wall signs and ground signs shall not exceed
100 square feet. Permitted wall signs shall be mounted no higher than the height of the
building wall or twenty feet (20') whichever is lower, and no lower than five feet (5*) above
average surrounding grade.
Requested Variation: Variance of 2 to the requirement of one wall per street sign frontage
thereby allowing a total of three (3) wall signs. The requested wall signs include two (2) on
the IL-83 frontage and one (1) along the shared private drive frontage.

A.4.b Requirement (Gasoline Pricing Sign): A maximum of four (4) sign faces, with a total area
not to exceed forty (40) square feet, shal! be permitted, provided that no single sign face
shall exceed twenty (20) square feet in area;
Requested Variation: Variance of 25 square feet to the requirement of 20 square feet for a
single sign face and 50 square feet to the requirement of 40 square feet for total gas pricing
signs to thereby allow a total square footage of 45 square feet for gasoline pricing sign per
face, and 90 square feet for the total of the two faces.

Sec 55.11. Prohibited Signs
P. Requirement: The following signs are hereby expressly prohibited for erection, construction,

repair, alteration or relocation within the Village, except as otherwise hereinafter specifically
provided: Signs with more than three colors
Requested Variation: Variance of 1 color square feet to the requirement of three colors
maximum on a sign thereby allowing a total of 4 colors on the proposed ground/gas sign
(biue, red, white, green).

Findings of Fact supporting the granting of the above requested variations:
1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only

under the conditions allowed by the regulations in the Sign Code.
2. The plight of the owner was not created by the owner and is due to unique

circumstances
3. The variation if Granted will not alter the essential character of the locality.

Sec 55.06. A.1: The proposed use of the property as a convenience store with fuel
sales requires larger price signage to allow motorists to make timely decisions
thereby allowing safe turning movement into the property.

Sec 55.06. A.2: The proposed use of the property as a convenience store requires
identification of the use. As such, we are requesting one wall sign on the building
and canopy along IL-83 in addition to one along the private drive. The private
drive was developed as part of a PUD and therefore the hardship that this is a
private and not a street frontage occurred prior to the proposed development.

Page 2 of 3



Sec 55.06. A.4.b: The proposed use of the property as a convenience store with
fuel sales requires larger price signage to allow motorists to make timely
decisions thereby allowing safe turning movement into the property. Legible
design for the displaying of gasoline products and prices is appropriate to the
type of activity and allows for vehicles reasonable time to decrease speed from
the posted 55 MPH limit to safely navigate into the drive servicing the business.
Per the United States Sign Council, safe reaction and maneuvering time in a 55
MPH speed zone requires visibility at 647'. The use of 16" pricing numerals allows
such visibility at 640' providing a safer approach for vehicular traffic.

Sec 55.11. P: The standard fordiesel pricing is green which adds an additional
color. All signs comply with the exception of the color green due to the diesel
product.

Thorntons LLC is requesting the following variances to the requirements of the Burr Ridge
Village Zoning Code, Chapter Xf Off-Street Parking and Off-Street Loading:

IX.D.9.C. Lighting:

(2) Intensity of illumination of parking areas shall not be less or more than the following
standards: Except as otherwise specifically provided elsewhere in this Ordinance,
parking lot lights must be no more than 20 feet high and be limited by the following
factors: an average lighting level of 1.0 foot candle with a minimum of 0.75 foot candle; a
uniformity ratio of not greater than 4-to-l, and lighting distribution shall be provided by
cut-off type fixtures. All such parking lot lighting shall be extinguished or reduced in
intensity to not more than an average of 0.5 foot candies no later than 30 minutes after
the dose of business.

IX.D.9.C (2) Requirement: an average lighting level of 1.0 foot candle
Requested Variation: Variance of 3.39 foot candles to the requirement that the average lighting
level is limited to 1 .0 foot candle thereby allowing an average of 4.39 foot candles.

IX.D.9.C (2) Requirement: a uniformity ratio of not greater than 4-to-1
Requested Variation: Variance of 3.39 to the requirement that the uniformity ratio is 4:1 thereby
allowing a uniformity ratio of 4.39:1.

Findings of Fact supporting the granting of the above requested variations:
1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only

under the conditions allowed by the regulations in the Sign Code.
2. The plight of the owner was not created by the owner and is due to unique

circumstances

3. The variation if Granted will not alter the essential character of the locality.

IX.D.9.C (2): The increased average lighting level and uniformity ratio are
necessary due to the proposed use as a convenience store with fuel sales
requires higher lighting levels than a typical parking lot. This is due the required
tasks which include, dispensing flammable liquid, checking oil, cleaning
windshields, filling up tires with air, manipulating the dispenser, swiping credit
cards, punching in codes, and taking receipts.

Page 3 of 3



Findings of Fact - Special Use Address:

Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance 91 15 Kingery Hwy, Willowbmok IL 60527

As per Section XII.K.7 of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance, for a special use to be approved,

the petitioner must confirm all of the following findings by providing facts supporting each finding.

a. The use meets a public necessity or otherwise provides a service or opportunity that is not otherwise

available within the Village and is of benefit to the Village and its residents.
The requested Special Use is far the public convenience located along the IL-83 corridor. Thorntons is proposing to build a state-of-the-art
convenience store with fuei sales, The c-store is proposed to be 4,400 sf and provide many items including fresh food such as hot sandwiches,
freshly Grafted sandwiches, wraps and other healthy options, coffee and drinks, donuts, and more. Sales will also include typical convenience
items, limited groceries, packaged liquor and tobacco. A equivalent facility is not located in the general area of the proposed development,

b. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or

endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.

The requested Special Use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort
or general welfare as it will be operated consistent with other businesses located along a state highway
corridor.

c. The special use will not be injurious to the uses and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish or impair property values

within the neighborhood in which it is to be located.
The requested Special Use is designed to be built and operated with the applicable regulations of Burr Ridge and the B-2 PUD
district requirements subject only to the variations requested herein. Given the substantial investment in improvements and
conformity to local requirements, it is not anticipated to be injurious to the uses and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity no substantially diminish or impair property values within the area.

d. The establishment of the special use will not impeded the normal and orderly development and

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

The proposed special use is located on the remaining outlet in a Business zoned PUD.
Therefore the surrounding property is already developed and it will not impede
development.

e. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/ or necessary facilities have been or will be

provided.

The proposed special use is to be located on an existing outlet. All necessary support
fadiities have previously been constructed.

f. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to

minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

Existing ingress and egress from public streets have been developed as part of the larger Planned Unit
Development. Two driveways to private drives are proposed at locations to minimize any impact to public
streets.

g. The proposed special use is not contrary to the objectives of the Official Comprehensive Plan of

the Village of Burr Ridge as amended.

The proposed special use does not conflict with the Official Comprehensive Plan of the
Village of Burr Ridge as amended.

h. The special use shall, in other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in

which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified pursuant to the
recommendations of the Plan Commission or, if applicable, the Zoning Board of Appeals.

The requested Special Use is designed to be built and operated with the applicable regulations of
Burr Ridge and the B-2 PUD district requirements subject only to the variations requested herein.



  
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CIVIL ENGINEERING 
LAND SURVEYING 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
 

5291 Zenith Parkway  
Loves Park, IL 61111 

815-484-4300 p 
815-484-4303 f  

 

Traffic Memorandum 
To: Village of Burr Ridge, IL 

From: Arc Design Resources, Inc.  

Date: March 24, 2022 

Re: Thorntons of Burr Ridge 

The proposed development is located at an existing out lot which is part of the Spectrum 
PUD/subdivision. The original PUD included a Traffic Impact Study which was completed in 2015.   
 
The previously completed TIA considered the outlots would include two 4,500 sf drive-thru restaurants 
in addition to a 15,000 sf pharmacy. This resulted in the following trip generation (Table 2 from 
Spectrum Senior Living Development TIS by Sam Schwartz Engineer): 
 

 
 
The 2015 report did not account for internal trip capture or pass-by trips.  This resulted in the 
conservative trip generation shown in Table 1 for the outlots: 
 
Table 1: Trip Generation - 2015  
Land Use / Size AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

 In Out Total In Out Total 
Restaurant w/Drive Thru / 9,000 sf 210 200 410 155 140 295 
Retail/Pharmacy Outlot / 15,000 sf 30 15 45 60 65 125 

Total 240 215 455 215 205 420 
 
 
In 2018, the Village approved an amendment to the Spectrum PUD and granted a special use for the 
3,662 sf McDonalds located at 9101 Kingery Hwy.  Therefore, the McDonalds plus proposed Thorntons 
results in the generated trips shown in Table 2.    Additionally, fuel stations and drive-thru restaurants 
have a significant number of pass-by trips.  For this evaluation, a pass-by trip percentage of 55% was 



  
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CIVIL ENGINEERING 
LAND SURVEYING 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
 

5291 Zenith Parkway  
Loves Park, IL 61111 

815-484-4300 p 
815-484-4303 f  

 considered for the Convenience Store/Gas Station and a pass-by trip percentage of 45% was 
considered for the Restaurant w/Drive-Thru. Additionally, internal trip capture could be considered 
between the Restaurant, Connivence Store/Gas Station, and Senior Living.  However, for this 
memorandum, internal capture is included in the Trip Generation table. 
 
Table 2: Trip Generation - 2022  
 
Land Use / Size (ITE 11th 
Edition) 

Trips AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

  In Out Total In Out Total 
Restaurant w/Drive Thru / 
3,662 sf (934) 

New 84 80 164 63 58 121 
Pass-by (45%) 38 36 74 28 26 54 

Convenience Store/Gas 
Station / 4,400 sf – 20 
positions (945) 

New 270 271 541 227 228 455 
Pass-by (55%) 149 149 298 124 125 249 

Total 167 166 333 138 135 273 
 
 
As the traffic generated is consistent with the original considerations of the 2015 Traffic Impact Study, a 
new traffic study is not warranted. 

End of Project Memo 
 
 



  
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CIVIL ENGINEERING 
LAND SURVEYING 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
 

5291 Zenith Parkway  
Loves Park, IL 61111 

815-484-4300 p 
815-484-4303 f  

 

Stormwater Memorandum - Detention 
To: Village of Burr Ridge, IL 

From: Arc Design Resources, Inc.  

Date: March 24, 2022 

Re: Thorntons of Burr Ridge 

The proposed development is located at an existing out lot which is part of the Spectrum 
PUD/subdivision. The original PUD included a Stormwater Management and Wetland Study which was 
completed in 2016.   
 
The previously completed stormwter management report considered the outlot to be part of Drainage 
Area 2 (DA2).  DA2 included 3.007 acres total and included all commercial outlots to the western 
portion of the shared access drive.  Per the Analysis, DA2 is considered to have a Runoff Coefficient of 
0.912 and considered a total impervious area of 2.47 acres. Therefore, DA2 was considered to be 82% 
impervious.  
 
Below is a portion of the proposed drainage map (pg 53 of 264) and proposed catchment areas (pg 54 
of 226) by Cross Engineering and Associates:  

   
 



  
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CIVIL ENGINEERING 
LAND SURVEYING 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
 

5291 Zenith Parkway  
Loves Park, IL 61111 

815-484-4300 p 
815-484-4303 f  

  
 
The proposed Thorntons development is located on a 1.8 acre outlot and contains 0.49 acres of 
pervious area and 1.31 acres of pervious area.  Therefore, the Thorntons outlot is 73% impervious. As 
73% impervious is less than 83% impervious, the original calculations are conservative and additional 
stormwater detention volume is not required for the proposed Thorntons development.  
 
Additional stormwater calculations to address stormwater flows through the proposed storm sewers will 
be provided with the full engineering submittal at a future date.  

End of Project Memo 
 
 









))))))))))))

O
/U

O
/U

O
/U

O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U

N
88

° 0
9'

 0
9"

E 
 2

78
.3

9'

Radius=288.65'
Arc Length=77.48'

Central Angle=15°22'45"
Ch. Bearing=S1° 45' 42"W

Ch. Length=77.25'

Radius=263.24'
Arc Length=52.26'
Central Angle=11°22'25"
Ch. Bearing=S3° 50' 00"W
Ch. Length=52.17'

S1° 50' 51"E  118.16'

Radius=43.50'
Arc Length=68.33'
Central Angle=90°00'00"
Ch. Bearing=S43° 09' 09"W
Ch. Length=61.52'

S8
8°

 0
9'

 0
9"

W
  2

26
.0

3'

10
0.

00
'

S

D

D

D
D

P31
51

72
2.

05
C

L 
FU

EL
 M

AR
KE

R
 W

ES
T

D

D D

>
>

>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

>
>

> > >

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>
>

>
>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

> >

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W W W

W
W

W

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

>
>

>
>

>

>>

>

>
>

N1° 37' 03"W  290.67'

P

P
P

P

DATE: 3/20/2016
FFE: 723.50

STORE #P2115
TYPE: 4400R-X-Y

A
IR

R
E
FU

S
E

3+
2

3+
2

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

20 10 0 20 40

20SCALE 1" =     '

D
ES

IG
N

:

SC
AL

E:
D

AT
E:

D
R

AF
TI

N
G

:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E

R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 N

U
M

BE
R

:

D
AT

E:

N
O

.

52
91

 Z
en

ith
 P

ar
kw

ay
Lo

ve
s 

Pa
rk

, I
L 

61
11

1

18
40

01
33

4-
00

10

TH
O

R
N

TO
N

S 
BU

R
R

 R
ID

G
E,

 IL
 

IL ROUTE 83 (KINGERY HIGHWAY)
4-LANE (DIVIDED) ASPHALT ROADWAY

31,100 AADT

9

7

12

5 existing
concrete
chair curb

existing gaurdrail

15' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

15
' L

A
N

D
S
C
A
PE

 S
ET

B
A
C
K

15' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

8'
 L

A
N

D
S
C
A
PE

 S
ET

B
A
C
K

40' BUILDING SETBACK

40' BUILDING SETBACK

20
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
B
A
C
K

40
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
B
A
C
K

A STANDARD DUTY PAVEMENT SECTION AND NOTES. SEE SHEET C7.1 - THORNTONS
DETAILS.

B HEAVY DUTY PAVEMENT SECTION
    AND NOTE. SEE SHEET C7.1 - THORNTONS DETAILS.

C TANK PAD PAVING SECTION AND CONCRETE NOTES. SEE SHEET C7.1 - THORNTONS
DETAILS.

D HARDSCAPE BUFFER. SEE DETAILS SHEET C7.1 - THORNTONS DETAILS

E  CONCRETE SIDEWALK. SEE SHEET C7.1 - THORNTONS DETAILS.

F CONCRETE CURB. SEE SHEET C7.1 - THORNTONS DETAILS.

G  LIGHT POLE. SEE DETAILS ON SHEET C7.2 - THORNTONS DETAILS.CONFIRM LIGHT
POLE FIXTURE TYPE AND ORIENTATION WITH PHOTOMETRIC PLAN.

H  NOT USED

I PIPE BOLLARD. SEE DETAILS.

J  NOT USED

K NOT USED

L SERVICE ISLAND

M ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE. DETAIL PER AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

N  NOT USED

O SINGLE COMPARTMENT TANK. REFERENCE FUEL DRAWINGS

P THREE COMPARTMENT TANK REFERENCE FUEL DRAWINGS

Q MONUMENT/PYLON/GROUND SIGN. REFERENCE

R PAVILION AREA

S PROPOSED TRANSFORMER LOCATION. COORDINATE PAD WITH COMED

T PROPOSED GREASE TRAP LOCATION. REFERENCE MEP PLANS

U PAINTED 4" WIDE YELLOW STRIPE.

V WASTE ENCLOSURE. REF. ARCH. PLANS

W PROPOSED CANOPY. REF. CANOPY PLANS

X PROPOSED BUILDING SETBACK LINE.

Y RESERVED FOR FUTURE EV CHARGING STATIONS.

SITE LEGEND

C

A

E

I

M

M

U

O

P

R3' (TYP.)

R10' (TYP.)

R20'

R10'

R20'

I

I

B

L R

T

I

B

F

W

Q

R5'

EXIS
TIN

G M
CDONALD

S

ZO
NE: B

-2 
PUD

EXISTING BURR RIDGE
SENIOR LIVING
ZONE: O-2 PUD

REGIONAL POND
ZONE: O-2 PUD

R30'

Y

Y

R5'

X

R30'

C3.0

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
R

C
S

1:
20

LN
D

3-
25

-2
02

2

existing left turn lane

existing right turn lane taper

BUILDING FRONT
SIGNAGE

BUILDING REAR
SIGNAGE

CANOPY SIGNAGE

MONUMENT PRICER
(HEIGHT = 8')

MINIMUM SITE FRONTAGE = 250'
PREFERRED SITE FRONTAGE = 280'

290.7'
41

'

18' 36' 20'

9.
5'

 (
TY

P.
) 9.
5'

 (
TY

P.
)

8' 8' 8'

9.5' (TYP.)

M
IN

IM
U

M
 S

IT
E 

D
EP

TH
 =

 2
70

'
PR

EF
ER

R
ED

 S
IT

E 
D

EP
TH

 =
 3

40
'

27
8.

4'

40
'

134'

9.
5'

(T
YP

.)

50' 50'

43
.7

'
20

'

15
9.

3'

8'
44

.8
'

18
.7

'
6'

39
.7

'

R3' (TYP.)

R10' (TYP.)

R20'

R10'

R20'

R5'

39.2'28.5'20'8'100.7'

5.1'

6'
83.1'

6'

5'10'

11.1'

R30'

R5'

R30'

37'

36.3'

12.3'
11.9'

15.6'

32
.6

'
40

.5
'

15
'

40
'

30.1'

39
.2

'

30.3'

R3' R3'

R25'
R20'

R3'

existing petroleum lines existing gas line

91
15

 K
IN

G
ER

Y 
H

IG
H

W
AY

BU
R

R
 R

ID
G

E,
 IL

 6
05

27

G

S

D

D

3-
25

-2
02

2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"



DATE: 3/20/2016
FFE: 723.50

STORE #P2115
TYPE: 4400R-X-Y

A
IR

R
E
FU

S
E

3+
2

3+
2

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

))))))))))))

O
/U

O
/U

O
/U

O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U
727

72
6

72
5

72
4

723

722

721

721

721

722

723

724

72172
1

722

72
3

72
4

72
3

72
4

722

721

720

72
0

721

722
723

724

725 726

725

724

723

722

721

720
720

721

722

723

724

72
4

72
3

72
2722

723

724

72
4

72
3

72
3

72
4

72
5

72
5

72
5

72
4

723

722

10
0.

00
'

727

727

726

725

724

723

722

72
1

72
1

72
1

720

721
S

D

D

D
D

P31
51

72
2.

05
C

L 
FU

EL
 M

AR
KE

R
 W

ES
T

D

D D

>
>

>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

>
>

> > >

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>
>

>
>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

> >

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W W W

W
W

W

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

>
>

>
>

>

>>

>

>
>

P

P
P

P

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO
.

ex-02

ex-04

CO-1

ex-05

D-03

ex-06

D-01

D-05

D-04

D-00

CO-5

D-02

CO-4 CO-3 CO-2

ex-01

CO-6

CO-8

CO-7

ep-01

ep-03

ep-02

P-01

PVC-6

PVC-1

P-02

ep-04

P-04

P-03

ep-05

PVC-8

PVC-7

P-05

ep-06

PVC-2

PVC-3PVC-4PVC-5

72
1

72172
1

72
2

722

722

722

72
2

72
2

723
723

72
3

72
3

721

72
2

722

72
2

721

72
2

723

721

722

72
3

-2
.9

8%

-2
.9

3%

-2.96%

-2.02%

-6.82%

-1.62%

-1.80%

-1.80%

-1.80%

-1.80%

-2.02%

-3
.4

1%

-3.35%

-2.54%

-3.15%

-5
.4

8%

-3
.8

9%

-5.66%

-1.87%

-1
.0

3%
-1

.0
0%

-1
.0

0%
-1

.5
0%

-1.33%

-1.50%

-1.80% -1.50%

-1.50%

-1.93%

-1
.5

0%

-3.94%

-1.90%

-16.30%

-7.11%

-12.62%

-2.51%
-1.63%

-11.85%

-2.
29

%

-7
.9

8%

-2
.0

1%

-1
.7

5%

-2
.3

5%
-1

.5
0%

-1.50%

0.00%

-1
.5

0%

-1.82%

-1.33%

-2.11%

-2.25%

-2.27% -2.57%

-1.48%

-3
.0

7%

TP723.08

TP722.67

TP722.87

TP722.67

TP722.15

TP721.66

TP721.86

TP721.66TP720.69

TP721.02

TP721.25

TP720.83

TP722.23 TP723.00

TP723.05

TP721.37

TP720.41

TP723.33

TP723.38

TP722.93
TP721.66

TP721.86

TP721.66

TP720.75

TP721.04

TP723.35

TP721.65

TP721.92

TP722.34

TP723.16

TP723.38

TP721.54

TP721.24 TP
72

2.
09

TP721.50

TP723.09

TP722.96

TP722.91

TW
723.50

FG723.47

TW
723.50

TW
723.50

TP722.54

TP722.65

TP722.68

TP721.31

TP720.94

TP721.28

ex726.86

ex726.64

ex725.96

ex725.18

ex726.55

ex727.05
ex722.88

ex720.86

ex720.30

ex720.41

ex720.55

ex721.07

TP721.74

TP721.74

TP721.49

TP721.44

TW
722.78

TW
722.69

TW
72

2.
72

TW
72

2.
63

TW
723.33

TW
723.42

TW
723.42

TW
723.33

TW
72

3.
38

TW
723.33

TW
723.33

TW
723.13

TW
723.13

TW
723.04

TW
723.04 TW

723.13

TW
723.13

TW
723.04

TW
723.04

TW
723.08

TW
723.00

TW
722.99

TW
722.91

TW
723.38

TW
723.38

FG723.31

TP
72

2.
28

TP
72

2.
31

TP722.04
TP721.04

TP721.31

TP721.01

TP
72

0.
68

ex
72

0.
84

ex720.67

ex720.50

ex720.35

ex720.27 ex720.56

TP
72

1.
87

TP
72

1.
15

TP722.72

TP722.54

TP722.63

TP723.33

TP723.33
TW

723.33

TP723.32

TP723.38

TW
72

3.
38

TP723.38

TW
72

3.
38

TP723.38

TP723.08

TP
72

3.
08

TW
723.38

TP723.38

TP
72

2.
80 TP722.71

TP722.71
TP722.71

TP722.88

TP723.00

TP723.08
TP723.06

TP
72

2.
83

TP722.89

TP722.52

TP722.97

TP722.69

TP720.43

TP720.68

TP720.42

TP720.82

TP720.84
TP721.38

ex724.07

TP721.74

TP722.50

TP
72

1.
85TP

72
2.

01

TP721.38

TP721.07
ex723.35

ex722.73

ex722.22

ex721.46

ex720.86

TP722.51

TP722.33

TP721.79

TP721.76

TP722.23

TP721.14

TP721.91

TP
72

0.
98

TP
72

1.
73

TC722.54

TC721.49

TC721.49
TC721.30

TC721.31

TC721.28 TC721.18

TC
72

2.
37

TC
72

2.
53

TC722.45

TC
72

2.
72

TC
72

2.
45

TC
72

2.
78

TC
72

1.
69

TC
72

1.
48

TC
72

1.
15

TC
72

0.
88

TC
72

1.
30

TC
72

2.
63

TC
72

1.
29

TC
72

0.
88

TC
72

1.
15

TC
72

1.
25

TC
72

1.
51

TC
72

1.
41

TC721.88
TC722.24

TC724.39

TC721.23

TC
72

1.
81

TC
72

2.
18

TC
72

2.
34TC

72
2.

47

TC
72

2.
86

TP723.07

TP722.84

TP722.28

TP722.59

TP722.72

Structure Table

Structure Name

CO-1

CO-2

CO-3

CO-4

CO-5

CO-6

CO-7

CO-8

D-00

D-01

Structure Details

 RIM = 721.86
PVC-2  INV IN = 718.25

PVC-1  INV OUT = 718.25

 RIM = 722.03
PVC-3  INV IN = 718.44

PVC-2  INV OUT = 718.44

 RIM = 722.45
PVC-4  INV IN = 718.93

PVC-3  INV OUT = 718.93

 RIM = 722.87
PVC-5  INV IN = 719.42

PVC-4  INV OUT = 719.42

 RIM = 722.45
PVC-6  INV IN = 719.91

PVC-5  INV OUT = 719.91

 RIM = 721.98
PVC-6  INV OUT = 720.46

 RIM = 723.26
PVC-8  INV IN = 719.26

PVC-7  INV OUT = 719.26

 RIM = 723.36
PVC-8  INV OUT = 722.00

 RIM = 721.62
ep-01  INV IN = 717.22
P-01  INV IN = 718.50

ep-02  INV OUT = 717.22

 RIM = 720.43
P-01  INV OUT = 719.50

NOTES

CLEAN OUT

CLEAN OUT

CLEAN OUT

CLEAN OUT

CLEAN OUT

CLEAN OUT

CLEAN OUT

CLEAN OUT

Manhole Type A

Inlet Type A

Structure Table

Structure Name

D-02

D-03

D-04

D-05

ex-01

ex-02

ex-04

ex-05

ex-06

Structure Details

 RIM = 720.42
PVC-1  INV IN = 717.26
P-02  INV OUT = 717.00

 RIM = 721.92
P-04  INV IN = 717.14

P-03  INV OUT = 717.10

 RIM = 720.84
P-04  INV OUT = 718.21

 RIM = 721.04
P-05  INV OUT = 718.50

 RIM = ???
ep-01  INV OUT = 717.83

 RIM = 723.82
ep-02  INV IN = 715.47
P-02  INV IN = 716.47

ep-03  INV OUT = 715.47

 RIM = 721.09
P-03  INV IN = 716.84

ep-04  INV OUT = 716.59

 RIM = 722.02
PVC-7  INV IN = 718.50

ep-05  INV OUT = 717.99

 RIM = 721.46
P-05  INV IN = 717.87

ep-06  INV OUT = 717.87

NOTES

Inlet Type B

Inlet Type B

Inlet Type A

Inlet Type A

existing structure

existing structure
CORE DRILL/CONNECT TO
EXISTING STRUCTURE

existing structure
CORE DRILL/CONNECT TO
EXISTING STRUCTURE

existing structure
CORE DRILL/CONNECT TO
EXISTING STRUCTURE
ADJUST STRUCTURE TO
FINISHED GRADE

existing structure
CORE DRILL/CONNECT TO
EXISTING STRUCTURE
ADJUST STRUCTURE TO
FINISHED GRADE

Pipe Table

Pipe Name

ep-01

ep-02

ep-03

ep-04

ep-05

ep-06

P-01

P-02

P-03

P-04

P-05

PVC-1

PVC-2

PVC-3

PVC-4

PVC-5

PVC-6

PVC-7

PVC-8

Size

27.000

27.000

24.000

15.000

12.000

12.000

12.000

18.000

12.000

12.000

12.000

6.000

6.000

6.000

6.000

6.000

6.000

6.000

6.000

Slope

0.88%

0.88%

0.44%

6.87%

7.23%

3.19%

7.81%

3.92%

1.88%

2.06%

1.35%

1.78%

1.75%

1.75%

1.75%

1.75%

1.75%

2.22%

2.50%

MATERIAL/NOTES

existing pipe

existing pipe

existing pipe

existing pipe

existing pipe

existing pipe

RCP

RCP

RCP

RCP

RCP

PVC Pipe

PVC Pipe

PVC Pipe

PVC Pipe

PVC Pipe

PVC Pipe

PVC Pipe

PVC Pipe

0

SCALE 1" =     '

1:
20

D
ES

IG
N

:

SC
AL

E:
D

AT
E:

D
R

AF
TI

N
G

:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E

R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 N

U
M

BE
R

:

D
AT

E:

N
O

.

52
91

 Z
en

ith
 P

ar
kw

ay
Lo

ve
s 

Pa
rk

, I
L 

61
11

1

18
40

01
33

4-
00

10

TH
O

R
N

TO
N

S 
BU

R
R

 R
ID

G
E,

 IL

IL ROUTE 83 (KINGERY HIGHWAY)

EX
IS

TI
NG

 M
CD

O
NA

LD
S

ZO
NE

: B
-2

 P
UD

EXISTING BURR RIDGE
SENIOR LIVING
ZONE: O-2 PUD

REGIONAL POND
ZONE: O-2 PUD

20

40201020

N
88

° 0
9'

 0
9"

E 
 2

78
.3

9'

S1° 50' 51"E  118.16'

S8
8°

 0
9'

 0
9"

W
  2

26
.0

3'

N1° 37' 03"W  290.67'

Radius=263.24'
Arc Length=52.26'
Central Angle=11°22'25"
Ch. Bearing=S3° 50' 00"W
Ch. Length=52.17'

Radius=288.65'
Arc Length=77.48'
Central Angle=15°22'45"
Ch. Bearing=S1° 45' 42"W
Ch. Length=77.25'

Radius=43.50'
Arc Length=68.33'
Central Angle=90°00'00"
Ch. Bearing=S43° 09' 09"W
Ch. Length=61.52'

PRIVATE SHARED DRIVE

LEGEND

TW00
0.0

0

TOP OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPOSED GRADE BREAK LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

TOP OF WALK ELEVATION

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

DIRECTION OF SHEET FLOW

EXISTING MANHOLE OR CATCH BASIND

CO. PROPOSED CLEANOUT

BENCHMARK

800

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

FG00
0.0

0

FINISHED GRADE ELEVATION

TP00
0.0

0

EXISTING STORM SEWER

-1.6%

CATCH BASIN OR MANHOLE,
SEE STRUCTURE TABLE

CATCH BASIN OR MANHOLE,
SEE STRUCTURE TABLE

REJECTING CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

C5.0

G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

R
C

S
LN

D

3-
25

-2
02

2

Critical Elevations for Canopy Design
Highest Pavement Elevation Under Canopy 722.87
Lowest Pavement Elevation Under Canopy 721.66
Minimum Vertical Clearance under Canopy shall be 17.5'

91
15

 K
IN

G
ER

Y 
H

IG
H

W
AY

BU
R

R
 R

ID
G

E,
 IL

 6
05

27

TC00
0.0

0

TOP OF CURB ELEVATION

3-
25

-2
02

2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
800



))))))))))))

O
/U

O
/U

O
/U

O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U
727

72
6

72
5

72
4

723

722

721

721

721

722

723

724

72172
1

722

72
3

72
4

72
3

72
4

722

721

720

72
0

721

722
723

724

725 726

725

724

723

722

721

720
720

721

722

723

724

72
4

72
3

72
2722

723

724

72
4

72
3

72
3

72
4

72
5

72
5

72
5

72
4

723

722

10
0.

00
'

727

727

726

725

724

723

722

72
1

72
1

72
1

720

721
S

D

D

D
D

P31
51

72
2.

05
C

L 
FU

EL
 M

AR
KE

R
 W

ES
T

D

D D

>
>

>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

>
>

> > >

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>
>

>
>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

> >

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W W W

W
W

W

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

>
>

>
>

>

>>

>

>
>

P

P
P

P

72
1

72172
1

72
2

722

722

722

72
2

72
2

723
723

72
3

72
3

721

72
2

722

72
2

721

72
2

723

721

722

72
3

DATE: 3/20/2016
FFE: 723.50

STORE #P2115
TYPE: 4400R-X-Y

A
IR

R
E
FU

S
E

3+
2

3+
2

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO
.

SANITARY SERVICE ENTRY (RE: ARCH)
INV. 718.00 (4")

CLEANOUT
RIM  723.41
INV. 717.71 (6")

6 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.00%

45 DEG BEND
INV. 717.59 (6")

6 L.F. OF 6" PVC PIPE
@ 2.07%

31 L.F. OF 6" PVC
PIPE @ 2.00%

CORE DRILL EXISTING
STRUCTURE FOR CONNECTION,

EXTERNAL DROP REQUIRED.
INV. 715.91 (6" S)

53 L.F. OF 6" PVC
PIPE @ 2.00%

WYE CONNECTION (6X4)
INV. 716.97 (6")

SANITARY SERVICE ENTRY (RE: ARCH)
INV. 718.00 (4")

CLEANOUT
RIM  723.41
INV. 717.88 (4")

6 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.00%

GREASE TRAP ENTRY
INV. 717.72 (4")

8 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.00%

GREASE TRAP EXIT
INV. 717.55 (4")

WYE WITH CLEANOUT
RIM  723.12

INV. 717.51 (4")

2 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.07%

22 L.F. OF 4" PVC
PIPE @ 2.45%

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO
.

SANITARY SERVICE ENTRY (RE: ARCH)
INV. 718.00 (4")

CLEANOUT
RIM  723.41
INV. 717.71 (6")

6 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.00%

45 DEG BEND
INV. 717.59 (6")

6 L.F. OF 6" PVC PIPE
@ 2.07%

31 L.F. OF 6" PVC
PIPE @ 2.00%

CORE DRILL EXISTING
STRUCTURE FOR CONNECTION,

EXTERNAL DROP REQUIRED.
INV. 715.91 (6" S)

53 L.F. OF 6" PVC
PIPE @ 2.00%

WYE CONNECTION (6X4)
INV. 716.97 (6")

SANITARY SERVICE ENTRY (RE: ARCH)
INV. 718.00 (4")

CLEANOUT
RIM  723.41
INV. 717.88 (4")

6 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.00%

GREASE TRAP ENTRY
INV. 717.72 (4")

8 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.00%

GREASE TRAP EXIT
INV. 717.55 (4")

WYE WITH CLEANOUT
RIM  723.12

INV. 717.51 (4")

2 L.F. OF 4" PVC PIPE
@ 2.07%

22 L.F. OF 4" PVC
PIPE @ 2.45%

0

SCALE 1" =     '

1:
20

D
ES

IG
N

:

SC
AL

E:
D

AT
E:

D
R

AF
TI

N
G

:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E

R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 N

U
M

BE
R

:

D
AT

E:

N
O

.

52
91

 Z
en

ith
 P

ar
kw

ay
Lo

ve
s 

Pa
rk

, I
L 

61
11

1

18
40

01
33

4-
00

10

TH
O

R
N

TO
N

S 
BU

R
R

 R
ID

G
E,

 IL

IL ROUTE 83 (KINGERY HIGHWAY)

EX
IS

TI
NG

 M
CD

O
NA

LD
S

ZO
NE

: B
-2

 P
UD

EXISTING BURR RIDGE
SENIOR LIVING
ZONE: O-2 PUD

REGIONAL POND
ZONE: O-2 PUD

20

40201020

N
88

° 0
9'

 0
9"

E 
 2

78
.3

9'

S1° 50' 51"E  118.16'

S8
8°

 0
9'

 0
9"

W
  2

26
.0

3'

N1° 37' 03"W  290.67'

Radius=263.24'
Arc Length=52.26'
Central Angle=11°22'25"
Ch. Bearing=S3° 50' 00"W
Ch. Length=52.17'

Radius=288.65'
Arc Length=77.48'
Central Angle=15°22'45"
Ch. Bearing=S1° 45' 42"W
Ch. Length=77.25'

Radius=43.50'
Arc Length=68.33'
Central Angle=90°00'00"
Ch. Bearing=S43° 09' 09"W
Ch. Length=61.52'

PRIVATE SHARED DRIVE

LEGENDLEGEND

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC SERVICE

PROPOSED TELEPHONE SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED GAS SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

EXISTING MANHOLE OR CATCH BASIN

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING GAS MAIN

PROPOSED TRANSFORMER

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING WATER MAIN

EXISTING OVERHEAD UTILITY LINES

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

PROPOSED STORM SEWER
PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

D

S EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE

PROPERTY LINE

CO. PROPOSED SANITARY CLEANOUT

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

LIGHT POLE & FIXTURE

RELOCATE COMPLETE  FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

C6.0

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
R

C
S

LN
D

3-
25

-2
02

2

91
15

 K
IN

G
ER

Y 
H

IG
H

W
AY

BU
R

R
 R

ID
G

E,
 IL

 6
05

27

existing petroleum lines existing gas line

3-
25

-2
02

2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



))))))))))))

O
/U

O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U O/U
727

72
6

72
5

72
4

723

722

721

721

721

722

723

724

72172
1

722

72
3

72
4

72
3

72
4

722

721

720

72
0

721

722
723

724

725 726

725

724

723

722

721

720
720

721

722

723

724

72
4

72
3

72
2722

723

724

72
4

72
3

72
3

72
4

72
5

72
5

72
5

72
4

723

722

727

727

726

725

724

723

722

72
1

72
1

72
1

720

721

S

D

D

D
D

P31
51

72
2.

05
C

L 
FU

EL
 M

AR
KE

R
 W

ES
T

D

D D

>
>

>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

>
>

> > >

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

> >

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W W

W
W

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

>
>

>
>

>

>>

>

>
>

P

DATE: 3/20/2016
FFE: 723.50

STORE #P2115
TYPE: 4400R-X-Y

A
IR

R
E
FU

S
E

3+
2

3+
2

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
1

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

3+
0

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO.

CO
.

CO
.

CO
.

0

SCALE 1" =     '

1:
20

D
ES

IG
N

:

SC
AL

E:
D

AT
E:

D
R

AF
TI

N
G

:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E

R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 N

U
M

BE
R

:

D
AT

E:

N
O

.

52
91

 Z
en

ith
 P

ar
kw

ay
Lo

ve
s 

Pa
rk

, I
L 

61
11

1

18
40

01
33

4-
00

10

TH
O

R
N

TO
N

S 
BU

R
R

 R
ID

G
E,

 IL

IL ROUTE 83 (KINGERY HIGHWAY)

CONCRETE PAVED
FUEL TANK
STORAGE AREA

EX
IS

TI
NG M

CDONAL
DS

ZO
NE:

 B
-2

 P
UD

EXISTING BURR RIDGE
SENIOR LIVING
ZONE: O-2 PUD

REGIONAL POND
ZONE: O-2 PUD

20

40201020

N
88

° 0
9'

 0
9"

E 
 2

78
.3

9'

S1° 50' 51"E  118.16'

S8
8°

 0
9'

 0
9"

W
  2

26
.0

3'

N1° 37' 03"W  290.67'

PRIVATE SHARED DRIVE

L1.0

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

R
C

S
LN

D

3-
25

-2
02

2

REQUIREMENT

LANDSCAPE ZONING DATA
CATEGORY AREA/QUANTITY PROVISION

NORTH - 8' WIDTH (SIDE LOT)
EAST - 15' WIDTH (FRONT LOT)
WEST - 15' WIDTH (INTERIOR CORNER)
SOUTH - 15' WIDTH (INTERIOR CORNER)

NORTH - 8' WIDTH (SIDE LOT)
EAST - 15' WIDTH (FRONT LOT)
WEST - 15' WIDTH (INTERIOR CORNER)
SOUTH - 15' WIDTH (INTERIOR CORNER)

FRONT: PERMANENT PLANTED SCREEN
MIN. 4' HEIGHT (ADJACENT TO
PARKING/PAVEMENT AREAS)

SIDE/REAR: PERMANENT PLANTED
SCREEN MIN. 4' HEIGHT (ADJACENT TO
PARKING/PAVEMENT AREAS)

FRONT: PERMANENT SCREENING OF
MINIMUM 4' HEIGHT, ADJACENT TO
PARKING/PAVEMENT - CONSIST OF EITHER
A PLANTED BERM, DENSE EVERGREEN
SHRUBS OR TREES OR COMBINATION

SIDE/REAR: PERMANENT SCREENING OF
MINIMUM 5' HEIGHT, ADJACENT TO
PARKING/PAVEMENT - CONSIST OF EITHER
PLANTED BERM, DENSE EVERGREEN
SHRUBS OR TREES, OR COMBINATION

PERIMETER LANDSCAPE
AREA - PLANTINGS

PERIMETER LANDSCAPE
AREA - MINIMUM
SETBACKS

ISLAND/PLANTING AREA AT THE END OF
EACH PARKING ROW W/ MIN. AREA,
RAISED CURBING AND TREE

ONE (1) ISLAND FOR EACH 15 SPACES AND/OR
AT THE END OF EACH PARKING ROW - MIN.
9'X18' W/ RAISED CURBING AND A TREE (3")

PARKING LANDSCAPE
(15 SPACES OR MORE)

SOD AREA FOR TURF WITHIN P.L.
UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY
OWNER - SEE ENGINEERING PLANS

LARGE DECIDUOUS SHADE TREE

EVERGREEN / DECIDUOUS SHRUBS

EVERGREEN TREE / ORNAMENTAL TREE

MIXED PERENNIALS / 

LEGEND

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

EXISTING DECIDUOUSTREE

NORTH P.L.
EAST P.L.
WEST P.L.
SOUTH P.L.

FRONT OF THE
PRINCIPAL BUILDING

SIDE / REAR YARDS

32 PARKING SPACES

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

3 METAL STAKES @ 8'

2 TIMES ROOTBALL WIDTH

45° OR LESS

4" DEPTH PINE BARK
NUGGET MULCH

FORM SAUCER AROUND
PLANTING PIT

2-PLY 1/2" REINFORCED
RUBBER HOSE

PREPARED BACKFILL OF 75%
SOIL & 25% PEAT OR ORGANIC
COMPOST

#12 GA. OR 3/16" STEEL
AIRCRAFT CABLE GUY WIRES

ALL BURLAP OR NETTING AND
TWINE AROUND THE ROOTBALL
TO BE REMOVED

NOTE:
ALL TREES TO BE STAKED
FOR MINIMUM ONE GROWING
SEASON.

TRUNK OF TREE SHALL BE
PROTECTED W/ TREE WRAP.
SECURE WRAP W/TWINE @ TOP
& REMOVE THE NEXT SPRING.

DO NOT STAKE INTO ROOTBALL

NOT TO SCALE

BED PLANTING DETAIL

EXISTING SUBGRADE

9"-12"

FINISHED GRADE

SEE SPECIFIC SPACING
DIMENSION ON PLANT LIST

ALL BED PLANTINGS SHALL BE
INSTALLED WITH TRIANGULAR
SPACING, UNLESS SPECIFIED

CERTAIN BULBS/PERENNIALS MAY REQUIRE
OTHER PLANTING DEPTHS, CONSULT BULB
DISTRIBUTOR FOR SPECIFIC DEPTHS.

SLICE, CUT OR SEPARATE EXTERIOR
ROOTS ON ROOT-BOUND CONTAINER
PLANTS TO PROMOTE ROOT GROWTH.

PLANTING SOIL:
MIN. OF 3" MUSHROOM COMPOST
ROTO-TILLED INTO SOIL TO A MIN.
DEPTH OF 9".  DO NOT COMPACT
UNNECESSARILY AFTER PLANTING

APPLY 18-6-12 OSMOCOTE (270 DAY) TIMED
RELEASED FERTILIZER TO GROUNDCOVER &
PERENNIAL BEDS & 14-14-14 OSMOCOTE (120
DAY) TIMED RELEASED FERTILIZER TO
ANNUAL BEDS PER MFRS. RECCOMENDATIONS.

(GROUNDCOVER, PERENNIALS & ANNUALS) NOT TO SCALE

6"

EXISTING SUBGRADE

FINISHED GRADE

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

4" DEPTH PINE BARK
NUGGET MULCH

PREPARED BACKFILL OF
75% SOIL & 25% PEAT
OR ORGANIC COMPOST

ALL BURLAP, NETTING AND
TWINE TO BE REMOVED
FROM THE ROOTBALL

NOT TO SCALE

PLANTING NOTES

PLANT LIST
                  Botanical name

KEY QTY COMMON NAME SIZE REMARKS

BLACK CHOKEBERRYAME
Aronia melanocarpa x 'Elata'

24 30" / 5 GAL

RAG 24 18" / 5 GAL

TOW 7 5' UPRIGHT EVERGREEN 

CFR 11 GAL 3'-0" O.C. - PERENNIAL

HRR 21 GAL 2'-0" O.C. - PERENNIAL

RFG 21 GAL 2'-0" O.C. - PERENNIAL

SMN 16 GAL 2'-0" O.C. - PERENNIAL

HUGHES JUNIPERJHH
Juniperus horizontalis 'Hughes'

16 5 GAL EVERGREEN SHRUB

GRO-LOW SUMAC
Rhus aromatica x 'Gro-Lo'

WOODWARD ARBORVITAE
Thujia occidentalis x 'Woodwardii'

FEATHER REED GRASS
Calamagrostis acutiflora 'Karl Forster'

ROSY RETURNS DAYLILY
Hemmerocallis x 'Rosy Returns'

BLACK-EYED SUSAN
Rudbeckia fulgida 'Goldsturm'

Salvia nemorosa 'May Night'
MAY NIGHT MEADOW SAGE

AAB 2
Acer x 'Autumn Brilliance'

AUTUMN BRILLIANCE MAPLE 3"

POS 19
Physocarpus opulifolia 'Podaras 3'

LEMON CANDY PHYSOCARPUS 30" / 5 GAL

JCS 20
Juniperus chinensis 'Sargentii'

GREEN SARGENT JUNIPER 5 GAL

PGF Phlox x glaberrima 'Forever Pink'14 GALFOREVER PINK HYBRID PHLOX
2'-0" O.C. - PERENNIAL

DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

1 - QRB

7 - RAG

9 - SMN

5 - JCS

5 - POS

9 - HRR

7 - TOW

6 - CFR

1 - QRB

1 - AAB

7 - SMN

4 - JHH

1 - AAB

7 - HRR

3 - JHH

14 - POS

1 - GTS

5 - CFR

9 - RFG

5 - RAG

1 - QRB

5 - JCS

8 - AME

5 - JCS

8 - AME

8 - AME

5 - JCS

7 - PGF

5 - RFG

9 - JHH

7 - PGF

5 - HRR

'VEE' SHAPED MACHINE
CULTIVATED EDGE, ALL
BEDS (TYP.)

PINE BARK CHIP MULCH
ALL PLANTING BEDS

(TYP.)

15' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

15
' L

A
N

D
S
C
A
PE

 S
ET

B
A
C
K

15' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

8'
 L

A
N

D
S
C
A
PE

 S
ET

B
A
C
K

BUILDING FRONT
SIGNAGE

BUILDING REAR
SIGNAGE

CANOPY SIGNAGE

MONUMENT PRICER
SIGN (HEIGHT = 8')

BUILDING SETBACK

BUILDING SETBACK

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
ET

B
A
C
K

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
ET

B
A
C
K

5 - RAG

7 - RFG

7 - RAG

GTS 1
Gleditsia triacanthos 'Skyline'

SKYLINE HONEYLOCUST 3"

QRB 3
Quercus robur x bicolor 'Long'

REGAL PRINCE OAK 3"

EVERGREEN SHRUB

SOD ALL DISTURBED
TURF AREAS WITHIN
PROPERTY LINES UNLESS
OTHERWISE DIRECTED
BY OWNER (TYP.)

PINE BARK CHIP MULCH
ALL PLANTING BEDS
(TYP.)

'VEE' SHAPED MACHINE
CULTIVATED EDGE, ALL
BEDS (TYP.)

SOD ALL DISTURBED TURF
AREAS WITHIN CURB OR
PROPERTY LINES UNLESS
OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY
OWNER (TYP.)

91
15

 K
IN

G
ER

Y 
H

IG
H

W
AY

BU
R

R
 R

ID
G

E,
 IL

 6
05

27

1. Landscape Contractor (Contractor) shall make a site visit prior to
bidding/construction to inspect the current site conditions and review proposed
planting plan and related work.  Contractor shall report any discrepancies in the
field to the Landscape Architect and/or Owner.

2. Contractor shall verify locations of all underground utilities prior to begining
construction on his phase of work. Electric, gas, telephone, and cable television
can be located by calling J.U.L.I.E. at '811'.  For regional locating, contact
"Digger's Hotline".  Any damage or interruption of services shall be the
responsibility of the contractor.  Contractor to coordinate all related activities
with other trades on the job and shall report any unacceptable job conditions to
owner's representative prior to commencing work.

3. For details pertaining to Utilities, Easements, Grading, Retaining Walls, Layout,
Geometry, Wetland/Flood Plain Delineations, etc., or other trades refer to
Architectural and Civil Engineering plans and/or owner.

4. Contractor is responsible for application and cost of all necessary building
permits and code verifications.  Submit copies of all documents to owner and
landscape architect.

5. Contractor shall grade entire site as per grading/engineering plans and/or
correct surface irregularities in preparation for sod.  Roto-til, disc, drag, harrow
or hand rake sub grade to a depth of 4" in all lawn areas and remove
construction debris, foreign matter or stones larger than 2".  Grading shall
provide slopes which are smooth, continuous, free from depressions or ridges.
Level, rake and roll as necessary to an even and true condition and obtain
positive drainage in all areas. Finish grades shall meet the approval of owner
prior to lawn installation.

6. All disturbed areas are to receive a minimum 3" of approved topsoil and be
finished with mulch, straw mulch, seed, sod, etc. or as noted.  All lawn areas to
be watered until a healthy stand of grass is established. (see seed/sod notes for
acceptance details).

7. Quantity lists are supplied as a convenience; however, the contractor should
verify all quantities.  The drawings shall take precedence over the lists.

8. Plantings may need to be adjusted in the field to accommodate utilities,
easements, drainage ways, downspouts, etc.; however, quantities and sizes
shall remain consistent with these plans.

9. Size & grading standards of plant material shall conform to the latest addition of
ANSI Z60.1 AMERICAN STANDARD OF NURSERY STOCK, by the American
Nursery & Landscape Association.  Plant material shall be nursery grown and be
either balled and burlap or container grown.

10. All plant species specified are subject to availability.  Material shortages in the
landscape industry may require substitutions.  All substitutions must be
approved by the Landscape Architect and/or Owner.

11. Plant symbols illustrated on this plan are a graphic representation of proposed
plant material types and are intended to provide for visual clarity.  However, the
symbols do not necessarily represent actual plant spread at the time of
installation.  Sizes and/or spread on plant list represent minimum requirements
at the time of installation; mature growth may exceed figures listed.

12. Any plant materials with damaged or crooked/disfigured leaders, bark abrasion,
sun scald, insect damage, etc. are not acceptable and will be rejected by
Landscape Architect and/or Owner.  Trees with multiple leaders will be rejected
unless called for in the plant list as multi-stem or clump.

13. Upon inspection and acceptance of all landscape items by Landscape Architect
and/or Owner the contractor shall assume maintenance responsibilities for a
period of thirty (30) days, for all plant material, to include: watering, cultivating,
weeding, pruning, mulching and spraying as necessary to keep plants free of
insects and in a healthy, vigorous condition until responsibility is transferred to
the owner (see below).

14. All plant material shall be guaranteed for one (1) year after acceptance by
landscape architect and/or owner.  After the first thirty (30) days, the owner
shall assume maintenance responsibilities as described (see above). Contractor
shall replace without cost to owner any dead or unacceptable plants, as
determined by the landscape architect at the end of one (1) year guarantee
period.  Contractor shall notify immediately, in writing, any concerns related to
maintenance practices.

15. All planting beds and tree saucers shall be mulched continuous with 4" depth
pine bark nugget (2") mulch, see planting details.  All deciduous trees (shade /
ornamental) that are not located in in a planting bed shall be mulched with a
3'-0" diameter circle.  Evergreen trees shall be mulched to outer-most branches
at the time of installation.  No mulch shall border sidewalks or curbing.

16. Planting edge delineation at all planting bed lines and tree saucers shall require
a mechanically cultivated edge with minimum 4" depth "vee" shape and a
vertical face abutting all lawn areas and sloped to inside of plant bed continuous
between lawn and mulched areas as indicated on plan.  No plant beds shall
border sidewalks or curbs.

17. Contractor to install sod in all areas indicated on plan.  Sod to be well
established mineral type growth, no peat sod will be allowed.  Sod grass blend
shall consist of the following suggested bluegrass types:  55% Barrons, 15%
Majestic, 15% Adelphi, 15% Glade.  Sod pieces are to fit tightly together so that
no joints are visible, alternate and stagger courses and tamp or roll firmly.  All
sodded lawn areas shall be fertilized at first cutting with 15-40-5 analysis
fertilizer, at a rate of 6 lbs. per 1,000 s.f..  Acceptance and guarantee note shall
apply to all sod areas.

18. Acceptance of grading and sod shall be by landscape architect and/or owner.
Contractor shall assume maintenance responsibilities for a minimum of sixty
(60) days or until second cutting, whichever is longer.  Maintenance shall include
watering, weeding, re-seeding (wash-offs), replacement (sod) and other
operations necessary to keep lawn in a thriving condition.  Upon final
acceptance, owner shall assume all maintenance responsibilities.  After lawn
areas have germinated, areas which fail to show a uniform stand of grass for
any reason whatsoever shall be re-seeded or replaced repeatedly until all areas
are covered with a satisfactory stand of grass.  Minimum acceptance of seeded
lawn areas may include scattered bare or dead spots, none of which are larger
than one (1) square foot and when combined do not exceed 2% of total lawn
area.

'VEE' SHAPED MACHINE
CULTIVATED EDGE, ALL

BEDS (TYP.)

3-
25

-2
02

2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE 44" X 39"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE 94" X 35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



FOOTCANDLE LEVELS CALCULATED AT GRADE USING INITIAL LUMEN VALUES
LABEL AVG MAX MIN AVG/MIN MAX/MIN

CANOPY

PAVED AREA

UNDEFIND AREA

35.79 43 22 1.63 1.95

4.39 12.8 1.0 4.39 12.80

0.81 10.8 0.0 N.A. N.A.

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE
SYMBOL QTY LABEL ARRANGEMENT LUMENS LLF BUG RATING WATTS/LUMINAIRE TOTAL WATTS MANUFACTURE DESCRIPTION

20 CR SINGLE 13251 1.000 B3-U0-G1 134 2680 CREE, INC. CAN-304-SL-RS-06-E-UL-WH-700-57K

1 RA5 SINGLE 12699 1.000 B2-U0-G2 104 104 Cree Inc OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-3M-UL-XX-Q9 + OSQ0BLSMF

5 RA7 Single 9274 1.000 B1-U0-G2 73 365 Cree Inc OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-3M-UL-XX-Q3 + OSQ0BLSMF

1 RB SINGLE 16098 1.000 B3-U0-G3 104 104 Cree Inc OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-4M-UL-XX-Q9

6 RB5 SINGLE 12349 1.000 B2-U0-G2 104 624 Cree Inc OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-4M-UL-XX-Q9 + OSQ-BLSMF

8 W SINGLE 5893 1.000 B2-U0-G2 68 544 CREE, INC. SEC-EDG-3M-WM-04-E-ULXX--525-57K

1 W2 SINGLE 2490 1.000 B1-U0-G1 19 19 Cree Inc XSPW-B-WM-3ME-2L-57K-UL-XX

2 WS1 SINGLE 1980 1.000 N.A. 27.7 55.4 CREE CL-P5642-31-30K + CL-P8798-31

LUMINAIRE LOCATION SUMMARY
LUM NO. LABEL MTG. HT.

1 CR 15

2 CR 15

3 CR 15

4 CR 15

5 CR 15

6 CR 15

7 CR 15

8 CR 15

9 CR 15

10 CR 15

11 CR 15

12 CR 15

13 CR 15

14 CR 15

15 CR 15

16 CR 15

17 CR 15

18 CR 15

19 CR 15

20 CR 15

21 RA5

22 RA7

23 RA7

24 RA7

25 RA7

26 RA7

27 RB

28 RB5

29 RB5

30 RB5

31 RB5

32 RB5

33 RB5 20

34 W 10

35 W 10

36 W 10

37 W 10

38 W 10

39 W 10

40 W 10

41 W 10

42 W2 6

43 WS1 10

44 WS1 10

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

NOTE:
- POLE MOUNTED FIXTURES ARE MOUNTED ON A 20FT POLE
   ATOP A CONCRETE BASE.

THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN A REGION WHERE LIGHTING IS
REGULATED BY LOCAL ORDINANCES

1
CR

2
CR

3
CR

4
CR

5
CR

6
CR

7
CR

8
CR

9
CR

10
CR

11
CR

12
CR

13
CR

14
CR

15
CR

16
CR

17
CR

18
CR

19
CR

20
CR

21
RA5

22
RA7

23
RA724

RA7

25
RA7

26
RA7

27
RB 34

W

35
W

36
W

37
W

38
W

39
W

40
W

41
W

42
W2

43
WS1

44
WS1

28
RB5

29
RB5

30
RB5

31
RB5

32
RB5

33
RB5

23 28 32 32 34 35 33 35 34 33 36 34 33 36 33 34 36 33 34 35 33 35 34 32 32 28 23

26 22 31 38 38 32 26 28 33 39 38 30 30 38 39 33 28 26 32 38 38 31 22 26

27 34 38 40 42 39 43 42 40 43 41 41 41 41 43 40 42 42 39 42 40 38 34 27

26 25 36 33 36 37 35 40 40 40 38 40 35 40 35 40 38 40 40 40 35 37 36 33 36 25 26

26 32 36 33 38 39 35 40 41 36 39 39 35 40 35 39 39 36 41 40 35 38 37 33 36 32 26

27 33 38 40 41 39 43 42 40 43 41 41 40 41 43 40 42 43 39 41 40 38 33 27

26 22 32 39 40 34 28 31 36 42 41 33 33 41 42 36 31 29 35 41 40 33 24 28

26 32 37 38 39 41 39 41 41 40 41 40 40 42 40 40 41 40 41 41 39 40 39 37 37 32 26

3.7 3.3 2.6 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.8 2.8 3.7 4.4

4.8 5.3 3.9 2.6 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 3.0 3.8 5.1 5.3

6.0 3.8 4.0 4.8 6.5 7.6 8.0 8.2 8.2 8.2 8.3 8.3 8.2 8.2 8.1 7.7 7.0 5.2 4.2 4.1 4.9

3.6 4.2 5.6 6.5 3.5 3.4

2.8 2.8 5.6 6.6 2.4 2.5

1.8 2.1 7.1 8.9 2.0 1.5

1.2 1.8 5.8 6.8 2.0 1.3

1.4 2.6 7.8 8.7 2.8 1.8 1.2

1.8 3.0 6.3 7.1 3.0 2.5 1.9 1.3

2.3 3.5 4.8 7.0 6.7 9.3 12.7 10.2 11.5 12.8 10.2 12.3 12.1 10.0 12.3 10.2 7.0 6.9 4.6 2.9 3.4 2.8 1.7

3.8 4.4 4.8 4.2 5.1 6.7 6.8 8.1 7.8 7.3 8.3 7.6 7.6 8.2 7.0 6.7 5.3 3.9 4.1 3.3 4.6 5.0 2.5

6.0 4.5 3.8 3.4 4.2 4.6 4.5 5.1 5.0 4.7 5.2 4.8 4.8 5.1 4.3 3.9 3.6 2.8 2.8 3.2 5.5 6.6 5.7

5.4 4.6 3.5 4.9 4.1 3.2 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.7 2.8 5.8 6.4

1.4 3.3 6.4 4.6 4.2 3.9 5.6 2.6 2.1 1.9 2.2 5.6 1.7 1.6 3.3 3.0 1.3 2.6 5.5 6.3

1.8 3.0 4.7 4.9 5.6 6.7 2.9 2.5 4.9 5.1

2.2 3.5 3.8 4.3 5.1 5.1 7.7 9.0 3.4 2.4 4.5 4.2

3.8 3.9 3.6 3.3 4.8 5.7 6.0 7.7 3.4 2.4 4.4 4.9

6.2 4.0 3.3 3.2 3.9 3.3 4.8 8.5 3.4 2.2 4.3 5.7

6.3 4.2 3.7 2.9 2.8 2.8 3.6 7.8 3.0 2.0 4.2 5.3

3.9 4.1 4.4 3.6 3.2 3.8 4.0 3.8 4.5

2.4 3.5 3.7 4.7 4.4 4.5 3.4

1.9 3.0 2.9 3.6 5.4 4.6 3.2

2.5 3.3 4.7

2.1 3.8 4.4 3.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.7 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 1.0 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 1.1 2.4 2.8 1.4 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.4 2.3 2.2 0.7 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.9 2.1 2.5 1.0 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.3 0.9 2.5 2.6 1.3 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.4 1.1 1.9 2.2 1.2 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.3 0.8 1.4 1.4 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 1.0 1.0 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.9 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.3 0.8 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.7 1.7 1.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.3 1.1 2.9 2.2 0.3 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 3.9 3.8 5.0 2.4 2.2 6.2 2.4 0.3 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.5 3.9 5.4 3.3 2.3 4.1 1.9 0.3 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.8 4.8 7.0 4.9 3.0 1.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.3 1.0 5.9 2.6 1.0 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.4 1.7 7.8 2.5 1.1 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.5 2.7 9.1 3.8 1.6 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.5 2.7 8.6 3.9 1.5 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.4 1.7 7.0 10.8 8.3 8.7 9.1 10.0 9.7 8.4 6.3 7.8 6.7 5.4 5.2 2.3 1.9 2.1 1.0 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.2 0.4 1.2 3.7 5.6 5.7 5.0 6.4 6.3 6.5 6.0 4.2 4.7 5.6 3.9 2.6 1.2 0.5 6.7 4.0 1.4 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.2 0.3 1.0 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.3 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.3 0.7 1.3 2.2 4.5 3.4 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.4 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.2 0.5 0.9 1.6 1.9 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 1.1 2.3 3.5 3.4 3.7 1.5 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.9 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 0.7 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1

A
IR

R
E
FU

S
E

IL ROUTE 83 (KINGERY HIGHWAY)

THORNTONS P2115
BURR RIDGE, IL

SCALE:

1" = 30'

D 3/22/22

TAS
LAYOUT BY:

DWG SIZE: DATE:

PROJECT NAME:

DRAWING NUMBER:

RL-7953-S1-R1

REV. BY DATE DESCRIPTION
R1

.

.

.

TAS

.

.

.

3/25/22

.

.

.

LOWERED POLE HEIGHTS

.

.

.

1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240
513-574-9500   redleonard.com

ANY SITE PLAN(S), FLOOR PLAN(S), RENDERING(S), LIGHTING LAYOUT(S) AND PHOTOMETRIC PLAN(S) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY PROJECT(S) CREATED/PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC., ARE ONLY INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATION AND QUOTING PURPOSES ONLY. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES HAS THE RIGHT TO USE THIRD PARTY LASERS, SCANNERS, AND CAMERAS BUT ACTUAL PROJECT CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ACCURACY OF
MEASUREMENTS MAY DIFFER FROM THESE OR ANY PARAMETERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR WHAT IS CREATED/PRODUCED IN THESE RECREATIONS. THIS INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE
USE OF, INSTALLATION OF AND/OR INTEGRITY OF EXISTING BUILDING(S), SURROUNDING AREA FOR PRODUCT(S) SUCH AS EXISTING POLE(S), ANCHOR BOLT(S), BASE(S), ARCHITECTURAL AND SIGNAGE STRUCTURE(S), LANDSCAPING
PLAN(S), LIGHTING PLAN(S), FIXTURE SELECTION(S) AND PLACEMENT, MATERIAL(S), COLOR ACCURACY, TEXTURE(S), AND ANYTHING ATTRIBUTED TO PHOTO REALISM THAT IS CREATED. FURTHERMORE, RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES
INC., DOES NOT ASSUME LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY PURCHASES MADE BY CLIENT BEFORE, DURING, OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PUBLISHED WORK. THE CUSTOMER, ITS RELATIVE AFFILIATES, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER
PERSON(S) IN VIEWING OF THIS PRODUCT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL CODES, PERMITS, RESTRICTIONS, INSTRUCTIONS, PURCHASES, AND INSTALLATIONS OF OBJECTS VIEWED
WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT(S) OR PROJECT(S). SYMBOLS ARE NOT DRAWN TO SCALE. SIZE IS FOR CLARITY PURPOSES ONLY. SIZES AND DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE, ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS MAY VARY. DRAWINGS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION USE. THIS DOCUMENT, ANY RED LEONARD DRAWING(S), OR PROJECT(S) IS NOT TO BE USED AND/OR INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, BUT FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. ANY LOCATIONS OF EMERGENCY LIGHTING SHOWN WERE PROVIDED BY OTHERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR INSUFFICIENT LIGHTING DURING AN EMERGENCY EVENT.
ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENTATION AND/OR OTHER ARTICLES PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM JAYME J. LEONARD IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

DISCLAIMER

1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240
513-574-9500  |  redleonard.com



m
1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240

513-574-9500   redleonard.co

PROJECT NAME:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ANY SITE PLAN(S), FLOOR PLAN(S), RENDERING(S), LIGHTING LAYOUT(S) AND PHOTOMETRIC PLAN(S) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY PROJECT(S) CREATED/PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC., ARE ONLY INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATION AND QUOTING PURPOSES ONLY. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES HAS THE RIGHT TO USE THIRD PARTY LASERS, SCANNERS, AND CAMERAS BUT ACTUAL PROJECT CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ACCURACY OF
MEASUREMENTS MAY DIFFER FROM THESE OR ANY PARAMETERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR WHAT IS CREATED/PRODUCED IN THESE RECREATIONS. THIS INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE
USE OF, INSTALLATION OF AND/OR INTEGRITY OF EXISTING BUILDING(S), SURROUNDING AREA FOR PRODUCT(S) SUCH AS EXISTING POLE(S), ANCHOR BOLT(S), BASE(S), ARCHITECTURAL AND SIGNAGE STRUCTURE(S), LANDSCAPING
PLAN(S), LIGHTING PLAN(S), FIXTURE SELECTION(S) AND PLACEMENT, MATERIAL(S), COLOR ACCURACY, TEXTURE(S), AND ANYTHING ATTRIBUTED TO PHOTO REALISM THAT IS CREATED. FURTHERMORE, RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES
INC., DOES NOT ASSUME LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY PURCHASES MADE BY CLIENT BEFORE, DURING, OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PUBLISHED WORK. THE CUSTOMER, ITS RELATIVE AFFILIATES, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER
PERSON(S) IN VIEWING OF THIS PRODUCT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL CODES, PERMITS, RESTRICTIONS, INSTRUCTIONS, PURCHASES, AND INSTALLATIONS OF OBJECTS VIEWED
WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT(S) OR PROJECT(S). SYMBOLS ARE NOT DRAWN TO SCALE. SIZE IS FOR CLARITY PURPOSES ONLY. SIZES AND DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE, ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS MAY VARY. DRAWINGS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION USE. THIS DOCUMENT, ANY RED LEONARD DRAWING(S), OR PROJECT(S) IS NOT TO BE USED AND/OR INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, BUT FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENTATION AND/OR OTHER ARTICLES PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM JAYME J. LEONARD IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

WALL MOUNTED
QTY LABEL DESCRIPTION

T  (800) 236-6800    F  (262) 504-5415

© 2017 Cree, Inc. and/or one of its subsidiaries. All rights reserved. For informational purposes only. Content is subject to change. 

18" Cylinder LED Sconce
Outdoor Wall Mount Series  – Dimmable 

Distribution: Uplight/Downlight

Lumens: 1,300 uplight lumens; 1,262 downlight lumens

Input Power: 29 watts

CRI: 90 CRI

CCT: 3000K

Voltage: 120V, 60Hz

Finish Options: Black, White or Metallic Gray

Construction: Die cast aluminum construction, metal shade

Operating Temperature: -30˚C to 30˚C

Dimensions: 6.0"W X 18.0"H X 8.88"D

Compliance: cCSAus Wet location listed

Warranty: Contact factory for warranty information 

Performance Summary

Ordering Information
Example: CL-P5642-30-30K

CL-P5642 30 30K

Product Finish CCT Voltage

CL-P5642 30
White
31
Black
82
Metallic Gray

30K
3000K 

Blank
120 Volt

Accessories 

Field-Installed

Top Cover Lens (required with sconce)
CL-P8798-31
- Adapts up/down fixtures for wet location use
- Heat and shatter resistance clear lens
- Black finish
- 6.0"Dia. x 0-.75"H

Black

White

Metallic Gray

CL-P5642-31-30K + CL-P8798-312 WS1WALL MOUNTED
QTY LABEL DESCRIPTION

Lumen Package Weight

2L, 4L, 6L 11.0 lbs. (5.0kg)

8L 11.8 lbs. (5.4kg)

US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234

XSP Series
XSPW™ LED Wall Mount Luminaire featuring Cree TrueWhite® Technology 

Ordering Information
Example: XSPW-B-WM-2ME-2L-30K-UL-BK

XSPW B WM

Product Version Mounting Optic
Lumen  
Package*

CCT Voltage Color Options Options

XSPW B WM
Wall

2ME
Type II Medium
3ME
Type III Medium
4ME
Type IV Medium

2L
2,490 lumens
4L
4,270 lumens
6L
6,100 lumens
8L
8,475 lumens

30K
3000K
- 70 CRI
40K
4000K
- 70 CRI
50K
5000K
- 90 CRI
57K
5700K
- 70 CRI

UL
Universal 120-277V
UH
Universal 347-480V
34
347V
- For use with P option
    only

BK
Black
BZ
Bronze
SV
Silver
WH
White

ML Multi-Level
- Refer to ML spec sheet for details
 - Available with UL voltage only

P Button Photocell
- Not available with ML or PML options
- Available with UL and 34 voltages only

PML Programmable Multi-Level
- Refer to PML spec sheet for details
- Available with UL voltage only

Product Description
The XSPW™ LED wall mount luminaire has a slim, low profile design intended for outdoor wall 
mounted applications. The rugged lightweight aluminum housing and mounting box are designed 
for installation over standard single gang J-Boxes and mud ring single gang J-Boxes. The luminaire 
allows for through-wired or conduit entry from the top, bottom, sides and rear. The housing design is 
intended specifically for LED technology including a weathertight LED driver compartment and thermal 
management. Optic design features industry-leading NanoOptic® Precision Delivery Grid™ system in 
multiple distributions. 
Applications: General area and security lighting

NanoOptic® Precision Delivery Grid™ optic

Assembled in the U.S.A. of U.S. and imported parts

CRI: Minimum 70 CRI (3000K, 4000K & 5700K); 90 CRI (5000K)

CCT: 3000K, 4000K, 5000K, 5700K

Limited Warranty†: 10 years on luminaire/10 years on Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish

Performance Summary
9.3"

(236mm)

12"
(305mm)

4.8"
(122mm) 3.8"

(97mm)

Multi-Level Sensor location
(ordered as an option)

Accessories 

† See http://creelighting.com/warranty for warranty terms

Field-Installed

Beauty Plate
WM-PLT12** - 12" (305mm) Square
WM-PLT14** - 14" (356mm) Square
- Covers holes left by incumbent wall packs

Hand-Held Remote
XA-SENSREM
- For successful implementation of the programmable 

multi-level option, a minimum of one hand-held remote is required

** Must specify color

* Lumen Package selection codes identify approximate light output only. Actual lumen output levels may vary depending on CCT and optic selection. Refer to Initial Delivered Lumen tables for specific lumen values 

Rev. Date: VersionB V4 02/25/2020

US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234

Product Specifications
CREE TRUEWHITE® TECHNOLOGY
A revolutionary way to generate high-quality white light, Cree TrueWhite® 

Technology is a patented approach that delivers an exclusive combination 
of 90+ CRI, beautiful light characteristics and lifelong color consistency, all 
while maintaining high luminous efficacy – a true no compromise solution.
CONSTRUCTION & MATERIALS
• Slim, low profile design

• Luminaire housing specifically designed for LED applications with 
advanced LED thermal management and driver

• Luminaire mounting box designed for installation over standard single 
gang J-Boxes and mud ring single gang J-Boxes

• Luminaire can also be direct mounted to a wall and surface wired

• Secures to wall with four 3/16" (5mm) screws (by others)

• Conduit entry from top, bottom, sides, and rear

• Exclusive Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish features an E-coat epoxy primer 
with an ultra-durable powder topcoat, providing excellent resistance to 
corrosion, ultraviolet degradation and abrasion. Silver, black, white and 
bronze are available

• Weight: 2L, 4L, 6L - 11.0 lbs. (5.0kg); 8L - 11.8 lbs. (5.4kg)

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
• Input Voltage: 120-277V or 347-480V, 50/60Hz

• Power Factor: > 0.9 at full load

• Total Harmonic Distortion: < 20% at full load

• Integral 10kV surge suppression protection standard

• When code dictates fusing, a slow blow fuse or type C/D breaker should 
be used to address inrush current

• Designed with 0-10V dimming capabilities. Controls by others

• 10V Source Current: 0.15 mA

• Refer to Dimming spec sheet for details 
• Operating Temperature Range: -40˚C - +50˚C (-40˚F - +122˚F)

REGULATORY & VOLUNTARY QUALIFICATIONS
• cULus Listed

• Suitable for wet locations

• Designed for downlight applications only

• Enclosure rated IP66 per IEC 60598

• ANSI C136.2 10kV surge protection, tested in accordance with IEEE/ANSI 
C62.41.2

• Meets FCC Part 15, Subpart B, Class A limits for conducted and radiated 
emissions

• Luminaire and finish endurance tested to withstand 5,000 hours of 
elevated ambient salt fog conditions as defined in ASTM Standard B 117

• Meets Buy American requirements within ARRA

• RoHS compliant. Consult factory for additional details

• Dark Sky Friendly, IDA Approved when ordered with 30K CCT. Please 
refer to https://www.darksky.org/our-work/lighting/lighting-for-
industry/fsa/fsa-products/ for most current information

• DLC and DLC Premium qualified versions available. Please refer to 
https://www.designlights.org/search/ for most current information

•        CA RESIDENTS WARNING: Cancer and Reproductive Harm –  
       www.p65warnings.ca.gov

XSPW™ LED Wall Mount Luminaire

XSPW Series Ambient Adjusted Lumen Maintenance Factors1

Ambient Initial
LMF

25K hr
Reported2

LMF

50K hr
Reported2

LMF

75K hr
Estimated3

LMF

100K hr
Estimated3

LMF

5˚C (41˚F) 1.03 0.98 0.96 0.94 0.92

10˚C (50˚F) 1.03 0.98 0.96 0.94 0.92

15˚C (59˚F) 1.02 0.97 0.95 0.93 0.92

20˚C (68˚F) 1.01 0.96 0.95 0.93 0.91

25˚C (77˚F) 1.00 0.96 0.94 0.92 0.90

30˚C (86˚F) 0.99 0.95 0.93 0.91 0.89

35˚C (95˚F) 0.98 0.94 0.92 0.90 0.88

40˚C (104˚F) 0.97 0.93 0.91 0.89 0.87

1 Lumen maintenance values at 25˚C (77˚F) are calculated per IES TM-21 based on IES LM-80 report data for the LED 
package and in-situ luminaire testing. Luminaire ambient temperature factors (LATF) have been applied to all lumen 
maintenance factors. Please refer to the Temperature Zone Reference Document for outdoor average nighttime ambient 
conditions.
2 In accordance with IES TM-21, Reported values represent interpolated values based on time durations that are
up to 6x the tested duration in the IES LM-80 report for the LED.
3 Estimated values are calculated and represent time durations that exceed the 6x test duration of the LED.

* Electrical data at 25˚C (77˚F). Actual wattage may differ by +/- 10% when operating between 120-277V or 347- 480V 
   +/- 10%

Electrical Data*

Lumen 
Package CCT/CRI

System 
Watts

Efficacy

Total Current (A)

120-
480V 120V 208V 240V 277V 347V 480V

2L

30K/70 CRI 20 125 0.17 0.10 0.08 0.07 0.06 0.05

40K/70 CRI 19 131 0.16 0.09 0.08 0.07 0.06 0.04

50K/90 CRI 24 104 0.20 0.11 0.10 0.08 0.07 0.05

57K/70 CRI 19 131 0.16 0.09 0.08 0.07 0.06 0.04

4L

30K/70 CRI 33 129 0.28 0.16 0.14 0.13 0.10 0.07

40K/70 CRI 31 138 0.27 0.15 0.13 0.12 0.09 0.07

50K/90 CRI 40 107 0.34 0.20 0.17 0.16 0.12 0.09

57K/70 CRI 31 138 0.26 0.15 0.13 0.12 0.09 0.07

6L

30K/70 CRI 51 120 0.43 0.25 0.22 0.19 0.14 0.11

40K/70 CRI 47 130 0.40 0.23 0.20 0.18 0.14 0.10

50K/90 CRI 60 102 0.51 0.29 0.25 0.23 0.17 0.13

57K/70 CRI 47 130 0.40 0.23 0.20 0.17 0.14 0.10

8L

30K/70 CRI 77 110 0.65 0.38 0.32 0.28 0.22 0.16

40K/70 CRI 72 118 0.61 0.35 0.31 0.27 0.21 0.15

50K/90 CRI 78 89 0.66 0.37 0.33 0.29 0.22 0.16

57K/70 CRI 71 119 0.60 0.35 0.30 0.26 0.20 0.15

XSPW-B-WM-3ME-2L-57K-UL-XX1 W2WALL MOUNTED
QTY LABEL DESCRIPTION

US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234

† See http://creelighting.com/warranty for warranty terms

** Must specify color

Rev. Date: V6 08/29/2019

Cree Edge® Series
LED Security Wall Pack Luminaire

Ordering Information
Example: SEC-EDG-2M-WM-06-E-UL-SV-700 

SEC-EDG WM E

Product Optic Mounting
LED 
Count 
(x10)

Series Voltage
Color  
Options

Drive  
Current

Options

SEC-EDG 2M
Type II Medium
2MB
Type II Medium w/BLS
2S
Type II Short
2SB
Type II Short w/BLS
3M
Type III Medium 
3MB
Type III Medium w/BLS
4M
Type IV Medium
4MB
Type IV Medium w/BLS

WM
Wall Mount

02
04
06
08
10
12

E UL
Universal
120-277V
UH
Universal
347-480V
34
347V

BK
Black
BZ
Bronze
SV
Silver 
WH
White

350
350mA 
525
525mA
-Available with 20-80 LEDs
700
700mA
-Available with 20-60 LEDs

DIM 0-10V Dimming
 - Control by others
 - Refer to Dimming spec sheet for details
 - Can't exceed specified drive current
 - Not available with PML option

P Photocell
 - Must specify UL or 34 voltage

PML Programmable Multi-Level
 - Refer to PML spec sheet for details
 - Intended for downlight applications with 0° tilt

40K 4000K Color Temperature
 - Minimum 70 CRI
 - Color temperature per luminaire

Product Description
The Cree Edge® wall mount luminaire has a slim, low profile design. The luminaire end caps are 
made from rugged die cast aluminum with integral, weathertight LED driver compartments and high 
performance aluminum heat sinks specifically designed for LED applications. Housing is rugged 
aluminum. Includes a lightweight mounting box for installation over standard and mud ring single gang 
J-Boxes. Secures to wall with four 3/16" (5mm) screws (by others). Conduit entry from top, bottom, 
sides and rear. Allows mounting for uplight or downlight. Designed and approved for easy  
through-wiring. Includes leaf/debris guard. 
Applications: General area and security lighting

Accessories 

Field-Installed

Bird Spikes
XA-BRDSPK 

Beauty Plate
WM-PLT12** - 12" (305mm) Square
WM-PLT14** - 14" (356mm) Square
- Covers holes left by incumbent
   wall packs

Hand-Held Remote
XA-SENSREM
- For successful implementation of the
   programmable multi-level option, a minimum
   of one hand-held remote is required

Patented NanoOptic® Product Technology

Assembled in the U.S.A. of U.S. and imported parts

CRI: Minimum 70 CRI

CCT: 4000K (+/- 300K), 5700K (+/- 500K) standard

Limited Warranty†: 10 years on luminaire/10 years on Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish 

Performance Summary

LED Count (x10) Dim. "A" Weight

02 9.9" (251mm) 20 lbs. (9.1kg)

04 11.9" (303mm) 22 lbs. (10.0kg)

06 13.9" (353mm) 25 lbs. (11.3kg)

08 15.9" (404mm) 27 lbs. (12.2kg)

10 17.9" (455mm) 31 lbs. (14.1kg)

12 19.9" (505mm) 32 lbs. (14.5kg)

“A”

18.3"
(464mm)

4.1"
(104mm)

US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234

Product Specifications

CONSTRUCTION & MATERIALS
• Slim, low profile design

• Luminaire sides are rugged die cast aluminum with integral,  
weathertight LED driver compartment and high performance aluminum 
heat sinks specifically designed for LED applications

• Housing is rugged aluminum

• Furnished with low copper, light weight mounting box designed for 
installation over standard and mud ring single gang J-Boxes

• Luminaire can also be direct mounted to a wall and surface wired

• Secures to wall with four 3/16" (5mm) screws (by others)

• Conduit entry from top, bottom, sides, and rear

• Allows mounting for uplight or downlight

• Designed and approved for easy through-wiring

• Includes leaf/debris guard

• Exclusive Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish features an E-Coat epoxy primer 
with an ultradurable powder topcoat, providing excellent resistance to 
corrosion, ultraviolet degradation and abrasion. Black, bronze, silver and 
white are available

• Weight: See Dimensions and Weight Chart on page 1

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
• Input Voltage: 120–277V or 347–480V, 50/60Hz, Class 1 drivers

• Power Factor: > 0.9 at full load

• Total Harmonic Distortion: < 20% at full load

• Integral weathertight J-Box with leads (wire nuts) for easy power hook 
up

• Integral 10kV surge suppression protection standard

• When code dictates fusing, a slow blow fuse or type C/D breaker should 
be used to address inrush current

• Consult factory if in-luminaire fusing is required

• Maximum 10V Source Current: 20 LED (350mA): 10mA;  
20LED (525 & 700 mA) and 40-120 LED: 0.15mA

REGULATORY & VOLUNTARY QUALIFICATIONS
• cULus Listed 

• Suitable for wet locations

• Meets FCC Part 15, Subpart B, Class A limits for conducted and radiated 
emissions

• Enclosure rated IP66 per IEC 60529 when ordered without P or PML 
options

• ANSI C136.2 10kV surge protection, tested in accordance with IEEE/ANSI 
C62.41.2

• Luminaire and finish endurance tested to withstand 5,000 hours of 
elevated ambient salt fog conditions as defined in ASTM Standard B 117

• DLC qualified with select SKUs. Refer to 
https://www.designlights.org/search/ for most current information

• Meets Buy American requirements within ARRA
•       CA RESIDENTS WARNING: Cancer and Reproductive Harm –  

       www.p65warnings.ca.gov

Cree Edge® LED Security Wall Pack Luminaire

Electrical Data*

LED Count 
(x10)

System 
Watts
120-480V

Total Current (A)

120V 208V 240V 277V 347V 480V

350mA

02 25 0.21 0.13 0.11 0.10 0.08 0.07

04 46 0.36 0.23 0.21 0.20 0.15 0.12

06 66 0.52 0.31 0.28 0.26 0.20 0.15

08 90 0.75 0.44 0.38 0.34 0.26 0.20

10 110 0.92 0.53 0.47 0.41 0.32 0.24

12 130 1.10 0.63 0.55 0.48 0.38 0.28

525mA 

02 37 0.30 0.19 0.17 0.16 0.12 0.10

04 70 0.58 0.34 0.31 0.28 0.21 0.16

06 101 0.84 0.49 0.43 0.38 0.30 0.22

08 133 1.13 0.66 0.58 0.51 0.39 0.28

700mA

02 50 0.41 0.25 0.22 0.20 0.15 0.12

04 93 0.78 0.46 0.40 0.36 0.27 0.20

06 134 1.14 0.65 0.57 0.50 0.39 0.29

* Electrical data at 25˚C (77˚F). Actual wattage may differ by +/- 10% when operating between 120-277V or 347-480V 
+/- 10%

Cree Edge® Series Ambient Adjusted Lumen Maintenance1

Ambient Initial
LMF

25K hr
Reported2

LMF

50K hr
Reported2

LMF

75K hr
Estimated3

LMF

100K hr
Estimated3

LMF

5˚C (41˚F) 1.04 1.01 0.99 0.98 0.96

10˚C (50˚F) 1.03 1.00 0.98 0.97 0.95

15˚C (59˚F) 1.02 0.99 0.97 0.96 0.94

20˚C (68˚F) 1.01 0.98 0.96 0.95 0.93

25˚C (77˚F) 1.00 0.97 0.95 0.94 0.92

1 Lumen maintenance values at 25˚C (77˚F) are calculated per IES TM-21 based on IES LM-80 report data for the LED 
package and in-situ luminaire testing. Luminaire ambient temperature factors (LATF) have been applied to all lumen 
maintenance factors. Please refer to the  Temperature Zone Reference Document for outdoor average nighttime ambient 
conditions.
2 In accordance with IES TM-21, Reported values represent interpolated values based on time durations that are
up to 6x the tested duration in the IES LM-80 report for the LED
3 Estimated values are calculated and represent time durations that exceed the 6x test duration of the LED

SEC-EDG-3M-WM-04-E-ULXX--525-57K8 WAREA
QTY LABEL DESCRIPTION

US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234
US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234

Rev. Date: V3 01/28/2021

Ordering Information
Fully assembled luminaire is composed of two components that must be ordered separately:
Example: Mount: OSQ-ML-B-AA-BK  + Luminaire: OSQM-B-4L-30K7-2M-UL-NM-BK

Mount (Luminaire must be ordered separately)*

OSQ-

OSQ-ML-B-AA Adjustable Arm 
OSQ-ML-B-DA Direct Arm 
OSQ-ML-B-TSP Transportation Mount (stainless steel; do not specify color) 
OSQ-ML-B-TM Trunnion Mount 

Color 
Options:

SV Silver 
BK Black

BZ Bronze
WH White

OSQ Series
OSQ™ LED Area/Flood Luminaire featuring Cree TrueWhite® Technology – Medium & Large

Luminaire (Mount must be ordered separately)

OSQ B

Family Size Series
Lumen 
Package

CCT/CRI Optic Voltage Mount
Color 
Options

Controls** Options

OSQ M
Medium
L
Large

B Medium
4L
4,000 
Lumens
6L
6,000 
Lumens
9L
9,000 
Lumens
11L
11,000 
Lumens
16L
16,000 
Lumens

Large
22L
22,000 
Lumens
30L
30,000 
Lumens

30K7
3000K,
70 CRI
40K7
4000K,
70 CRI
50K9
5000K,
90 CRI
57K7
5700K,
70 CRI

Asymmetric
2M*
Type II Medium
3M*
Type III Medium
4M*
Type IV Medium

UL
Universal
120-277V

UH
Universal
347-480V
- Not

available
with 4L or
6L lumen
packages

NM
No Mount
- Must specify mount 
from table above
- Mount ships 
separately

Utility Mounts
UA
45˚ Utility Arm w/8' 
14/3 AWG Cord 
Side Exit
- Includes N option
UB
45˚ Utility Arm w/8' 
14/3 AWG Cord 
End Exit
- Includes N option
UC 
Direct Arm Mount
- Standard 2" (51mm) 
bolt spacing
- Shipped separately
- Field-installed
- Includes N option
UD
Trunnion Mount
- Adjustable from 
0-45˚ in 15˚ 
increments
- Includes N option

BK
Black

BZ
Bronze

SV
Silver 

WH
White

PML  Programmable Multi-Level, up to 40' 
Mounting Height
- Refer to PML spec sheet for details
 - Intended for downlight applications
at 0˚ tilt

PML2  Programmable Multi-Level, 10-30' 
  Mounting Height
- Refer to PML spec sheet for details
 - Intended for downlight applications
at 0˚ tilt

Q9/Q8/Q7/Q6/Q5/Q4/Q3/Q2/Q1  
Field Adjustable Output

- Must select Q9, Q8, Q7, Q6, Q5, Q4, Q3, 
Q2, or Q1

- Offers full range adjustability
- Refer to pages 12-18 for power and 

lumen values
- Not available with PML or PML2 options

X8/X7/X6/X5/X4/X3/X2/X1   
Locked Lumen Output

- Must select add X8, X7, X6, X5, X4, X3, 
X2, or X1

- Not available with 22L or 30L lumen 
packages

- Not available with PML or PML2 options
- Lumen output is permanently locked to 

the setting selected
- Refer to pages 12-18 for power and 

lumen values

F  Fuse
- Compatible with 120V, 277V or 347V (phase to neutral)

- Consult factory if fusing is required for 208V, 240V or 480V

(phase to phase)

- Refer to PML spec sheet for availability with PML options

- When code dictates fusing, use time delay fuse

N  Utility Label and NEMA® 7-Pin Photocell Receptacle
- Included with UA, UB , UC and UD mounts

- External wattage label per ANSI C136.15

- 7-pin receptacle per ANSI C136.41

- Intended for downlight applications with maximum 45˚ tilt

- Factory connected 0-10V dim leads

- 7-conductor (NM mount), 3-conductor (UA/UB mounts), or

5-conductor (UC/UD mounts) cord exits luminaire 

- Requires photocell or shorting cap by others

R NEMA® 7-Pin Photocell Receptacle
- 7-pin receptacle per ANSI C136.41
- Intended for downlight applications with maximum 45˚ tilt
- Factory connected 0-10V dim leads
- 18" (457mm) seven-conductor cord exits luminaire
 - Requires photocell or shorting cap by others

RL Rotate Left
- LED and optic are rotated to the left
- Refer to RR/RL configuration diagram on page 19 for optic 

directionality
 - Not for use with symmetric optics

RR Rotate Right
- LED and optic are rotated to the right
- Refer to RR/RL configuration diagram on page 19 for optic 

directionality
- Not for use with symmetric optics

Symmetric
5M
Type V Medium
5N
Type V 
Narrow
5Q
Type V Square
N3
Narrow Flood
33
NEMA® 3x3
44
NEMA® 4x4
55
NEMA® 5x5
66 
NEMA® 6x6
75 
NEMA® 7x5

* Available with Backlight Shield when ordered with field-installed accessory (see table above)
** Luminaire comes standard with 0-10V dimming

Product Description
The OSQ™ Area/Flood luminaire blends extreme optical control, advanced thermal management 
and modern, clean aesthetics. Built to last, the housing is rugged cast aluminum with an integral, 
weathertight LED driver compartment. Versatile mounting configurations offer simple installation. 
Its slim, low-profile design minimizes wind load requirements and blends seamlessly into the site 
providing even, quality illumination. The 6L lumen package is a suitable upgrade for HID applications 
up to 250 Watt, and the 11L lumen package is a suitable upgrade for HID applications up to 400 Watt. 
The 22L lumen package is a suitable upgrade for HID applications up to 750 Watts, and the 30L lumen 
package is a suitable upgrade for HID applications up to 1000 Watts. 
Applications: Parking lots, walkways, campuses, car dealerships, office complexes, tunnels, 
underpasses, and internal roadways

Utilizes Cree TrueWhite® Technology on 5000K Luminaires

NanoOptic® Precision Delivery Grid™ optic

Assembled in the U.S.A. of U.S. and imported parts

Initial Delivered Lumens: 4,000 - 30,000

Efficacy: Up to 173 LPW

CRI: Minimum 70 CRI (3000K, 4000K & 5700K); 90 CRI (5000K)

CCT: 3000K, 4000K, 5000K, 5700K

Limited Warranty†: 10 years on luminaire; 10 years on Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish; up to 5 years for 
Synapse® accessories; 1 year on luminaire accessories

Performance Summary

OSQ-ML-B-DA and UC Mounts

8.1"
(205mm)

3.1"
(79mm)

19.0"
(482mm)

4.0"
(102mm)

4.9"
(124mm)

NEMA® 7-Pin Photocell
Receptacle location
(ordered as an option)

OSQM: 25.0" (635mm)
OSQL: 27.2" (691mm)

3.5"
(89mm)

† See http://creelighting.com/warranty for warranty terms. For Synapse accessories, consult Synapse spec sheets for details on warranty terms.

Luminaire Weight

OSQM 28.9 lbs. (13.1kg)

OSQL 32.4 lbs. (14.7kg)

* Reference EPA and pole configuration suitability data beginning on page 10

Note: Refer to page 11 for fixture mounting drill pattern. For additional mounts, refer 
to drawings beginning on page 19

US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234
US:  creelighting.com   (800) 236-6800
Canada:  creelighting-canada.com   (800) 473-1234

Product Specifications     
       
CREE TRUEWHITE® TECHNOLOGY
A revolutionary way to generate high-quality white light, Cree TrueWhite® Technology is 
a patented approach that delivers an exclusive combination of 90+ CRI, beautiful light 
characteristics and lifelong color consistency, all while maintaining high luminous efficacy – 
a true no compromise solution. 

CONSTRUCTION & MATERIALS
• Slim, low profile design minimizes wind load requirements

• Luminaire housing is rugged die cast aluminum with an integral, 
weathertight LED driver compartment and high-performance heat sink

• Convenient interlocking mounting method on direct arm and UC mounts. 
Mounting adaptor is rugged die cast aluminum and mounts to 3" (76mm) or larger 
square or round pole, secured by two 5/16-18 UNC bolts spaced on 2" (51mm) centers. 
Refer to page 11 for fixture mounting drill pattern.

• Mounting for the adjustable arm mount adaptor is rugged die cast 
aluminum and mounts to 2" (51mm) IP, 2.375" (60mm) O.D. tenon. UA and UB mounts 
are preset to 45˚

• Adjustable arm mount can be adjusted 180˚ in 2.5˚ increments. UA and UB mounts be 
field adjusted in 2.5˚ increments to a maximum tilt of 45˚

• Transportation mount is constructed of 316 stainless steel and mounts to surface with 
(4) 3/8" fasteners by others

• Trunnion mount is constructed of A500 and A1011 steel and is adjustable from 0-180˚ in 
15˚ degree increments. UD mount is adjustable from 0-45˚ in 15˚ degree increments, 
and is factory preset to 45˚. Trunnion mount secures to surface with (1) 3/4" bolt or (2) 
1/2" or 3/8" bolts

• Luminaires ordered with NM mount include 18" (340mm) 18/5 or 16/5 cord exiting the 
luminaire; when combined with N or R option, 18" (340mm) 18/7 or 16/7 cord is provided. 
UA and UB mounts include 8' (2.4m) 14/3 AWG SEOW black cord exiting the side of the 
mounting arm through watertight fitting (UA) or the end of the mounting arm (UB). 
UC mount includes 12" (305mm) 18/5 or 16/5 leads exiting the luminaire. UD mount 
includes 8' (2.4m) 14/3 cord exiting the luminaire

• Utility mounts (UA, UB, UC, UD) include Utility Label per ANSI C136.15 and 7-pin NEMA® 
Photocell Receptacle per ANSI C136.41

• Designed for uplight and downlight applications

• Exclusive Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish features an E-Coat epoxy primer with an 
ultra-durable powder topcoat, providing excellent resistance to corrosion, ultraviolet 
degradation and abrasion. Silver, bronze, black, and white are available

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
• Input Voltage: 120-277V or 347-480V, 50/60Hz, Class 1 drivers

• Power Factor:  > 0.9 at full load

• Total Harmonic Distortion: < 20% at full load

• Integral 10kV surge suppression protection standard

• When code dictates fusing, a slow blow fuse or type C/D breaker should be used to ad-
dress inrush current

• Designed with 0-10V dimming capabilities. Controls by others

• Refer to Dimming spec sheet for details

• Maximum 10V Source Current: 1.0mA

• Operating Temperature Range: -40˚C - +40˚C (-40˚F - +104˚F)

REGULATORY & VOLUNTARY QUALIFICATIONS
• cULus Listed (UL1598)

• Suitable for wet locations

• Meets NEMA C82.77 standards

• Drivers and LEDs are UL Recognized in accordance with UL8750

• Enclosure rated IP66 per IEC 60529 when ordered without N or R options

• Consult factory for CE Certified products

• Certified to ANSI C136.31-2018, 3G bridge and overpass vibration standards

• ANSI C136.2 10kV surge protection, tested in accordance with IEEE/ANSI C62.41.2

• Meets FCC Part 15, Subpart B, Class A limits for conducted and radiated emissions

• Luminaire and finish endurance tested to withstand 5,000 hours of elevated ambient salt 
fog conditions as defined in ASTM Standard B 117

• Meets Buy American requirements within ARRA

• RoHS compliant. Consult factory for additional details

• Dark Sky Friendly, IDA Approved when ordered with 30K CCT and direct or transportation 
mounts only. Please refer to https://www.darksky.org/our-work/lighting/lighting-for-
industry/fsa/fsa-products/ for most current information

•        CA RESIDENTS WARNING: Cancer and Reproductive Harm –  
       www.p65warnings.ca.gov

Electrical Data*

Input Power
Designator

Optic
System 
Watts
120-480V

Utility 
Label 
Wattage

Total Current (A)

120V 208V 240V 277V 347V 480V

4L** All 29 30 0.25 0.14 0.12 0.11 N/A N/A

6L**
Asymmetric 48 50 0.41 0.23 0.20 0.17 N/A N/A

Symmetric 39 40 0.33 0.19 0.17 0.14 N/A N/A

9L All 60 60 0.51 0.29 0.25 0.22 0.18 0.13

11L All 72 70 0.62 0.36 0.31 0.27 0.21 0.16

16L All 104 100 0.89 0.51 0.43 0.39 0.31 0.22

22L All 132 130 1.12 0.63 0.55 0.47 0.39 0.28

30L All 202 200 1.72 0.96 0.84 0.72 0.60 0.43

Weight

Mount Housing
Medium Large

OSQ-ML-B-AA 28.4 lbs. (12.9kg) 32.0 lbs. (14.5kg)
OSQ-ML-B-DA 28.9 lbs. (13.1kg) 32.4 lbs. (14.7kg)
OSQ-ML-B-TSP 42.0 lbs. (19.1kg) 44.0 lbs. (20.0kg)
OSQ-ML-B-TM 32.6 lbs. (14.8kg) 36.1 lbs. (16.4kg)
UA 29.5 lbs. (13.4kg) 33.1 lbs. (15.0kg)
UB 29.5 lbs. (13.4kg) 33.1 lbs. (15.0kg)
UC 28.9 lbs (13.1kg) 32.4 lbs. (14.7kg)
UD 32.6 lbs. (14.8kg) 36.1 lbs. (16.4kg)

OSQ™ LED Area/Flood Luminaire featuring Cree TrueWhite® Technology – Medium & Large

* Electrical data at 25˚C (77˚F). Actual wattage may differ by +/- 10% when operating between 120-277V or 347-480V+/-10% 
** Available with UL voltage only

1 Lumen maintenance values at 25˚C (77˚F) are calculated per IES TM-21 based on IES LM-80 report data for the LED 
package and in-situ luminaire testing. Luminaire ambient temperature factors (LATF) have been applied to all lumen 
maintenance factors. Please refer to the  Temperature Zone Reference Document  for outdoor average nighttime ambient 
conditions.
2 In accordance with IES TM-21, Reported values represent interpolated values based on time durations that are
up to 6x the tested duration in the IES LM-80 report for the LED.
3 Estimated values are calculated and represent time durations that exceed the 6x test duration of the LED.

OSQ Series Ambient Adjusted Lumen Maintenance1

Ambient Optic Initial
LMF

25K hr
Reported2

LMF

50K hr
Reported2

LMF

75K hr
Reported2/
Estimated3

LMF

100K hr
Reported2/
Estimated3

LMF

5˚C (41˚F)
Asymmetric 1.04 1.03 1.01 0.992 0.972

Symmetric 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.053 1.053

10˚C 
(50˚F)

Asymmetric 1.03 1.02 1.00 0.982 0.962

Symmetric 1.04 1.03 1.03 1.033 1.033

15˚C 
(59˚F)

Asymmetric 1.02 1.01 0.99 0.972 0.952

Symmetric 1.02 1.02 1.02 1.023 1.023

20˚C 
(68˚F)

Asymmetric 1.01 1.00 0.98 0.962 0.942

Symmetric 1.01 1.01 1.01 1.013 1.013

25˚C 
(77˚F)

Asymmetric 1.00 0.99 0.97 0.952 0.932

Symmetric 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.003 1.003

Accessories 
Field-Installed

Backlight Shield (Front Facing Optics)
OSQ-BLSMF (Medium)
OSQ-BLSLF (Large)
Backlight Shield (Rotated Optics)
OSQ-BLSMR (Medium)
OSQ-BLSLR (Large)
Bird Spikes
OSQ-MED-BRDSPK
OSQ-LG-BRDSPK

Hand-Held Remote
XA-SENSREM
- For successful
implementation of the
programmable multi-level
option, a minimum of one
hand-held remote is
required

Shorting Cap
XA-XSLSHRT

Synapse Wireless Control Accessories

Twist-Lock Lighting Controller
TL7-B2 
- Suitable for 120-277V (UL) voltage only
- Requires NEMA/ANSI C136.41 7-Pin
   Dimming Receptacle 
- Not for use with PML or Q options
- Provides On/Off switching, dimming, power
   metering, digital sensor input, and status
   monitoring of luminaires
- Refer to TL7-B2 spec sheet for details
SimplySNAP Central Base Station
CBSSW-450-002
- Includes On-Site Controller (SS450-002) and
   5-button switch
- Indoor and Outdoor rated
- Refer to CBSSW-450-002 spec sheet for details
Synapse Wireless Sensor
WSN-DPM
- Motion and light sensor
- Control multiple zones
- Refer to WSN-DPM spec sheet for details

SimplySNAP On-Site Controller
SS450-002
- Verizon® LTE-enabled
- Designed for indoor applications
- Refer to SS450-002 spec sheet for details
Building Management System (BMS) Gateway
BMS-GW-002
- Required for BACnet integration
- Refer to BMS-GW-002 spec sheet for details
Outdoor Antennas
(Optional, for increased range, 8dB gain)
KIT-ANT420SM
- Kit includes antenna, 20' cable and bracket
KIT-ANT360 
- Kit includes antenna, 30' cable and bracket
KIT-ANT600
- Kit includes antenna, 50' cable and bracket
- Refer to Outdoor antenna spec sheet for
   details

Product Specifications
SYNAPSE® SIMPLYSNAP INTELLIGENT CONTROL
The Synapse SimplySNAP platform is a highly intuitive connected lighting solution featuring zone 
dimming, motion sensing, and daylight harvesting with utility-grade power monitoring and support of 
up to 1000 nodes per gateway. The system features a reliable and robust self-healing mesh network 
with a browser-based interface that runs on smartphones, tablets, and PCs. The Twist-Lock Lighting 
Controller (TL7-B2) and Site Controller (SS450-002) take the OSQ Series to a new performance 
plateau, providing extreme energy productivity, code compliance and a better light experience.

OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-3M-UL-XX-Q9 + OS-
Q0BLSMF

1 RA5

OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-3M-UL-XX-Q3 + OS-
Q0BLSMF

5 RA7

OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-4M-UL-XX-Q91 RB

OSQ-ML-DA-XX +OSQM-B-16L-57K7-4M-UL-XX-Q9 + OSQ-
BLSMF

6 RB5

CANOPY
QTY LABEL DESCRIPTION

T  (800) 236-6800    F  (262) 504-5415US:  lighting.cree.com T  (800) 473-1234    F  (800) 890-7507Canada:  www.cree.com/canada

Rev. Date: V2 10/26/2018

304 Series™
LED Recessed Canopy Luminaire

Ordering Information
Example: CAN-304-5M-RS-04-E-UL-SV-350

CAN-304 E

Product Optic Mounting
LED Count 
(x10)

Series Voltage
Color  
Options

Drive Current Options

CAN-304 5M
Type V Medium
5S
Type V Short
PS
Petroleum Symmetric
SL
Sparkle Petroleum

RS
Recessed Single Skin
RD
Recessed Double Skin

04
06

E UL
Universal
120-277V
UH
Universal
347-480V

BK
Black
BZ
Bronze
SV
Silver 
WH
White

350
350mA
525
525mA
700*

700mA

DIM 0-10V Dimming
 - Control by others
 - Refer to Dimming spec sheet for details
 - Can't exceed specified drive current

F Fuse
 - When code dictates fusing use time delay fuse
 - Refer to PML spec sheet for availability with PML 
options

PML Programmable Multi-Level
 - Refer to PML spec sheet for details

40K 4000K Color Temperature
 - Minimum 70 CRI
 - Color temperature per luminaire

* 60 LED luminaire requires marked spacing: 48" x 24" x 6" (1,219mm x 610mm x 152mm); 48" (1,219mm) center-to-center of adjacent luminaires, 24" (610mm) luminaire center to side building member, 6" (152mm) top of luminaire to 
  overhead building member

Product Description
Luminaire housing is constructed from rugged die cast aluminum components (RS Mount) or 
die cast and extruded aluminum components (RD Mount). LED driver is mounted in a sealed 
weathertight center chamber that allows for access from below the fixture. Luminaire mounts 
directly to the canopy deck and is secured in place with die cast aluminum trim frame. Luminaire 
housing is provided with factory applied foam gasket that provides a watertight seal between 
luminaire housing and canopy deck. Suitable for use in single or double skin canopies with 16" 
(406 mm) wide panels. Designed for canopies of 19-22 gauge (maximum 0.040" [1 mm] thickness). 
Applications: Petroleum stations, convenience stores, drive-thru banks and restaurants, retail  
and grocery

Patented NanoOptic® Product Technology

Assembled in the U.S.A. of U.S. and imported parts

CRI: Minimum 70 CRI

CCT: 4000K (+/- 300K), 5700K (+/- 500K) standard

Limited Warranty†: 10 years on luminaire/10 years on Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish

Performance Summary

14"SQ
(356mm)

2.2"
(56mm)

8.7"
(220mm)

9.6"
(244mm)

2.2"
(56mm)

8.7"
(220mm)

9.6"
(244mm)

Multi-level Sensor location 
(ordered as an option)

RS Mount

† See http://lighting.cree.com/warranty for warranty terms

Accessories 

Field-Installed

Hand-Held Remote
XA-SENSREM
- For successful implementation of the programmable multi-level option, a minimum of one hand-held remote is required

Weight

22.0 lbs. (9.9kg)

T  (800) 236-6800    F  (262) 504-5415US:  lighting.cree.com T  (800) 473-1234    F  (800) 890-7507Canada:  www.cree.com/canada

Product Specifications

CONSTRUCTION & MATERIALS
• RS Mount luminaire housing is constructed from rugged die cast 

aluminum and incorporates integral, high performance heatsink fins 
specifically designed for LED canopy applications

• RD Mount luminaire housing is constructed from rugged die cast 
aluminum and features high performance extruded aluminum heatsinks 
specifically designed for LED canopy applications

• LED driver is mounted in a sealed weathertight center chamber that 
allows for access from below the luminaire

• Field adjustable drive current between 350mA, 525mA and 700mA on 
Non-IC rated luminaires

• Luminaire housing provided with factory applied foam gasket and 
provides for a watertight seal between luminaire housing and canopy 
deck

• Mounts directly to the canopy deck and is secured in place with a die 
cast aluminum trim frame

• RS mount includes integral junction box which allows ease of installation 
without need to open luminaire

• Suitable for use in single (RS Mount) or double (RD Mount) skin canopies 
with 16" (406mm) wide panels

• Designed for canopies of 19-22 gauge (maximum 0.040" [1mm] 
thickness)

• See 228 Series™ canopy luminaires for canopies using 12" (305mm) 
deck sections

• Exclusive Colorfast DeltaGuard® finish features an E-Coat epoxy primer 
with an ultra-durable powder topcoat, providing excellent resistance to 
corrosion, ultraviolet degradation and abrasion. Black, bronze, silver, 
and white are available

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
• Input Voltage:  120-277V or 347-480V, 50/60Hz, Class 1 drivers

• Power Factor: > 0.9 at full load

• Total Harmonic Distortion: < 20% at full load

• Integral weathertight electrical box with terminal strips (12Ga-20Ga) for 
easy power hookup

• Integral 10kV surge suppression protection standard

• When code dictates fusing, a slow blow fuse or type C/D breaker should 
be used to address inrush current 

• 10V Source Current: 0.15mA

REGULATORY & VOLUNTARY QUALIFICATIONS
• cULus Listed 

• Suitable for wet locations

• Meets FCC Part 15 standards for conducted and radiated emissions

• Enclosure rated IP66 per IEC 60529

• 10kV surge suppression protection tested in accordance with IEEE/ANSI 
C62.41.2

• Luminaire and finish endurance tested to withstand 5,000 hours of 
elevated ambient salt fog conditions as defined in ASTM Standard B 117

• DLC qualified when ordered with PS or SL optics and 525 or 700mA drive 
current. Please refer to www.designlights.org/QPL for most current 
information

• RoHS Compliant. Consult factory for additional details

• Meets Buy American requirements within ARRA
•       CA RESIDENTS WARNING: Cancer and Reproductive Harm –  

       www.p65warnings.ca.gov

304 Series™ LED Recessed Canopy Luminaire

1 Lumen maintenance values at 25˚C are calculated per TM-21 based on LM-80 data and in-situ luminaire testing. 
  Luminaire ambient temperature factors (LATF) have been applied to all lumen maintenance factors. Please refer to the 
  Temperature Zone Reference Document for outdoor average nighttime ambient conditions
2 In accordance with IESNA TM-21-11, Projected Values represent interpolated value based on time durations that 
 are within six times (6X) the IESNA LM-80-08 total test duration (in hours) for the device under testing ((DUT) i.e. the  
 packaged LED chip)

3 In accordance with IESNA TM-21-11, Calculated Values represent time durations that exceed six times (6X) the IESNA  
 LM-80-08 total test duration (in hours) for the device under testing ((DUT) i.e. the packaged LED chip)

Electrical Data*

LED Count 
(x10)

System 
Watts
120-480V

Total Current (A)

120V 208V 240V 277V 347V 480V

350mA

04 46 0.39 0.24 0.22 0.21 0.15 0.12

06 69 0.57 0.34 0.30 0.27 0.21 0.16

525mA

04 71 0.59 0.35 0.31 0.28 0.21 0.16

06 101 0.84 0.49 0.43 0.38 0.30 0.22

700mA 

04 94 0.79 0.46 0.40 0.36 0.28 0.21

06 135 1.14 0.65 0.57 0.50 0.40 0.29

* Electrical data at 25˚C (77˚F)

304 Series™ Ambient Adjusted Lumen Maintenance1

Ambient Initial
LMF

25K hr
Projected2

LMF

50K hr
Projected2

LMF

75K hr
Calculated3 
LMF

100K hr
Calculated3 
LMF

5˚C (41˚F) 1.04 0.99 0.97 0.95 0.93

10˚C (50˚F) 1.03 0.98 0.96 0.94 0.92

15˚C (59˚F) 1.02 0.97 0.95 0.93 0.91

20˚C (68˚F) 1.01 0.96 0.94 0.92 0.90

25˚C (77˚F) 1.00 0.95 0.93 0.91 0.89

CAN-304-SL-RS-06-E-UL-WH-700-57K20 CR

THORNTONS P2115
BURR RIDGE, IL

RL-7953-S1-R1



m
1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240

513-574-9500   redleonard.co

PROJECT NAME:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ANY SITE PLAN(S), FLOOR PLAN(S), RENDERING(S), LIGHTING LAYOUT(S) AND PHOTOMETRIC PLAN(S) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY PROJECT(S) CREATED/PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC., ARE ONLY INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATION AND QUOTING PURPOSES ONLY. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES HAS THE RIGHT TO USE THIRD PARTY LASERS, SCANNERS, AND CAMERAS BUT ACTUAL PROJECT CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ACCURACY OF
MEASUREMENTS MAY DIFFER FROM THESE OR ANY PARAMETERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR WHAT IS CREATED/PRODUCED IN THESE RECREATIONS. THIS INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE
USE OF, INSTALLATION OF AND/OR INTEGRITY OF EXISTING BUILDING(S), SURROUNDING AREA FOR PRODUCT(S) SUCH AS EXISTING POLE(S), ANCHOR BOLT(S), BASE(S), ARCHITECTURAL AND SIGNAGE STRUCTURE(S), LANDSCAPING
PLAN(S), LIGHTING PLAN(S), FIXTURE SELECTION(S) AND PLACEMENT, MATERIAL(S), COLOR ACCURACY, TEXTURE(S), AND ANYTHING ATTRIBUTED TO PHOTO REALISM THAT IS CREATED. FURTHERMORE, RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES
INC., DOES NOT ASSUME LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY PURCHASES MADE BY CLIENT BEFORE, DURING, OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PUBLISHED WORK. THE CUSTOMER, ITS RELATIVE AFFILIATES, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER
PERSON(S) IN VIEWING OF THIS PRODUCT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL CODES, PERMITS, RESTRICTIONS, INSTRUCTIONS, PURCHASES, AND INSTALLATIONS OF OBJECTS VIEWED
WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT(S) OR PROJECT(S). SYMBOLS ARE NOT DRAWN TO SCALE. SIZE IS FOR CLARITY PURPOSES ONLY. SIZES AND DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE, ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS MAY VARY. DRAWINGS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION USE. THIS DOCUMENT, ANY RED LEONARD DRAWING(S), OR PROJECT(S) IS NOT TO BE USED AND/OR INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, BUT FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENTATION AND/OR OTHER ARTICLES PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM JAYME J. LEONARD IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

THORNTONS P2115
BURR RIDGE, IL

RL-7953-S1-R1



m
1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240

513-574-9500   redleonard.co

PROJECT NAME:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ANY SITE PLAN(S), FLOOR PLAN(S), RENDERING(S), LIGHTING LAYOUT(S) AND PHOTOMETRIC PLAN(S) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY PROJECT(S) CREATED/PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC., ARE ONLY INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATION AND QUOTING PURPOSES ONLY. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES HAS THE RIGHT TO USE THIRD PARTY LASERS, SCANNERS, AND CAMERAS BUT ACTUAL PROJECT CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ACCURACY OF
MEASUREMENTS MAY DIFFER FROM THESE OR ANY PARAMETERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR WHAT IS CREATED/PRODUCED IN THESE RECREATIONS. THIS INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE
USE OF, INSTALLATION OF AND/OR INTEGRITY OF EXISTING BUILDING(S), SURROUNDING AREA FOR PRODUCT(S) SUCH AS EXISTING POLE(S), ANCHOR BOLT(S), BASE(S), ARCHITECTURAL AND SIGNAGE STRUCTURE(S), LANDSCAPING
PLAN(S), LIGHTING PLAN(S), FIXTURE SELECTION(S) AND PLACEMENT, MATERIAL(S), COLOR ACCURACY, TEXTURE(S), AND ANYTHING ATTRIBUTED TO PHOTO REALISM THAT IS CREATED. FURTHERMORE, RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES
INC., DOES NOT ASSUME LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY PURCHASES MADE BY CLIENT BEFORE, DURING, OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PUBLISHED WORK. THE CUSTOMER, ITS RELATIVE AFFILIATES, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER
PERSON(S) IN VIEWING OF THIS PRODUCT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL CODES, PERMITS, RESTRICTIONS, INSTRUCTIONS, PURCHASES, AND INSTALLATIONS OF OBJECTS VIEWED
WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT(S) OR PROJECT(S). SYMBOLS ARE NOT DRAWN TO SCALE. SIZE IS FOR CLARITY PURPOSES ONLY. SIZES AND DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE, ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS MAY VARY. DRAWINGS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION USE. THIS DOCUMENT, ANY RED LEONARD DRAWING(S), OR PROJECT(S) IS NOT TO BE USED AND/OR INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, BUT FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENTATION AND/OR OTHER ARTICLES PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM JAYME J. LEONARD IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

THORNTONS P2115
BURR RIDGE, IL

RL-7953-S1-R1



m
1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240

513-574-9500   redleonard.co

PROJECT NAME:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ANY SITE PLAN(S), FLOOR PLAN(S), RENDERING(S), LIGHTING LAYOUT(S) AND PHOTOMETRIC PLAN(S) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY PROJECT(S) CREATED/PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC., ARE ONLY INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATION AND QUOTING PURPOSES ONLY. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES HAS THE RIGHT TO USE THIRD PARTY LASERS, SCANNERS, AND CAMERAS BUT ACTUAL PROJECT CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ACCURACY OF
MEASUREMENTS MAY DIFFER FROM THESE OR ANY PARAMETERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR WHAT IS CREATED/PRODUCED IN THESE RECREATIONS. THIS INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE
USE OF, INSTALLATION OF AND/OR INTEGRITY OF EXISTING BUILDING(S), SURROUNDING AREA FOR PRODUCT(S) SUCH AS EXISTING POLE(S), ANCHOR BOLT(S), BASE(S), ARCHITECTURAL AND SIGNAGE STRUCTURE(S), LANDSCAPING
PLAN(S), LIGHTING PLAN(S), FIXTURE SELECTION(S) AND PLACEMENT, MATERIAL(S), COLOR ACCURACY, TEXTURE(S), AND ANYTHING ATTRIBUTED TO PHOTO REALISM THAT IS CREATED. FURTHERMORE, RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES
INC., DOES NOT ASSUME LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY PURCHASES MADE BY CLIENT BEFORE, DURING, OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PUBLISHED WORK. THE CUSTOMER, ITS RELATIVE AFFILIATES, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER
PERSON(S) IN VIEWING OF THIS PRODUCT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL CODES, PERMITS, RESTRICTIONS, INSTRUCTIONS, PURCHASES, AND INSTALLATIONS OF OBJECTS VIEWED
WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT(S) OR PROJECT(S). SYMBOLS ARE NOT DRAWN TO SCALE. SIZE IS FOR CLARITY PURPOSES ONLY. SIZES AND DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE, ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS MAY VARY. DRAWINGS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION USE. THIS DOCUMENT, ANY RED LEONARD DRAWING(S), OR PROJECT(S) IS NOT TO BE USED AND/OR INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, BUT FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENTATION AND/OR OTHER ARTICLES PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM JAYME J. LEONARD IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

THORNTONS P2115
BURR RIDGE, IL

RL-7953-S1-R1



m
1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240

513-574-9500   redleonard.co

PROJECT NAME:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ANY SITE PLAN(S), FLOOR PLAN(S), RENDERING(S), LIGHTING LAYOUT(S) AND PHOTOMETRIC PLAN(S) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY PROJECT(S) CREATED/PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC., ARE ONLY INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATION AND QUOTING PURPOSES ONLY. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES HAS THE RIGHT TO USE THIRD PARTY LASERS, SCANNERS, AND CAMERAS BUT ACTUAL PROJECT CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ACCURACY OF
MEASUREMENTS MAY DIFFER FROM THESE OR ANY PARAMETERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR WHAT IS CREATED/PRODUCED IN THESE RECREATIONS. THIS INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE
USE OF, INSTALLATION OF AND/OR INTEGRITY OF EXISTING BUILDING(S), SURROUNDING AREA FOR PRODUCT(S) SUCH AS EXISTING POLE(S), ANCHOR BOLT(S), BASE(S), ARCHITECTURAL AND SIGNAGE STRUCTURE(S), LANDSCAPING
PLAN(S), LIGHTING PLAN(S), FIXTURE SELECTION(S) AND PLACEMENT, MATERIAL(S), COLOR ACCURACY, TEXTURE(S), AND ANYTHING ATTRIBUTED TO PHOTO REALISM THAT IS CREATED. FURTHERMORE, RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES
INC., DOES NOT ASSUME LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY PURCHASES MADE BY CLIENT BEFORE, DURING, OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PUBLISHED WORK. THE CUSTOMER, ITS RELATIVE AFFILIATES, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER
PERSON(S) IN VIEWING OF THIS PRODUCT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL CODES, PERMITS, RESTRICTIONS, INSTRUCTIONS, PURCHASES, AND INSTALLATIONS OF OBJECTS VIEWED
WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT(S) OR PROJECT(S). SYMBOLS ARE NOT DRAWN TO SCALE. SIZE IS FOR CLARITY PURPOSES ONLY. SIZES AND DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE, ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS MAY VARY. DRAWINGS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION USE. THIS DOCUMENT, ANY RED LEONARD DRAWING(S), OR PROJECT(S) IS NOT TO BE USED AND/OR INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, BUT FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENTATION AND/OR OTHER ARTICLES PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM JAYME J. LEONARD IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

THORNTONS P2115
BURR RIDGE, IL

RL-7953-S1-R1



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

4400 PROTOTYPE

4400 Square Foot
Convenience Store

Prototype

BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

BEER COOLER

CASH WRAP

MARKET

FREEZER

FOOD AND BEVERAGE

STOCK ROOM

MEN’S 
RESTROOM

WOMEN’S 
RESTROOM

BEVERAGE COOLER

4400 PROTOTYPE
FLOOR PLAN (WITH REAR ENTRY) 



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

4400 PROTOTYPE
FRONT ELEVATIONS

LOUVER SYSTEM

THORNTONS SIGNAGE

NICHIHA DESIGNER SERIES
STYLE: ILLUMINATION 
COLOR: PANTONE RED 
PMS 186 RED

ALUMINUM TRELLIS

NICHIHA BRICK SERIES
STYLE: PLYMOUTH BRICK
COLOR: CRIMSON

NICHIHA SILL-CHISELED SYSTEM
COLOR: MATCH KURASTONE

NICHIHA KURASTONE SERIES
STYLE: STACKSTONE
COLOR: DESERT

METAL COPING

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

FRONT ELEVATION

17
'-0

"

100'-0"

24
'-0

"



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

4400 PROTOTYPE
REAR ELEVATION (WITH REAR ENTRY AND WITH SCREEN)

REAR ELEVATION

PREFINISHED ACM PANEL
COLOR: PANTONE RED PMS 186 RED

NICHIHA DESIGNER SERIES
STYLE: ILLUMINATION 
COLOR: PANTONE RED 
PMS 186 RED

METAL COPING

NICHIHA BRICK SERIES
STYLE: PLYMOUTH BRICK
COLOR: CRIMSON

NICHIHA SILL-CHISELED SYSTEM
COLOR: MATCH KURASTONE

NICHIHA KURASTONE SERIES
STYLE: STACKSTONE
COLOR: DESERT

THORNTON’S SIGNAGE

MECHANICAL ROOF SCREEN



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

4400 PROTOTYPE
SIDE ELEVATION (WITH REAR ENTRY AND WITH SCREEN)

SIDE ELEVATION

NICHIHA DESIGNER SERIES
STYLE: ILLUMINATION 
COLOR: PANTONE RED 
PMS 186 RED METAL COPING

NICHIHA BRICK SERIES
STYLE: PLYMOUTH BRICK
COLOR: CRIMSON

NICHIHA SILL-CHISELED SYSTEM
COLOR: MATCH KURASTONE

NICHIHA KURASTONE SERIES
STYLE: STACKSTONE
COLOR: DESERT

THORNTON’S SIGNAGE

ALUMINUM TRELLIS
THORNTON’S SIGNAGE

MECHANICAL ROOF SCREEN



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

4400 PROTOTYPE
SIDE ELEVATION (WITH REAR ENTRY AND WITH SCREEN)

SIDE ELEVATION

NICHIHA DESIGNER SERIES
STYLE: ILLUMINATION 
COLOR: PANTONE RED 
PMS 186 REDMETAL COPING

NICHIHA BRICK SERIES
STYLE: PLYMOUTH BRICK
COLOR: CRIMSON

NICHIHA SILL-CHISELED SYSTEM
COLOR: MATCH KURASTONE

NICHIHA KURASTONE SERIES
STYLE: STACKSTONE
COLOR: DESERT

THORNTON’S SIGNAGE

ALUMINUM TRELLIS

MECHANICAL ROOF SCREEN

THORNTON’S SIGNAGE



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

EXTERIOR ELEVATION
FUEL CANOPY

SIDE ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION

FIBER CEMENT 
PANEL SYSTEM

FUEL PUMP

BOLLARD

THORNTONS 
SIGNAGE

FIBER CEMENT 
PANEL SYSTEM

GAS PUMP

BOLLARD

THORNTONS 
SIGNAGE

FIRE EXTINGUISHER 
CABINET OR MENU 
HOLDER

SPEAKER

SQUEEGEE 
BUCKET

INTERCOM 
CALL BUTTONS 
AND SIGN

FIBER CEMENT 
WATER TABLE

14
'-6

"

4'
6"

19
'0

"



Luckett-Farley.com
©2019 Luckett & Farley. All Rights Reserved.

4400 PROTOTYPE
WASTE ENCLOSURE

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

WASTE GATE – WOODLAWN 
BROWN TREX SECLUSIONS 
COMPOSITE PANELS ON 
STEEEL FRAME

CEMENT FIBER BRICK PANELS

STONE WATERTABLE

4” PRECAST STONE CAP

CEMENT FIBER STONE WAINSCOT

6”X6” TUBE STEEL COLUMN, 
PAINTED SW 7041, VAN DYKE 
BROWN

WASTE GATE – WOODLAWN BROWN 
TREX SECLUSIONS COMPOSITE 
PANELS ON STEEEL FRAME

CEMENT FIBER BRICK PANELS

STONE WATERTABLE

4” PRECAST STONE CAP

CEMENT FIBER STONE WAINSCOT

4”X4” TUBE STEEL COLUMN, PAINTED 
SW 7041, VAN DYKE BROWN

CEMENT FIBER BRICK PANELS

STONE WATERTABLE

4” PRECAST STONE CAP

CEMENT FIBER STONE WAINSCOT

CEMENT FIBER BRICK PANELS

STONE WATERTABLE

4” PRECAST STONE CAP

CEMENT FIBER STONE WAINSCOT

BASTEEL GATE SYSTEMS
IN PATRICIAN BRONZE

BASTEEL GATE SYSTEMS IN
PATRICIAN BRONZE

21'-6"

8'
-2

"

18'-2"



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

1

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

Infinite possibilities, ideal solutions.

stratusunlimited.com
888.503.1569

SIGN CODE:

Sign Code info: No code information at this time.  
Building Signage: N/A

Freestanding Signs: N/A

Directional Signs: N/A 
Gas Canopy Signs: N/A 

Summary: 
Qty (1) 31” letterset @ 46.1 SF- Front of building
Qty (1) 20” letterset @ 17’ SF- Rear of building
Qty (1) 31” lettersets @ 46.1’ SF each – Canopy
Qty (1) Monument Signs @ 49.8 SF 

Additional Notes: 
None

SITE ADDRESS:

LOCATION NUMBER:

P2115

9115 Kingery Hwy
Burr Ridge, IL 60527



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

2

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

Scale: REFERENCE ONLYSITE PLAN

CANOPY

31" THORNTONS
41.3 quare feet

D/F MONUMENT
49.8 SQ FT

N S

W

E

BUILDING

17 SQ FT

20" THORNTONS

BUILDING

46.1 SQ FT

31" THORNTONS

CANOPY

31" THORNTONS
41.3 quare feet

D/F MONUMENT
49.8 SQ FT

UPDATED SITE PLAN



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

3

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

Scale: 3/16”=1’-0”

TYPICAL ELEVATIONS SHOWN FOR VIEWING PURPOSES;
ACTUAL ELEVATIONS TO BE PROVIDED

STANDARD 4400 ELEVATIONS
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL BUILDING FRONT ELEVATION

TYPICAL BUILDING REAR ELEVATION

31” Channel letterset 
on Backer 

20” Channel letterset 
on Backer 



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

4

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

2-1/2” x 4'-1” rule 2-1/2” x  8’-2-1/2” rule

T=31” N=21-1/2”

14’-9” copy 

2” above beam

12” raceway - behind backer

8” x 2” existing
steel tube

15’-2” backer

3’-1/2”
backer

FACES: 3/16” #7328 White acrylic

ILLUM. : White GE LED’s as required by manufacturer; Whips to be a minimum
of 6’-0” in length; POWER SUPPLIES TO BE HOUSED WITHIN RACEWAY 

TRIMCAP: 1” White jewelite

RETURNS: 5” deep .040 alum. returns painted GG White

INSTALL: Custom 12” high x 6” deep alum. raceway to house all electrical - Painted Black - 
all sides; Raceway mounted to 1/4” steel plate shelf provided at top edge of steel 
tube using stainless steel fasteners as required; 1” alum. flat bar to be used for back
bracing as necessary - painted Black to match raceway

LETTER BACKS: .063 alum. - prefinish White all sides

BACKER: .080 perforated alum. screen backer; Holes to be .50” diameter and are 11/16” 
on centers to allow for 48% visibility; Backer painted Metallic Silver front & back;
Backer to be mounted behind letters & will help to conceal raceway

CL-31-RW-PERF

Acrylic face

Trim cap

Aluminum returns

Aluminum backs

Raceway with
access lid

LED

12 volt jacketed
cable

Additional back bracing
as required

8”

8” x 2” 
steel frame

6”

12” raceway

2”

1” alum. flat bar
for backbracing as
required

Electronic power
 supply

1/2” seal tight strapped
to steel beam into bldg.

SECTION DETAIL:

Perf’d alum. backer

CONSTRUCTION
NOTES: 

ALL SIGNAGE IS REQUIRED TO HAVE EXTERNAL DISCONNECT SWITCHES 
AS REQUIRED BY NEC;

QUANTITY: (1) One channel letterset required for storefront elevation

Scale:1”=1’-0”

46.1 Square Feet

LED ILLUM. CHANNEL LETTERS

ALL PAINT FINISHES TO BE HIGH GLOSS
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED!

COLOR PALETTE

White 
#7328 White Acrylic

Raceway
Black

Metallic Silver
MP 33172 Silver Surfer

MANUFACTURER
NOTES: 

SIGNAGE MUST BE 3 WIRE

ELECTRICAL NOTE:

ILLINOIS:  Any channel letter sets must have
                seal tite connectors and housings
                per code



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

5

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

FACES: 3/16” #7328 White acrylic

ILLUM. : White GE LED’s as required by manufacturer; 
Whips to be a minimum of 6’-0” in length;
POWER SUPPLIES TO BE HOUSED WITHIN RACEWAY

TRIMCAP: 1” White jewelite

RETURNS: 5” deep .040 alum. returns painted GG White

INSTALL: 

LETTER BACKS: .063 alum. - prefinish White all sides

CONSTRUCTION
NOTES: 

ALL SIGNAGE IS REQUIRED TO HAVE EXTERNAL DISCONNECT
SWITCHES AS REQUIRED BY NEC

QUANTITY: (1) One Channel letterset required for rear elevation

T=20” 
N=19-1/8”

9’-6” 

21-1/2”

Standard 8” high x 8” deep alum. raceway to house all electrical - 
Painted to Grip Flex 585 Flame Red match wall surface
Raceway to be thru bolted into 2” alum. framework - 
framework provided by others

Section View: 
Scale: 3/4”=1’-0”

Acrylic face

Trim cap

Aluminum returns

Aluminum backs

LED illumination

12 volt jacketed
cable

Weep holes 1/4” dia.
exterior locations only

Electronic power
 supply

ENGINEERED DRAWING

MANUFACTURER
NOTES: 

SIGNAGE MUST BE 3 WIRE

Scale: 1”=1’-0”

17 Square Feet

LED ILLUM. CHANNEL LETTERS ELECTRICAL NOTE:

ILLINOIS:  Any channel letter sets must have
                seal tite connectors and housings
                per code

ALL PAINT FINISHES TO BE HIGH GLOSS
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED!

COLOR PALETTE

White 
#7328 White Acrylic

Raceway
Gripflex 585 Red

CL-20-RW



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

6

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

Scale: 3/16”=1’-0”TYPICAL RETAIL CANOPY ELEVATIONS 

CL-31

Left Side

SAMPLE PLAN VIEW - CANOPY
not to scale

Red backer area will be
Red aluminum panels 
provided by canopy supplier

Sloan Red LED border top edge of front and short ends
of canopy; Installed directly below the red flashing
NO BORDER WITHIN RED BACKER AREAS

Right Side

4’-0”

134'-0"

40'-0"40'-0"

16’-0”

Front Elevation

19’-0”
Typ.14’-6”

Typ.

Sloan Red LED border top edge of front and short ends
of canopy; Installed directly below the red flashing

NO BORDER WITHIN RED BACKER AREAS

ALL PAINT FINISHES TO BE HIGH GLOSS
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED!

COLOR PALETTE

Pantone 8600 C
Gray



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

7

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

2-1/2” x 4’-1” rule 2-1/2” x 8’-2-1/2” rule

T=31” N=21-1/2”

14’-9” copy 

2’-9-5/8”

Scale: 1”=1’-0”

41.3 Square Feet

ILLUM. CHANNEL LETTERS

FACES: 3/16” #7328 White acrylic

ILLUM. : White GE LED’s as required by manufacturer; Whips to be a minimum
of 6’-0” in length; POWER SUPPLIES HOUSED BEHIND CANOPY FASCIA

TRIMCAP: 1” White jewelite

RETURNS: 5” deep .040 alum. returns painted GG White

INSTALL: 

LETTER BACKS: .063 alum. - prefinish White all sides

ELECTRICAL NOTE:

ILLINOIS:  Any channel letter sets must have
                seal tite connectors and housings
                per code

ELECTRIC FEEDS NEED TO BE IN CENTER OF LETTERS

QUANTITY: (1) One required

CONSTRUCTION
NOTES: 

ALL SIGNAGE IS REQUIRED TO HAVE EXTERNAL DISCONNECT
SWITCHES AS REQUIRED BY NEC

MANUFACTURER
NOTES: 

SIGNAGE MUST BE 3 WIRE

ALL PAINT FINISHES TO BE HIGH GLOSS
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED!

COLOR PALETTE

White 
#7328 White Acrylic

Thru bolted flush to canopy fascia using all thread into blocking as required
12” standard length of threaded rod will be supplied unless otherwise noted
1/4” -3/8” threaded rod into blocking or Stratus approved equivalent

LED Illumination

Weep holes 1/4” dia.
exterior locations only

Trim cap

Aluminum returns

12 volt jacketed cable

*Non-corrosive
All thread fasteners

Acrylic face

Electronic power
 supply

Power supply
housing

Aluminum backs

FASCIA SECTION - SCALE:  3/4”=1’-0”

CL-31



Note

Note

PRINTS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF STRATUS.  THIS MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE USED, DUPLICATED, OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF STRATUS.

ADDRESS:

ORDER NUMBER:

SITE NUMBER:

ELECTRONIC FILE NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

PAGE NO.:stratusunlimited.com

8 8 8 . 5 0 3 .1 5 6 9

8959 Tyler Boulevard
Mentor, Ohio  44060

Rev # Req # Date/Artist DescriptionRev # Req # Date/Artist Description
Rev 7 000000 00/00/00 xxx1172331

G:\ACCOUNTS\T\THORNTON'S\2022\IL\P2115_Burr Ridge
9115 Kingery Hwy

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

83164

KEVIN HORNEP2115

8

CLIENT:
Original

REV 1

373887

376863

03/17/22 KW

04/06/22 CA

CABINET NOTE:

CABINET MUST INCLUDE LOCKING EXTERNAL DISCONNECT SWITCH
IN ILLINOIS & FLORIDA DUE TO CODE REQUIREMENTS

30” deep Fab’d alum. construction with 2” retainers-  All painted Black; 
Cabinet to sleeve overtop internal support pole & saddle weld into place as required
Sign cabinet provided to Thorntons by Sunshine Electronic Displays

CABINET:

HEADER
FACE:

Sunshine double pricer unit - 30” deep
Character height = 16”; Red & Green LED digit colors; 
Commodity panels are flat white polycarbonate panels 
w/ reverse weeded copy to match colors shown

PRICING
UNIT:

Internal White Sunshine LED lightstrips; 
Power supplies to be housed within cabinet

ILLUM.:

(2) Two gloss panned polycarbonate faces with reverse
sprayed graphics to match colors shown; Provided by Stratus

Fab’d aluminum framework for sign base w/ 3/4” treated plywood overlay
Stratus to furnish the alum. fab’d frame and plywood wrap the frame
Nichiha Desert Stone veneer installed over framework 
Stone thickness is approx. 3/4” provided and installed by others;
Stone veneer provided & installed by others

BASE &
COLUMNS:

SUPPORT: Cabinet to sleeve overtop internal support;
Direct burial installation as required by city requirements & engineering specs
ADDITIONAL FOOTER DETAILS AND POLE SIZE TO FOLLOW

CAPS: (2) Two 3” Synthetic limestone cap for top of base 
Provided and installed by others following cabinet install;
All Electrical to be done by others - to be connected and tested
Installer to connect primary if accessible at time of install

JOB NOTES: GC responsible to layout the sign location based on setback information
provided by  in advance of Sign Spot. Thornton’sStratus
determines final placement. Sign Spot schedule TBD. Installer to be on site
and set up a minimum of (30) thirty minutes prior to scheduled spot. Spot
with 4’ x 8’ plywood piece.

Installer to pour the footer and set the pole immediately following sign spot,
within reason.

GC and EC responsible to stub conduit and provide electrical to pricer \
Ensure next to the pole and tall enough to go into the sign following the setting
of the footer and pole

Frame and plywood overlay to be installed by installer within a few days
of pole setting

FOUNDATION & POLE SIZES SUBJECT TO CHANGE
ACCORDING TO ENGINEERING SPECS & CITY REQUIREMENTS!!

POLE SIZE 
TO BE VERIFIED

6’-6”
Cabinet

7’-8” Cabinet

10’-9” BASE

1’-6”

6”
16”

NUMERALS

*NOTE: UNLEADED MUST 
BE STREET SIDE ON BOTH
SIDES OF SIGN; 
PRICERS BACK TO BACK

2’-6”
Cabinet & Base

2’-2”

3” x 11’-1” x 2’-10”
synthetic limestone cap1'-3”

8’-0”
OAH

SIDE B

SIDE A

Scale: 3/4”=1’-0”

49.8 Square Feet

D/F ILLUM. MONUMENT

D/F LED ILLUM CABINET | PAN POLY FACES | SLEEVED

Steel pole saddle welded to cabinet

Alum.
sides

power 
supply

Aluminum
retainers

Polycarbonate faces
LED’s

Listed
service

disconnect
switch Steel support

pole

.040 Alum.
wireway
cover

COLOR PALETTE

Black

UNLEADED 15: 
3M 3630-97 Bristol Blue 

UNL 15 & UNL: 
3M 3630-33 Red

Gripflex 585 Flame Red

DIESEL: 
3M 3630-76 Holly Green 

1’-6”

6”

6”

16”
NUMERALS

16”
NUMERALS

ALL PAINT FINISHES TO BE HIGH GLOSS
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED!



 
55-2-3 

 

 
2. Exempt Signs as per Section 55.10, herein. 

 
B. Conditional Signs: The following signs are subject to the approval of the Board of 

Trustees upon review by the Plan Commission. Unless specifically stated otherwise, a 
sign permit is required prior to erection of a Conditional Sign in a Transitional District.   

 
1. Subdivision Entryway Sign(s): A maximum of one sign per entryway may be 

allowed provided each sign shall not exceed 50 square feet in area and four feet 
in height.  The text of all subdivision entryway signs shall include the words “Burr 
Ridge” as for example, “Oak Subdivision of Burr Ridge”.  The lettering for “Burr 
Ridge” may be in smaller font but must be legible.  (amended by A-923-08-02) 

 
2. Ground Sign(s): One sign may be allowed for each multi-family residential or non-

residential lot or parcel provided it does not exceed 16 square feet in area, is 
located 10 feet from all lot lines and does not exceed 8 feet in height. 

 
3.  Wall Sign(s): One sign may be allowed for each multi-family residential or non-

residential lot or parcel provided it does not exceed 16 square feet in area 
 
Sec. 55.06.  Business District Signs 
 

This section shall apply to all districts designated by the Zoning Ordinance as a Business District.  
Business Districts include the B-1 and B-2 Districts. 
 
A. Permitted Signs: The following signs are permitted in all business districts.  Unless 

specifically stated otherwise, permitted signs require issuance of a sign permit prior to 
construction. 

 
1. Ground Sign: One ground sign shall be permitted for each lot or parcel provided 

the lot or parcel has at least 100 feet of frontage on a public street, that the height 
of such sign does not exceed 8 feet, that the sign is located a minimum of 10 feet 
from all property lines, and that the combined area of all ground signs and wall 
signs shall not exceed 100 square feet. 

 
2. Wall Sign: One wall sign per street frontage shall be permitted for each lot or 

parcel provided that the combined area of all wall signs and ground signs shall 
not exceed 100 square feet. Permitted wall signs shall be mounted no higher 
than the height of the building wall or twenty feet (20') whichever is lower, and no 
lower than five feet (5') above average surrounding grade. 

 
3. Where the building frontage is on more than one street, the area of the signs 

facing each street shall be computed on the basis of the building frontage for the 
street they face, as provided above, but in no case shall the total sign area 
exceed the maximum provided above. 

 
4. Gasoline pricing signs shall be permitted for gasoline sales stations subject to the 

following regulations: 
 

a. Gasoline pricing signs shall not be independently free-standing, but 
must be permanently attached below a pre-existing free-standing sign, 
to a gasoline pump island canopy support or, to a building; 

 
b.  A maximum of four (4) sign faces, with a total area not to exceed forty 

(40) square feet, shall be permitted, provided that no single sign face 
shall exceed twenty (20) square feet in area; 

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
55-2-4 

 

 
c. Such signs shall in no case exceed a height, to the top of the sign, of 

eight feet (8') above ground level. 
 

5. Window signs shall be permitted subject to the standards listed below.  Window 
signs do not require a sign permit. 

 
a. The sum total of all window signs shall not exceed 40 percent of the 

total area of the windows in which they are located. 
 

b. Window signs shall not have any moving parts. 
 

c. A series of windows that are separated by frames and supporting 
material of less than six inches in width shall be considered as a single 
window for the purpose of computation. 

 
d. Window signs may include the use of neon lighting.  Neon window 

signs shall not exceed 16 square feet or 30 percent of the area of a 
window whichever is less and shall be counted toward the total area 
permitted for window signs.  Calculation of the area of neon window 
signs, for purposes of compliance with the maximum 40 percent area 
as permitted herein, shall be based on the perimeter dimensions of 
said neon lighting.  

 
6. Temporary Signs as per Section 55.09, herein. 

 
7. Exempt Signs as per Section 55.10, herein. 

 
B. Conditional Signs: The following signs are subject to the approval of the Board of 

Trustees upon review by the Plan Commission. Unless specifically stated otherwise, 
conditional signs require issuance of a sign permit prior to construction. 

 
1. Shopping Center Wall Signs: One sign per tenant space within a shopping center 

may be allowed subject to the following: 
 

a. A comprehensive package of standards for wall signs shall be provided 
that includes consistent materials, colors, lighting, and placement for all 
wall signs within a shopping center.  Upon approval of the 
comprehensive sign package, all subsequent signs that comply with 
the approved standards shall be considered permitted signs. 

 
b. Each wall sign shall not exceed one square foot for each lineal foot of 

the storefront or tenant space width with a minimum area allowed of 25 
square feet and a maximum area allowed of 50 square feet with the 
exception that allowable sign area for one to three designated anchor 
tenants may be increased by transferring sign area to the anchor 
tenant(s) from other tenants.  

  
2. Shopping Center Ground Sign: One shopping center ground sign may be allowed 

subject to the following: 
 

a. Shopping center ground signs shall be consistent in design, materials, 
and colors with the wall signs. 

 



 
55-2-5 

 

b. Shopping center ground signs shall be a maximum area of 100 
square feet in area (to be calculated independent of the size of wall 
signs). 

 
c. Shopping center ground signs shall not exceed a maximum height of 

8 feet except as allowed by paragraph e below. 
 

d. Shopping center ground signs shall be setback a minimum of 10 feet 
from all property lines except as required by paragraph e below; 

 
e. The height of shopping center ground signs may be increased up to 

12 feet provided that the sign is setback an additional 3 feet for each 
1 foot increase in height.  For example, a 9 foot high sign would 
require a 13 foot setback from all property lines, a 10 foot high sign 
would require a 16 foot setback. 

 
3. Light Pole Banners: Banners affixed to light poles and announcing a federal, 

state or local holiday, a business anniversary, or a similar event but not 
advertising any specific products or services offered, may be allowed for a limited 
time not to exceed 90 days in any one calendar year.  Light pole banners do not 
require issuance of a sign permit. 

 
4. Subdivision Entryway Sign(s): A maximum of one sign per entryway may be 

allowed provided each sign shall not exceed 50 square feet in area and four feet 
in height.  The text of all subdivision entryway signs shall include the words “Burr 
Ridge” as for example, “Oak Subdivision of Burr Ridge”.  The lettering for “Burr 
Ridge” may be in smaller font but must be legible.  A subdivision entryway sign 
shall not be allowed in conjunction with a shopping center sign. (A-923-08-02) 

 
1. Signs with more than Three Colors: Signs otherwise prohibited by Section  

55.11.Q herein may be allowed. 
 

6. Wall Signs mounted more than 20 feet above grade: Wall signs that do not 
exceed the height of the building wall but mounted more than 20 feet above the 
surrounding grade and meeting all other standards herein, may be allowed. 
(Amended by Ordinance A-923-01-06) 

 
Sec. 55.07.  Manufacturing District Signs (Amended by Ordinance A-923-02-19) 
 

This section shall apply to all districts designated by the Zoning Ordinance as Manufacturing Districts.  
Manufacturing Districts include the RA, LI, and GI Districts. 

A. Permitted Signs:  Unless specifically stated otherwise, a sign permit is required for all 
Permitted Signs in Manufacturing Districts. The following signs shall be permitted in all 
Manufacturing Districts: 

 
1. For buildings of less than 100,000 square feet, each tenant is permitted one wall 

sign, up to three wall signs, subject to the following conditions: 
 

a. The gross square footage of each wall sign shall not exceed the linear 
street frontage of the subject property divided by three. The permitted 
gross surface area of each wall sign shall be a minimum of 50 square 
feet but shall not exceed 75 square feet. 

 



Section XI 
Off-Street Parking and Off-Street Loading   

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
3 XI 

8. In Yards 
 

a. Off-street parking spaces, open to the sky, may be located in required 
interior side yards and rear yards subject to compliance with the landscaping 
and setback requirements contained in Section XI.C.11, herein. 

 
b. In Business Districts, parking in the front and corner side yards shall be 

allowed in accordance with the specific parking regulations set forth in the 
Business District regulations.   

 
c. In no event shall parking be permitted in the Manufacturing, Office, and 

Transitional Districts anywhere in front of the building, whether in the front 
yard, the interior side yard, side yard adjoining the street or any buildable 
area in front of the building, nor anywhere in the side yard adjoining a street. 

 
9. Design and Maintenance 
 

 a. Open and Enclosed Parking Spaces   
 

(1) Accessory off-street parking spaces located on the same lot as 
occupied by the use served may be open to the sky or enclosed in a 
building or structure. 

 
(2) Accessory off-street parking spaces that may be permitted in a 

location other than on the same lot occupied by the use shall be open 
to the sky except when an off-site storage garage or parking building 
or structure is approved for such required parking.   

 
(3) Required open parking spaces in residential areas must be located in 

special parking bays or in parking areas serving two (2) or more 
dwelling units.  Spaces provided merely in the street right-of-way 
shall not be counted in determining the number of parking spaces 
being provided. 

 
 b. Surfacing   

 
(1) All open off-street parking areas and driveways for all uses except 

single-family residences shall be improved with an all-weather hard 
surface pavement including, at a minimum, a two inch (2”) 
bituminous concrete surface course, with a twelve inch (12”) 
minimum thickness aggregate base course, and six inch (6”) high 
perimeter concrete curbing (Type B or Type B6:12) installed in 
accordance with Illinois Department of Transportation specifications. 

 
(2) All parking and driving areas for attached and detached single-family 

residences shall be improved with an all-weather hard surface 
(perimeter curbing shall not be required). (Amended by Ordinance 
A-834-9-01) 

    
 c. Lighting   

 
(1) Illumination of an off-street parking area shall be arranged so as not 

to reflect direct rays of light or glare into adjacent residential districts 
and streets.   

 
(2) Intensity of illumination of parking areas shall not be less or more 

than the following standards:   Except as otherwise specifically 
provided elsewhere in this Ordinance, parking lot lights must be no 
more than 20 feet high and be limited by the following factors:  an 

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C



Section XI 
  Off-Street Parking and Off-Street Loading    

 

 

 
 

 
XI 4
  

average lighting level of 1.0 foot candle with a minimum of 0.75 foot 
candle; a uniformity ratio of not greater than 4-to-1, and lighting 
distribution shall be provided by cut-off type fixtures.  All such 
parking lot lighting shall be extinguished or reduced in intensity to 
not more than an average of 0.5 foot candles no later than 30 minutes 
after the close of business.   

 
(3) Amortization: Lighting for accessory off-street parking areas 

regulated by this Section XI.C.9.c in existence on the effective date 
of this Ordinance and which is not in compliance with this Section 
XI.C.9.c, shall be regarded as non-conforming parking lot lighting.  
Such non-conforming parking lot lighting may be continued for a 
period of one (1) year from the effective date of this Ordinance if 
properly repaired  and maintained as provided herein and as provided 
by other ordinances of the Village of Burr Ridge. 

 
 At the end of this one (1) year period, all such non-conforming 

parking lot lighting shall thereafter comply with the requirements of 
Section XI.C.9.c. 

 
 

 d. Repair and Service   
 

   No motor vehicle repair work of any kind shall be permitted in off-
street parking areas.  No gasoline or motor oil shall be sold in conjunction with any 
accessory parking facilities. 

 
10.  Location 
 

After the effective date of this Ordinance, required accessory off-street parking 
spaces shall be located on the same lot as the principal building or use served, except 
upon approval of a special use as per Section XIII.K, herein,  authorizing all or a part 
of the required off-street parking spaces to be located on a lot that does not contain 
the building or use served. 
 
Unless such permitted off-site parking spaces are shared with and located on the 
same property as another use, they shall be located in a district where parking lots or 
storage garages are allowable principal uses.  However, off-site parking areas shall 
comply with the regulations of Section XI.C.2 of this Ordinance for required 
accessory parking spaces not located on the same lot as the building or use served. 

 
11.  Landscaping 
 

All portions of a lot not parked or built upon or used for an accessory use shall be 
maintained in landscaping.  In addition to and exclusive of driveways and aisles, 
open areas shall be provided within and around the perimeter of parking and loading 
areas to accommodate trees, shrubs and other landscape materials.  The dimensions 
of required landscape areas shall be measured from the back of curb of the parking 
area.  Required landscape areas shall be provided as required herein. 

 
a. Perimeter Landscape Areas   

 
(1) Residential Uses - A landscape area at least 8 feet wide shall be 

provided along each side of the parking area of a lot used for 
multiple-family residences.  

 
(2) Non-residential uses: Parking lot setbacks and landscape areas shall 

be provided along each side of a parking area in compliance with the 
following: 

 



From: M E
To: Janine Farrell
Subject: New Gas Station
Date: Thursday, May 5, 2022 2:16:49 PM

I say No to the new Gas Station At 91st and Rt. 83   there is a gas station just across the street. 
Why  do you need another one right there??  also they will be selling liquor and
smoking paraphernalia.  that will bring in more riff raff into the area.   I say No.. other
neighbors That I talked to feel the same way..  
Thank you and enjoy your day..

mailto:tailrotorski@gmail.com
mailto:jfarrell@burr-ridge.gov
jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT D



From: Pam Vicks
To: Janine Farrell
Subject: Property on RT 83
Date: Tuesday, May 3, 2022 12:28:10 AM

As a property owner in Oak Hills, I strongly urge you and others on the board, to reject the attentive plans

for a Thorton gas station in this area.   There are all ready three gas stations from Archer Ave. and I55,

which, I believe, is an area of approximately five miles.

Thank you.

Pam Vicks

16w330 94th Place

Burr Ridge,Il.

mailto:pvicks@sbcglobal.net
mailto:jfarrell@burr-ridge.gov


From: Jeffrey Kraus
To: Janine Farrell
Cc: Ray Perry; Erica Howard; mike@intrepidproperties.com; Mike Longfellow
Subject: Proposed Gas Station Burr Ridge
Date: Friday, June 17, 2022 11:45:27 AM

Janine,
The proposed gas station  south of the MCDonalds on along Highway 83 is adjacent to the existing Burr Ridge
senior housing property.
Not only is it adjacent to the Senior housing property it shares a circulation drive.
Our objection is to the 24 hour/7 days a week operational proposal.
The McDonald’s is open until 11pm.
The Walgreens across the highway is open until 10pm. The Speedway in the County not the city across the street
from the McDonald’s was built before the residential and  does not share a circulation drive with residential. I am
not aware of any
Commercial property that backs up to residential and shares a circulation drive that is allowed to be open 24/7.
Vehicles would be driving by the residential property all hours of the night.
As owner, operator and manager of the adjacent residential property located in The city of Burr Ridge  we feel is in
not appropriate to have an adjacent business opened 24/7.
We would support an operation that
Closed at 11pm like the McDonald’s.  If you have any questions regarding this email or need any other information.
I appreciate your assistance in this matter.
Sincerely,
Jeffrey D Kraus
Manager
Spectrum Retirement Communities, LLC

Sent from my iPhone
Jeffrey Kraus
Managing Director

SPECTRUM RETIREMENT COMMUNITIES, LLC
4600 S Syracuse St, 11th Floor
Denver, CO 80237
ph: 303.360.8812
jkraus@spectrumretirement.com

The information contained in this message is proprietary and/or confidential and may be privileged or protected
communication. Access to this message by anyone other than the addressee is not authorized. If you are not the
intended recipient of this message, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified to: (i) delete the message and all copies; (ii) not disclose, disseminate or use the
message in any manner; and (iii) notify the sender immediately. Thank you.

mailto:jkraus@spectrumretirement.com
mailto:jfarrell@burr-ridge.gov
mailto:rperry@spectrumretirement.com
mailto:ehoward@spectrumretirement.com
mailto:mike@intrepidproperties.com
mailto:mlongfellow@spectrumretirement.com


VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 2,2022

I. ROLL CALL

The meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 7:00 p.m. at

the Burr Ridge Police Department Training Room, 7700 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois
by Chairman Trzupek.

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:

PRESENT: 8 - Petrich, Broline, Sti-atis, Morton, Irwin, Parrella, McCollian, and Trzupek

ABSENT: 0

Trustee Guy Franzese and Community Development Director Janine Farrell were also present.

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES - APRIL 18, 2022

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Morton and SECONDED by Commissioner Stratis to
approve the minutes of the April 18, 2022 Plan Commission meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 5 - Morton, Stratis, Petrich, Broline, and Trzupek
NAYS: Om None

ABSTAIN: 3 -Irwin, Parrella, and McCollian

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0 with 3 abstentions.

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Chairman Trzupek conducted the swearing in of all those wishing to speak during the public
hearings on the agenda for the meeting.

Z-04-2022: 308-312 Burr Ridee Parkway fRovito): Special Use Amendment, Special Use,
and Findmss of Fact [CONTINUED FROM MARCH 21,20221

Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Mrs. Farrell stated that Z-04-2022 is a

request to expand a restaurant use. Are We Live. The petition was continued from the March 21,
2022 meeting. At that time, there was not an individual present able to answer questions regarding

the petition and the Commission requested outdoor dining and parking plans. Since March 21, no
new information has been received except two new email objections, and no changes have been

made to the request.

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT E



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
May 2, 2022 Regular Meeting

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to
recommend to the Village Board approval of an amendment to Ordinance #A-834-10-21 to expand

the subject use and a special use for a restaurant over 4,000 square feet with indoor and outdoor

dining, and with the sale of alcoholic beverages pursuant to section XIII.K of the Zoning Ordinance

and the County Line Square Planned Unit Development (Ordinance ^A-834-19-21) with the
following conditions:

1. The special use shall be limited to Filipo Rovito and shall be null and void should Filipo
Rovito no longer have ownership interest in the restaurant consisting of approximately
4,400 square feet commonly known as 308-312 Burr Ridge Parkway.

2. Activity in the indoor restaurant area shall cease and all patrons shall vacate the premises

no later than midnight on any given day.
3. Activity in the outdoor dining area shall cease and all pat'ons shall vacate the premises no

later than 11pm on any given day.

4. The outdoor dining area shall comply with the Burr Ridge Municipal Code and County
Line Square PUD regulations in respect to ingress, egress, and ADA compliance, as well
as liquor control and noise ordinance regulations. The outdoor dining plan and any

remaining details shall be approved by staff and the Plan Commission Chairman through
the building permit process and prior to building permit issuance.

5. Prior to building permit issuance, the petitioner shall submit a parking management plan,
subject to staff and Plan Commission Chairman approval, that includes at a minimum:

a. A commitment to provide valet parking off-site, behind the building, or at the west

end of the shopping center.
b. The reservation of four (4) parking spaces for valet parking that does not interfere

with any drive aisles or fire lanes.

c. A commitment that employees be required to park offsite or behind the shopping
center.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 8 - Stratis, Irwin, Petrich, Broline, Morton, Parrella, McCollian, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0-None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 8-0.

Z-10-2022: 9115 Kineerv Hishwav fThorntons LLC); Special Uses, PUD Amendment.
Variations, and Findines of Fact

Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Mrs. Farrell stated that Z-10-2022 is for

ten requests related to a gas station development on a vacant parcel south ofMcDonald's. Mrs.
Farrell stated that the petitioner is Ryan Swanson of Arc Design Resources, Inc., on behalf of

Thomtons LLC. Thomtons is proposing to develop the vacant site with a gas station and

convenience store, amending the Spectrum PUD. The 4,400 sq. ft. convenience store will have

packaged liquor and tobacco sales, and extended hours of operation, 5:00 a.m. to ll:00p.m., which



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes

May 2, 2022 Regular Meeting

is beyond the 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. permitted. The neighboring property to the north,
McDonalcTs, was approved for extended hours 5:00 a.m. to 1 1:00 p.m. Mrs. Farrell illustrated the

requests on the site plan. Mrs. Farrell displayed the sign proposal and explained the four variation
requests. All of the ground and walls combined exceed 100 sq. ft. of area, measuring 155 sq. ft.

There are three wall signs total, two on the convenience store itself and one on the fuel canopy.
The internal drive on the property is private and does not count as a road frontage. A gasoline

pricing sign is required to be affixed to an existing sign, but the proposed sign is itself a free-
standing sign. This sign also exceeds the maximum sign face square footage for a gasoline pricing
sign from 20 sq. ft. to 49.8 sq. ft. and 40 sq. ft. to 99.6 sq. ft. The gasoline pricing sign contains
six colors, exceeding the three colors permitted. Mrs. Parrell displayed the photometric plan and

showed the footcandle amount at the property lines. The average foot candle light level is 4.39
exceeding the 1.0 permitted and the uniformity ratio is 4.39 to 1 exceeding the 4 to 1 permitted.

Chairman Trzupek confirmed that the average foot candle light level permitted is 1.0.

Ryan Swanson of Arc Design Resources introduced himself as the project manager and Todd
Smutz as the representative ofThorntons. Thomtons currently has 212 stores with 10 new stores

proposed and 3,000 employees. Thorntons was acquired by British Petroleum last year but
permitted to keep the Thorntons banner. Mr. Smutz discussed the core values of Thomtons and

the company's charitable initiatives. Mr. Smutz stated that while the pandemic shut down many

businesses, Thomtons was permitted to be open and had policies which allowed them to adapt to

the changing environment. Mr. Smutz stated that the proposed store will be a typical convenience
store with 10 fuel stations and air service station.

Chairman Trzupek asked if the sign on the rear facade was illuminated and believed it was not
necessary for identification purposes. Chairman Trzupek believed the light may negatively impact
the residential use neighboring the property. Chairman Trzupek also asked about the wall packs
on the rear. The petitioner displayed photometry on the screen to illustrate the real light levels.
There are higher light levels under the fuel canopy due to the fueling, credit card use, and checking

under the hood of automobiles.

Chairman Trzupek stated for clarification on the traffic study. Mr. Smutz confirmed that the

original traffic study was modeled for uses which had a greater traffic impact than the proposed

gas station, including a drive-through restaurants and a retail pharmacy.

Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment.

Richard Panico, 8311 Pars Cove, stated that this site has access to major thoroughfares which could
be a target for carjackings. Mr. Panico did not see a business core value regarding safety. Mr.
Panico asked if this proposal has been shown to the Police Department and what measures the
petitioner will take for safety. Mr. Smutz stated that adequate lighting and security cameras are a

necessity for safety. The security cameras are monitored remotely. A uniformed security guard
would not be at the site since the area is safe.

Chairman Trzupek asked Mrs. Farrell to confirm if the Police Department had reviewed the

request. Mrs. Farrell stated that Chief Madden was informed of the proposal and did not express

concerns about extra police force being required for the operation.



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
May 2, 2022 Regular Meeting

Sandra Alien, a Burr Ridge resident for 44 years, expressed concern about the subdivision to the
south and if this development would be a disruption.

Alice Krampits, 7515 Drew, asked if Spectrum had comments about the proposal and why there
were no entrances or exits to Route 83. Mrs. Farrell stated that the entire development was planned
to limit direct access to Route 83 from a safety and congestion standpoint. Route 83 is under IDOT

jurisdiction and authorizes access points.

Commissioner Morton was concerned about the light levels and asked about the accuracy of the
photometry illustration to real life. Mr. Smutz stated that the photometry is an accurate

representation of how the real light levels will appear. Commissioner Morton asked for
clarification on the number of colors for the signage. Kate Berliner with Thomtons clarified the

number of colors for the gas pricing sign. There are two different reds, green, blue, black, and

white. Commissioner Morton confirmed the LED digits are included in the colors. Commissioner
Morton reviewed the gas pricing signage in the Village and had concerns about the size and number

of colors for the proposed sign in relation to others that are existing. Commissioner Morton asked

about the salt tolerance of the landscaping proposed. Mr. Swanson stated that the species are salt

tolerant. Commissioner Morton asked if this is a full-service station. Ms. Berliner stated it was not,
but there are help buttons on the pumps which can be pressed from inside the vehicle to request
assistance. Commissioner Morton asked for the petitioner to expound on the Findings of Fact

which stated that "an equivalent facility is not located in the general area of the proposed
development." Mr. Swanson stated that it was related to the amount of fuel stations, the circulation,

and the modem store. Commissioner Morton asked about electronic vehicle (EV) charging. Ms.
Berliner stated that Thorntons has an infrastructure plan for EV in the future.

Commissioner Irwin asked Ms. Berliner to explain further. Ms. Berliner stated that the

inirastructure, the electricity, will be installed but she cannot state if the charging stations

themselves will be installed at the time of development. Ms. Berliner stated that Thomtons is
working with a vendor to have stations installed at multiple locations. Commissioner Irwin stated

that the EV charging could contribute to the Findings for the necessity of the use. Commissioner
Irwin asked about the remote monitoring. Mr. Smutz confirmed that the office is located in

Louisville but the individuals monitoring the site cannot sound internal alarms. The remote office

can notify local law enforcement. Commissioner Irwin asked about the red colors and if they are

the same. Ms. Berliner stated they are the same tone, but two different vendors and therefore

counted as two colors.

Commissioner Parrella asked if the reds will look the same. Ms. Berliner confinned they will.

Commissioner Petrich asked about the original PUD and what was envisioned. Mrs. Farrell read

Condition B of the PUD which required "the future preliminary and final plans for the commercial
development on Lot 2 under this planned unit development shall be submitted to the Plan
Commission for its review and recommendations, and then to the Board of Trustees for approval."
Commissioner Petrich asked about McDonald's signage. Mrs. Farrell confirmed that McDonald's

was approved for variations related to the number of signs. Commissioner Petrich asked about the

design of the proposed convenience store in relation to McDonald s. Ms. Berliner stated that the



Plan Commission/Zomng Board Minutes

May 2, 2022 Regular Meeting

design was intended to complement the McDonald's with the stone. Ms. Berliner confirmed there

are storefront windows. Commissioner Petrich confirmed with staff that the plans had been

reviewed by the Village Engineer. Commissioner Petrich questioned how often the Route 83
entrance is used and expressed concerns about the safety of this entrance and exit. Mr. Smutz stated
that the access is existing and was approved by IDOT. Commissioner Petrich confirmed the
location of the underground fuel tanks. Commissioner Petrich was concerned about the amount of

the variations required for signage. Commissioner Petrich confirmed with the petitioner that there

was no dine-in, only carry-out.

Commissioner Broline confirmed the existing one-way exit to Route 83. Commissioner Broline

asked about the size of the sign proposed and if it was similar to Speedway's. Ms. Berliner stated

that the speed on the road and the 640 ft. slow down distance sets the standard for pricing digit
size which dictates the overall size of the sign. Commissioner Broline asked about the foot candle

amount on the east side adjacent to Spectrum. Mrs. Farrell confirmed it was 1.5 foot candles to the

property line which borders the access drive.

Commissioner McCollian asked about security cameras and the need for extra security if it is

deemed necessary. Ms. BerUner stated that if it is necessary, the stores can be changed over
quickly. Commissioner McCollian expressed concern about the volume of traffic on 91 Sbreet.

Chairman Trzupek stated that traffic was a big issue for the McDonald's proposal and is unsure
about how it is working today. Commissioner McCollian asked where the EV chargers would be

located under the canopy. Ms. Berliner stated that it would be on the south side of the canopy. Mr.

Smutz stated it is two dedicated triple charge stations.

Commissioner Stratis disclosed that he and his wife own McDonald's to the north. Commissioner

Stratis clarified that Route 83 is a Strategic Arterial Roadway which is under IDOT jurisdiction
and Spectrum was only able to receive the one access to Route 83. Commissioner Stratis asked

about the fuel tanks. Mr. Smutz confirmed that they are fiberglass, double wall tanks with

monitoring and two emergency shut-off buttons. Commissioner Stratis asked about the security

and if there is the ability to lock the doors with a panic button. Ms. Berliner stated that there is not
that option currently. Commissioner Stratis asked about ownership. Mr. Smutz confirmed that

Thomtons will rent and have a 50-year lease. Commissioner Stratis asked about liquor sales.
Phillip Bolove with Thorntons stated it will have beer, wine, and hard spirits. Commissioner Stratis

asked how much of the interior is dedicated to liquor sales. Ms. Berliner stated that the hard liquor
will fit in an 8 ft. cabinet. Commissioner Stratis asked if the lights will be dimmed when closed.
Mr. Smutz stated that only four stores are not 24-hour operation so they intend to keep them on
for security reasons even when closed. Commissioner Stratis confirmed with the petitioner that the

light bulbs will not be exposed in the canopy. Commissioner Stratis confirmed with the petitioner
that background or existing lighting is factored into the photometric plan. Commissioner Stratis
noted that there was an intent to have matching lighting throughout the development but Spectrum
and McDonald's do not match. The petitioner's proposed lighting will not match McDonald's.

Commissioner Stratis complemented the high cleanliness standard for Thomtons and requested
that outdoor sales be limited to the spot designated on the plan and not anywhere else on the site.

Commissioner Stratis spoke with Evan Walter, Village Administrator, about the traffic on 91st

Street shortly after McDonald's opened. Mr. Walter stated that traffic has not been a significant

issue. Commissioner Sb'atis asked ifThomtons was going to request to be on the multi-tenant sign.

7



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
May 2, 2022 Regular Meeting

Ms. Beriiner stated that they would like to, but they were not sure if that would count towards their

signage calculations. There was discussion about the sign being off-site in a common area in the

PUD and potentially calculated separately.

Chairman Trzupek stated that the sign package is reasonable given the use. Chairman Trzupek
asked about the red illuminated band on the fuel canopy. Mrs. Farrell confirmed that it was not

included in the signage calculation. Ms. Berliner confirmed that the signage calculations were for

the logos only, not the red backgrounds.

Commissioner Parrella asked about the alarm system and who is notified. Ms. Berlmer stated that
it notifies local police and fire and the corporate office.

Commissioner Morton asked about the proposed fuel tanker truck circulation. Mr. Smutz stated
that the trucks would enter the site and head east since the fueling is on the driver side. Mr. Smutz

confirmed an auto-tum plan was generated to ensure access.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Invin and SECONDED by Commissioner Morton to
close the public hearing for Z-l0-2022.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 8 - Irwin, Morton, Stratis, Broline, Petrich, Parrella, McCollian, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0-None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 8-0.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to
recommend to the Village Board approval of amending the Spectrum PUD Ordinance #A-834-24-

15; special uses for an automobile gasoline sale station, with a convenience food store, with

packaged liquor and tobacco sales, and with hours of operation exceeding 7:00 a.m. to 10:00p.m.

pursuant to section VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance; special use for an outside sales display
accessory to a special use pursuant to sections VIII.A and VIII.C of the Zoning Ordinance;

variations from sections 55.06.A.1, 55.06.A.2, 55.06.A.4.a, and 55.06.A.4.b ofthe Sign Ordinance
to permit ground and walls signs in excess of 100 sq. ft. of area measuring 155 sq. ft., to permit

more than one wall sign per street frontage for a total of three, to permit a free-standing gasoline

pricing sign, and to exceed the maximum sign face square footage for a gasoline pricing sign from
20 sq. ft. to 49.8 sq. ft. and 40 sq. ft. to 99.6 sq. ft.; conditional sign approval for a sign with six

colors, exceeding the three colors permitted pursuant to Sign Ordinance section 55.06.B; and
variations from Zoning Ordinance section XI.C.9.C.2 to pemiit an average foot candle light level

of 4.39 exceeding the 1.0 permitted and a uniformity ratio of 4.39 to 1 exceeding the 4 to 1
permitted subject to four conditions:

1. Final plans shall substantially comply with the submitted business plan, site plan, landscape

plan, building elevations, photometric plan, and sign plans attached hereto as Exhibit A.



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
May 2, 2022 Regular Meeting

2. The special uses shall be limited to Thomtons LLC or a designated franchisee in a manner

consistent with the submitted business plan and shall expire if Thomtons LLC or a
designated franchisee no longer operates the business at 9115 Kingery Highway.

3. The hours of operation shall be limited to 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.

4. The outdoor sales area shall be restricted to the area shown on the plan.

5. The Thomtons sign on the rear (east) elevation shall be eliminated.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 8 - Irwin, Petrich, Morton, Stratis, Broline, Parrella, McCollian, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0-None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 8-0.

Mr. Bolove asked if the hours were restricted to 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Chairman Trzupek
confirmed. Mr. Bolove stated that he was unaware of this restriction and that the business requires

24-hour operation. Mr. Bolove asked if there was a way to amend that. Chairman Trzupek stated

that there was not, that 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. was what was requested through the petition and
noticed. Mr. Bolove stated that he will petition the Village Board to change the hours.

Commissioner Stratis believed that this would need to be re-noticed and questioned if Spectrum

and Tad Lagestee was aware of the 24-hour request. Tad Lagestee stood in the audience and

confirmed that Spectrum has reviewed and approved the proposal.

V-02-2022: 8311 Pars Cove (Panico); Variation and Findings of Fact

Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Mrs. Farrell stated that Z-10-2022 is a

request by Richard Panico, as petitioner, for a variation to permit a detached accessory building,
specifically a garage, within the side buildable area pursuant to Zoning Ordinance section IV.1.1 .

The property is zoned R-2B. Current Zoning Ordinance regulations permit accessory stmctu-es
within the rear yard only. The petitioner currently has an attached garage and detached garage on the
property and wishes to build a second detached garage In the side buildable area. In 2004, the petitioner

provided plans to the Village when the home was initially proposed which showed the residence
with a side yard garage attached by a masonry wall. When these plans were then submitted for

permit, they were rejected. The petitioner received a letter of apology from the Village
acknowledging that incorrect information was provided when the original plans were shown. In

2005, the petitioner abandoned the side yard garage and continued with the residence and detached
garage in the rear. In 2021, the petitioner pursued a text amendment to allow detached garages in

the side buildable area which was denied by the Plan Commission and later withdrawn. The
petitioner is now seeking to build this secondary garage in the side buildable area.

Chairman Trzupek clarified with the petitioner that the original drawing showed the proposed
structure connected to the residence with a masonry wall. Richard Panico confirmed that the wall

was to keep with the architecture of the residence and these plans were preliminary approved. Mr.
Panico stated these were the plans which were then later denied. Mr. Panico then eliminated the

proposed garage and moved forward with the residence and detached garage In the rear yard. Mr.



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 20.2022

I. ROLL CALL

The meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 7:00 p.m. at

the Burr Ridge Police Department Training Room, 7700 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois
by Vice-Chair Petrich, in the absence of Chairman Trzupek.

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:

PRESENT: 5 - Parrella, Petrich, Broline, Morton, and McColllan

ABSENT: 3 - Irwin, Stratis, and Trzupek

Trustee Guy Franzese and Community Development Director Janine Farrell were also present.

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES - JUNE 6,2022

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Morton and SECONDED by Commissioner McCollian
to approve the minutes of the June 6,2022 Plan Commission meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 5 - Morton, McColUan, Parrella, Broline, and Petrich

NAYS: 0

MOTION CARmED by a vote of 5-0.

ffl. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Vice-Chair Petrich conducted the swearing in of all those wishing to speak during the public
hearings on the agenda for the meeting.

Director Farrell notified the petitioners that only five Commissioners were present. For an

approval, four affirmative votes are required. For the variation request, one of the Commissioners
is not a member of the Zoning Board of Appeals and does not vote, so four out of four votes are

needed. After the presentation, if any of the petitioners would like to postpone their request, table,

or continue, please make that request to Vice-Chair Petrich.

A. V-03-2022: 10S675 GIenn Dr. (Rohan); Variation and Findings of Fact

Vice-Chair Petrich asked for a summary of the petition. Director Farrell stated that there are two

variation requests which include locating the detached garage in the comer side yard and have it
only 5" from the 94 St. property line. The detached garage is proposed to sit on the southern



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
June 20, 2022 Regular Meeting

AYES: 5 - Broline, McCollian, Morton, Parrella, and Petrich

NAYS: 0

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

The petitioner requested that the case be continued until July 18,2022.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner McColUan and SECONDED by Commissioner Brolme
to continue V-03-2022 to July 18,2022.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 5 - McColUan, Broline, Morton, Parrella, and Petrich

NAYS: 0

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

B. Z-10-2022: 9115 Kingery Highway (Thorntons LLC) AMENDED PETITION; Special
Uses, PUD Amendment, Variations, and Findings of Fact [REMANDED BACK FROM
MAY 23, 2022 VILLAGE BOARD MEEITING]

Vice-Chair Petrich introduced the case and asked for a summary. Director Farrell stated that

Thorntons is seeking 24-hour operation. Director Farrell stated this case was voted upon on at the

May 2" Plan Commission meeting, but the previously requested hours of operation were 5am-
11pm. Director Farrell provided information on the two existing gas stations and two proposed

gas stations along Route 83 which have 24-hour operation. For the Shell which is within Burr

Ridge, it was approved in 1986. The process was different and there was no official request for
special use of 24-hour operation at that time. A Speedway at the northeast comer of 91 and Route

83 is 24 hours and located in unincorporated DuPage County. Directly across Route 83, a gas

station, car wash, drive-through, and convenience store was recently approved through DuPage
County. There were no conditions placed on hours of operation for that site. It could potentially

be open 24 hours. The dark on Bluff Road and Route 83 is open 6:00am-10:00pm and located
in unincorporated DuPage County.

Director Farrell received an objection letter from Spectrum Senior Living from Jeffrey Kraus, the

Managing Director. This letter was received after the packets were distributed. Mr. Kraus wrote

"The proposed gas station south of the McDonalds on along Highway 83 is adjacent to the existing
Burr Ridge senior housing property. Not only is it adjacent to the Senior housing property it shares

a circulation drive. Our objection is to the 24 hour/7 days a week operational proposal. The
McDonald's is open until llpm. The Walgreens across the highway is open until 10pm. The
Speedway in the County not the city across the street from the McDonald's was built before the

residential and does not share a circulation drive with residential. I am not aware of any
Commercial property that backs up to residential and shares a circulation drive that is allowed to

be open 24/7. Vehicles would be driving by the residential property all hours of the night. As
owner, operator and manager of the adjacent residential property located in the city of Burr Ridge

we feel is in not appropriate to have an adjacent business opened 24/7. We would support an



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
June 20, 2022 Regular Meeting

operation that Closed at llpm like the McDonalcTs. If you have any questions regarding this

email or need any other mformation. I appreciate your assistance in this matter. Sincerely, Jeffrey

D Kraus Manager Spectrum Retirement Communities, LLC.

Vice-Chair Petrich asked if the petitioner was present and wished to add anything. The petitioner,

Phillip Bolduc, didn't have anything to add but would answer questions.

Kishori Dattani, 9400 Fallingwater Dr. West, asked if semis and trucks will be parking there. Ms.

Dattani stated that trucks after midnight would be a concern. The petitioner replied that there is

no truck access or parking on this property, only for delivery vehicles. It is not a semi fueling

facility, although they do offer diesel. The petitioner stated that gas tanks are typically refueled
during the day.

Vice-Chair Petrich asked if there was parking along the circulation drive. Tad Lagestee, Downers
Grove, Illinois, said the drive wasn't intended to have parking along it. The petitioner stated that

no parking signs can be posted.

Darren Goshi, Fallingwater Subdivision, stated the Speedway on Route 83 is open 24 hours, and

asked why another one is needed.

Mark Walski, 16W371 94th Place, stated there is no need for another 24-hour gas station selling

alcohol and cigarettes. Mr. Walski believes it will bring in the bad element to that area. It is busy

there at night and cars can be heard racing up Route 83.

Alice Krampis, 7515 Drew, asked if there is a compromise to extending the hours. The petitioner
stated it's consistent with the other store chains and it's standard within the industry. The

petitioner stated the Thorntons in Westmont is open 24 hours.

Bill Voit, 166 Foxborough, asked the petitioner if it's not 24 hours will he still build it. The
petitioner stated he doesn't know.

There were no other public comments.

Commissioner Morton stated the idea of 24-hour operation at that location poses some serious
challenges with residential to the east and to the south. Commissioner Morton asked if additional

landscaping or sound walls or ways to mitigate headlights flashing was considered. The petitioner
stated that they would consider building a living wall but did not support a fence.

Commissioner Parrella had the same concern about Spectrum. Commissioner Parrella requested

a revised plan with a fence or additional landscaping to mitigate head light concerns.

The petitioner stated they have 215 stores and 213 are open 24 hours. Many services count on

them, police, fire, and nurses, and that it is a 24-hour society. If the Village requests a fence or a

living wall, he is happy to comply.

Mr. Kitard, Fallingwater Dr. W, expressed concerns about headlights.



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes

June 20, 2022 Regular Meeting

Commissioner McCollian asked the petitioner about different closing times during the week as
opposed to weekends. The petitioner stated that was not an option.

Commissioner Broline asked about traffic impacts at various hours of operation. The petitioner

stated a lower percentage of traffic between 2am - 5am but doesn't know what those numbers

are.

Tad Lagestee stated the site was originally planned for two restaurants with drive-throughs. The

actual traffic will be far less than what is permitted and what was envisioned.

Commissioner Brolme discussed the proximity of the McDonald's and the Thorntons to

Spectrum.

The petitioner stated that putting signage on the building facing Spectrum was to encourage
pedestrian traffic.

Tad Lagestee stated the proposed building will block noise. Thomtons has a person in the
building at all times which is safer.

Commissioner McCollian asked if the site can accommodate .semis. The petitioner stated the

tanker trucks are semis but the facility is not designed for semis. Commissioner McCollian stated
that the only other point ofegress is near the McDonaid's egress so there are already cars shining

lights.

Vice-Chair Petrich can see why residents would have a problem with 24-hour operation and
doesn't know if there is a need for 24 hours. Also, McDonald's might come back and ask for 24-

hour operation.

Mark Thoma, 7515 Drew, stated the south entrance has a left turn lane and asked if there a median.

Director Farrell confirmed a right in/right out only with no median to cross Route 83 . Mr. Thoma

commented on the noise such as motorcycles, loud stereos, and pumps with television screens.

There was no further public comment.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner McCollian and SECONDED by Commissioner Broline
to close the public hearing.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 5 - McCollian, Broline, Morton, Parrella, and Petrich

NAYS: 0

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.



jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT F





 

Z-11-2022: Request to consider text amendments to Section XIV.B 
of the Zoning Ordinance to create a definition for an attached 

garage. 

 
Prepared for: Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 

Petitioner: Village of Burr Ridge  
 

Prepared by: Janine Farrell, Community Development Director  
 

Date of Hearing: May 16, June 20 (continued), July 18, and August 1, 2022 
 

 
On April 11, 2022, the Board of Trustees directed the Plan Commission to hold a public hearing 
on potential Zoning Ordinance text amendments to define an “attached garage.” Under current 
Zoning Ordinance regulations, there is no definition for an attached garage. Village policy and 
practice has been to define an attached garage as one which shares a common interior wall or one 
that is connected by a roof structure. The 2012 International Residential Code and Village of Burr 
Ridge Building Code do not define attached garages.  
 
The Zoning Ordinance does contain definitions for an attached dwelling, a completely enclosed 
building, party wall, carport, and private garage all of which can help form a definition for an 
attached garage.   

• DWELLING, ATTACHED: A dwelling joined to two other dwellings by party walls, or 
vertical cavity walls, and above-ground physically unifying horizontal structural elements. 

• BUILDING, COMPLETELY ENCLOSED: A building separated on all sides from the 
adjoining open spaces by a permanent roof and by exterior walls, pierced only by windows 
and normal entrance and exit doors; or, when adjoining another building or buildings on 
one or two sides, a roof and such exterior wall adjoining open space and party wall 
adjoining the other building. 

• PARTY WALL: An interior wall of adjoining buildings extending from its footing below 
grade to the underside of the roof, which divides and is in common use by such adjoining 
buildings. 

• CARPORT: A roofed automobile shelter, with at least two open sides, usually formed by 
extension of the roof from the side of a building. 

• GARAGE, PRIVATE: A detached accessory building, structure, or portion of a main 
building housing the motor vehicles of the occupants of the premises and in which no 
occupation or business for profit is conducted. 

 
Staff researched Zoning Ordinance definitions for the following nearby municipalities: La Grange, 
Western Springs, Clarendon Hills, Hinsdale, Elmhurst, Darien, Willowbrook, and Oakbrook. 
None of the municipalities surveyed contained a Zoning Ordinance definition for an “attached 
garage.” DuPage County does contain definitions for an attached accessory building, detailed on 
the next page.   



Z-08-2022:  Zoning Ordinance Amendments; Text Amendments and Findings of Fact 
Page 2 of 4 

 
• ACCESSORY BUILDING, ATTACHED: An accessory building which is connected to a 

principal building by a party wall or a linkage building and which is constructed pursuant 
to all applicable building, zoning and drainage regulations for a principal building. 

• ACCESSORY BUILDING, DETACHED: An accessory building, which is surrounded 
by open space on the same lot as a principal building and which is not connected to the 
principal building. For purposes of this Code, an accessory building which is connected 
to a principal building by a breezeway or other open-air passageway structure shall be 
considered detached.  

• LINKAGE: Any portion of an attached accessory building which connects an attached 
accessory building to a principal building and meets the following requirements:  

A. Is constructed pursuant to all applicable building, zoning and drainage regulations 
for a principal building;  

B. Is less than twenty feet (20’) in length; and C. Is less than six feet (6’) in width. 
 
After the May 16 meeting, the Commission preferred to codify the current practice of defining an 
attached garage as one connected by a roof structure. The Commission also preferred to codify 
that the space beneath the roof would count towards the attached garage area.  Some examples of 
these types of residences are detailed below.  

 

135 Glenmora Drive, zoned R-3, attached garage area 1,171 sq. ft.  
 

 
89 Cabernet Court, zoned R-2A, attached garage area 1,243 sq. ft. 



Z-08-2022:  Zoning Ordinance Amendments; Text Amendments and Findings of Fact 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 

68 Cabernet Court, zoned R-2A, attached garage area 1,669 sq. ft.  

15W351 87th Street (under construction), zoned R-3, attached garage area 1,334 sq. ft.  
 
 

For reference, the maximum attached garage areas permitted in the single-family residential 
districts are as follows:  

• R-1, R-2, and R-2A = not to exceed 1,410 sq. ft. or 35% of the floor area of the principal 
dwelling, whichever is greater.  

• R-2B, R-3, R-4 = not to exceed 1,410 sq. ft.  
• Any attached garage area that exceeds 1,000 sq. ft. is counted towards floor area ratio 

(FAR).  
 
Based upon research and Commission comments, staff drafted a definition for discussion for an 
attached garage:   

• GARAGE, ATTACHED: A garage connected to a principal building by a party wall or 
by a roof. The area underneath the roof, if fully enclosed or open on one or more sides, 
shall count towards the total attached garage square footage.  

 
Findings of Fact 
 
The findings of fact for a text amendment are limited to assessing whether the amendment is 
compatible with other standards of the Zoning Ordinance and if the amendments fulfill the purpose 
and intent of the Zoning Ordinance. Findings of Fact have been included as Exhibit A.  
 
 



Z-08-2022:  Zoning Ordinance Amendments; Text Amendments and Findings of Fact 
Page 4 of 4 

 
Attachments  

• Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials and Findings of Fact  



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING

PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS

GENERAL INFORMATION (to be completed by Petitioner)

PETITIONER (All correspondence will be directed to the Petitioner): Janine Farrell, Community Development Director

Village of Burr Ridge
STATUS OF PETITIONER; Village of Burr Ridge/municipality

PETITIONER'S ADRESS: 7660 S. County Line Road, Burr Ridge, IL 60527

ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY; N/A

PHONE: (630) 654-8181 x. 6100

EMAIL: jfarrell@burr-ridge.gov

PROPERTY OWNER: N/A

PROPERTY OWNER'S ADDRESS: N/A PHONE: N/A

PUBLIC HEARING REQUESTED: _ Special Use _ Rezoning ^ __ Text Amendment _ Variation(s)

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST:

Request to amend section XIV.B of the Zoning Ordinance to create a definition for an attached garage.

PROPERTY INFORMATION (to be completed by Village staff)

PROPERTY ACREAGE/SQ FOOTAGE: N/A _EXISTING ZONING: _._ N/A

EXISTING USE/IMPROVEMENTS: N/A

SUBDIVISION: N/A

PIN(S) #_

The above information and the attached Plat of Survey are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I understand the information
contained in this petition will be used in preparation of a legal notice for public hearing. I acknowledge that I will be held responsible
for any costs made necessary by an error in this petition.

Petitiorter's Signature Date of Filing

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



FINDINGS OF I^AC'I
FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE

VILLAGE OF BlfKR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE

Section XIILJ of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance requtt'es that the Plan Commission
determine compliance with the following fmdlngs in order to recommend a text amendment to the
Zoning Ordinance, The petitioner must respond to and confirm each of the following findings by
indicating the facts supporting such findings,

a, The amendment Is compatible with other standards and uses of the Zoning Ordinance;

There are many definitions within the Zoning Ordinance section XIV.B, but an
"attached garage" remains undefined.

b, The amendment fulfills the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance;

Defining an "attached garage" provides clarification to the public and staff as to
what is specifically considered attached. Currently an attached garage has
been defined by policy, not by a specific codified definition.

(Please transt;rib& or attach additional pages as necessary)



 

Z-13-2022/S-01-2022: Request to consider text amendments to the 
Sign Ordinance regarding sign placement in public rights of way. 

 
Prepared for: Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 

Prepared by: Janine Farrell, Community Development Director  
 

Date of Hearing: May 16, June 20 (continued), July 18, and August 1, 2022 
 

 
On June 28, 2021 the Board directed the Plan Commission to consider amendments to the Sign 
Ordinance related to the placement of signs in public rights of way within the Village. 
Amendments to the Sign Ordinance do not require a public hearing, and while the Sign Ordinance 
is technically part of the Municipal Code (Chapter 55), amendments to the Sign Ordinance have 
always been initially considered by the Plan Commission.  
 
Section 55.09.E of the Sign Ordinance lists “Right-of-Way” signs as Temporary Signs; they do 
not require permission to be placed so long as they comply with the following conditions: 
 

1. Signs must be a maximum of 3 feet in height and 4 feet per face. 
2. Signs may be placed on Saturdays and Sundays only between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 

6:00 p.m. 
3. That the written consent of the homeowner be obtained prior to installing signs in the 

public right-of-way adjoining the front, side or rear of any residential property. 
4. Signs must be free standing, not attached to any utility pole or structure nor any traffic 

control sign and placed at least 3 feet from the curb or edge of pavement. 
5. No sign shall be placed within any portion of a twenty-five (25) foot sight triangle at the 

intersection of two streets. The sight triangle is determined by extending the curb or edge 
of pavement lines to a point of intersection; then measuring back along these extended 
curb or edge of pavement lines for a distance of twenty-five (25) feet to two points. A line 
drawn connecting the above determined points completes a triangle. 

6. That only one sign be permitted within 150 feet of an intersection which relates to the 
same topic and that the next closest sign be no closer than 150 feet. Additionally, there 
shall be only one sign of the same topic placed in front of a single lot. 

7. No attention or attracting devices such as pennants, streamers, balloons, inflatable shapes, 
banners, flashing lights or other illumination shall be attached to a sign or placed in the 
public right-of-way. 

8. Each sign must have attached an adhesive label or other means to identify the name, 
address and telephone number of the person responsible for the placement and removal of 
each sign. 

9. That signs which are removed will be kept by the Village for a period of no more than 
three (3) weeks. In order to retrieve the signs, the fine must be paid within the three-week 
period of time, otherwise they will be discarded. 



Z-13-2022/S-01-2022:  Sign Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Right-of-Way 
Signs 
Page 2 of 3 

 
10. Any noncomplying sign shall be removed. 

 
“Right-of-Way” is defined in Section 12 of the Municipal Code as follows: 
 
“Any street, alley, other land or waterway, dedicated or commonly used for roadway or utility 
purposes, including utility easements in which the Village has the right and authority to authorize, 
regulate, or permit the location of facilities other than those of the Village. "Right-of-way" shall 
not include any real or personal Village property that is not specifically described above and shall 
not include Village buildings, fixtures, and other structures or improvements, regardless of 
whether they are situated in the right-of-way.” 
 
A “Temporary Sign” is defined in Section 55.02 of the Sign Ordinance as “Any sign constructed 
in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days, or 
as otherwise defined and permitted in Sec. 55.09 hereof.” 
 
Staff has encountered several limitations to this approach to regulating the proliferation of signs 
in rights-of-way, including: 
 

1. The location of rights-of-way is not readily apparent to the average person or to Code 
Enforcement staff in the field.  

2. The Village is not made aware of the homeowner’s “written consent” as stipulated in #3 of 
section 55.09.E. Keeping records of this written consent could also become burdensome to 
Village staff.     

3. There exists a complicated procedure within Section 55 for enforcing fines against non-
complying right-of-way signs, one which was established prior to the Village’s 
administrative adjudication program in 2021, as follows: 

a. That a fine in the amount of $50.00 will be charged to the person whose name is on 
the sign, if the sign is in violation of any of the above restrictions. If no names are 
found on the sign, the party or entity identified on the sign will be assessed the fine. 
Notice of each violation shall be in writing. Any person, firm or corporation 
charged with said violation may be issued a citation or “P” ticket. Violators issued 
such notices may request a hearing in the Circuit Court of DuPage County within 
10 days of the date of the original violation or may settle and compromise the claim 
by paying to the Village the respective amounts set forth in the following schedule 
and within the times set forth in the following schedule: (Amended by A-923-07-
02)  

i. Payment of $50.00 for each violation within 10 days of the date of the 
original violation.  

ii. A FINAL NOTICE, which stipulates the date on which collection of the 
$50.00 penalty shall be turned over to a collection agency approved by the 
Village for collection will be issued after 10 days.  

iii. In the event that said payment is made after the FINAL NOTICE and prior 
to the collection agency taking any action to collect the penalty, $100.00 
shall be accepted as settlement.  

iv. If the person accused of the violation does not settle the claim or request a 
hearing in the Circuit Court of DuPage County, he/she must request of the 
Chief of Police within 10 days of the date of the notice of violation that an 
administrative hearing be held. Upon receipt of a hearing request, the Chief 



Z-13-2022/S-01-2022:  Sign Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Right-of-Way 
Signs 
Page 3 of 3 

 
of Police of the Village, or the designee of the Chief of Police, shall conduct 
the hearing. The person requesting a hearing shall be notified of the time, 
date and place of the administrative hearing. After the person accused of a 
violation has had an opportunity to present his or her testimony, the Chief 
of Police or the designee of the Chief of Police shall advise the person of 
his/her findings. If the Chief of Police or the designee of the Chief of Police 
determines that the violation notice was valid and that an ordinance 
violation occurred, the $50.00 penalty shall be due and payable within 10 
days. If the offender fails to pay the fine, the claim may be turned over to a 
collection agency as set forth in paragraphs 2 and 3 above.  

v. In the event that actions taken by the collection agency fail to result in 
payment of the penalty due, a FINAL NOTICE, which stipulates the date 
on which filing of a complaint with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of DuPage 
County will be commenced, will be issued. Payment of any fine and costs 
shall be in such amounts as may be determined and established by the Court. 

 
Besides using an out-of-date enforcement method, assumption of responsibilities for sign 
placement is often challenging to establish, as an owner of a sign is sometimes not readily apparent, 
therefore making it difficult to establish who specifically to begin enforcement proceedings 
against.  
 
This petition was first heard on May 16, 2022. While some Commissioners supported the text 
amendment to eliminate right-of-way signs, others wanted to allow certain right-of-way signs on 
a restricted basis. While signs cannot be regulated based upon content or message, certain types of 
signs which advertise a limited time event were supported. At this time, staff does not recommend 
implementing a permit process for temporary right-of-way signs due to the time involved in the 
processing, monitoring, and enforcement aspects. Based upon the recommendations from May 16, 
staff included draft language in Exhibit B to amend the Sign Ordinance and right-of-way sign 
regulations. The draft language removes the terminology “right-of-way,” thereby allowing 
temporary signs within a certain distance of the roadway on private property. The complex 
enforcement procedures, limitation on days of the week for posting, and other regulations have 
also been eliminated.  
 
Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
 
The findings of fact for a text amendment are limited to assessing whether the amendment is 
compatible with other standards of the Zoning Ordinance and if it fulfills the purpose and intent 
of the Zoning Ordinance, or in this case, the Sign Ordinance. Findings of Fact has been included 
as an attachment.  
 
Appendix 
 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 
Exhibit B – Draft Language, Sign Ordinance Section 55.09.E 





VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING

PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS

GENERAL INFORMATION (to be completed by Petitioner)

PETITIONER (All correspondence will be directed to the Petitioner): Janine Farrell, Community Development Director

Village of Burr Ridge
STATUS OF PETITIONER: Village of Burr Ridge/municipality

PETITIONER'S ADRESS: 7660 S. County Line Road, Burr Ridge, IL 60527

ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: N/A

PHONE: (630) 654-8181 x. 6100

EMAIL: jfarrell@burr-ridge.gov

PROPERTY OWNER: N/A

PROPERTY OWNER'S ADDRESS: N/A

PUBLIC HEARING REQUESTED:

PHONE: N/A

Special Use Rezoning ^ Text Amendment Variafion(s)

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST:

Request to modify section 55.09.E of the Sign Ordinance to clarify regulations pertaining to right-of-way signs.

PROPERTY INFORMATION (to be completed by Village staff)

PROPERTY ACREAGE/SQ FOOTAGE: N/A _ EXISTING ZONING: N/A

EXISTING USE/IMPROVEMENTS: N/A

SUBDIVISION: N/A

PIN(S) # N/A

The above information and the attached Plat of Survey are tme and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I understand the mfonnadon
contained in this petition will be used in preparation of a legal notice for public hearing. I acknowledge that I will be held responsible

for any costs made necessary by an error in this petition.

Date of Filing

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



FfNPINGS OF FACT
FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE

VILLAGli; OF lUfRR RtU<;E ZONING ORDINANCE

Section XIII J of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance requires that the Plan Commission
determine compliance with the following fmdings in order to recommend a text amendment to the
Zoning Ordinance. The petitioner must respond to and confirm each of the following findings by
indicating the facts supporting such findings,

a, The amendment is compatible with other standards and uses of the Zoning Ordinance;

Section 55.09.E of the Sign Ordinance lists "Right-of-Way" signs as Temporary
Signs. Temporary signs do not require permission to be placed so long as they
comply with several conditions. The conditions are difficult to quantify or verify
and enforcement proceedings against signs violating the provisions is
complicated. Clarifying the language will provide for better enforcement of the
regulations.

b. The amendment fulfills the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance;

Section 55.09.E of the Sign Ordinance already codifies the provisions for
right-of-way signs. Simplifying and clarifying the regulations pertaining to
location, owner consent, and enforcement of fines will better serve the

community.

(Please transcribe or attach additional pages as necessary)



Article III. Temporary, Exempt and Prohibited Signs 
 
Sec. 55.09. Temporary Signs 
 

  The following signs shall be permitted anywhere within the Village and shall not require a permit. 
Temporary signs may only be erected on private property by or with the express consent of the 
property owner.  

 
A. Construction Work or Activity:  Not more than two (2) signs regarding construction work 

or activity on the property with a total combined surface area not to exceed thirty-two (32) 
square feet and a maximum height, to the top of each sign, of eight (8) feet. Not more than 
one (1) such sign, with an identical message to another, shall be permitted. The signs shall 
be confined to the site of construction, may be erected after a complete building permit 
application is submitted, and shall be removed within seven (7) days after the issuance of 
an occupancy permit. 

 
B. Property Sale, Lease, or Rental:  Signs regarding the sale, lease, or rental of property, not 

exceeding a total area of twelve (12) square feet and a maximum height, to the top of each 
sign, of five (5) feet advertising the sale, rental or lease of all, or part, of the premises on 
which the signs are displayed.  One such sign is permitted for each lot or parcel and such 
signs shall be removed within seven (7) days after the sale is closed or the lease is signed. 

 
C. Non-Commercial: Non-commercial signs, as defined herein, not exceeding sixteen (16) 

square feet in area for each sign. Not more than one (1) such sign, with an identical 
message to another, shall be permitted.  Maximum height, to the top of such signs, shall be 
five (5) feet.  These signs shall be confined within private property. Signs shall be removed 
within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of the event to which they pertain, if any, except 
as otherwise authorized or required by state and federal law. In no case may a temporary 
non-commercial sign be displayed for longer than one (1) year, except as otherwise 
authorized by state or federal law. Temporary non-commercial signs that do not meet the 
temporal requirements of this subsection shall require a permit. (Amended by Ord. A-923-
04-17) 

 
D. Development of Property:  Signs regarding property development not exceeding one 

hundred (100) square feet in area.  Maximum height to the top of such signs shall be twenty 
(20) feet.  One such sign shall be permitted for each thoroughfare or highway frontage of 
the development. Such signs may be erected upon approval of a preliminary plat of 
subdivision or upon submission of a building permit application and shall be removed within 
seven (7) days after the last lot or unit is sold. 

 
E. Right-of-WayOther Temporary Signs:  Signs not described above may be placed on 

private property or within the public right of waywithin the public right-of-way under the 
following conditions: 

 
1. Signs shall be located no closer than 10 feet from the road pavement edge or 

curb.  
   

1.2. Signs shall be a maximum of three (3) feet in height and a maximum of four (4) 
feet per face. 

 
3. Signs are prohibited from being affixed to utility poles, light poles, fences, or other 

objects.  
  

4. Signs shall be placed only for seven consecutive days prior to the event occurring 
and removed within one day following conclusion of the event.   

  
2. Signs may be placed on Saturdays and Sundays only between the hours of 9:00 

a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
55-11-1 

 

 
3. That the written consent of the homeowner be obtained prior to installing signs in 

the public right-of-way adjoining the front, side or rear of any residential property. 
 

4.5. Signs must be free standing, not attached to any utility pole or structure nor any 
traffic control sign and placed at least 3 feet from the curb or edge of pavement. 

 
5.6. No sign shall be placed within any portion of a twenty-five (25) foot sight triangle 

at the intersection of two streets.  The sight triangle is determined by extending 
the curb or edge of pavement lines to a point of intersection; then measuring 
back along these extended curb or edge of pavement lines for a distance of 
twenty-five (25) feet to two points.  A line drawn connecting the above determined 
points completes a triangle. 

 
6. That only one sign be permitted within 150 feet of an intersection which relates to 

the same topic and that the next closest sign be no closer than 150 feet.  Additionally, there shall be 
only one sign of the same topic placed in front of a single lot. 

7.  
7.8. No attention or attracting devices such as pennants, streamers, balloons, 

inflatable shapes, banners, flashing lights or other illumination shall be attached 
to a sign or placed in the public right-of-way. 

 
8. Each sign must have attached an adhesive label or other means to identify the 

name, address and telephone number of the person responsible for the 
placement and removal of each sign. 

 
9. That a fine in the amount of $5075.00 per sign will be charged to the person, 

company, or other party  whose name or interest is on the sign, if the sign is in 
violation of any of the above restrictions.  If no names are found on the sign, the 
party or entity identified on the sign will be assessed the fine.  Notice of each 
violation shall be in writing.  Any person, firm or corporation charged with said 
violation may be issued a citation or “P” ticket.  Violators issued such notices may 
request a hearing in the Circuit Court of DuPage County within 10 days of the 
date of the original violation or may settle and compromise the claim by paying to 
the Village the respective amounts set forth in the following schedule and within 
the times set forth in the following schedule: (Section 9 Amended by A-923-07-
02) 

  
 1. Payment of $50.00 for each violation within 10 days of the date of the 

original violation. 
  
 2. A FINAL NOTICE, which stipulates the date on which collection of the 

$50.00 penalty shall be turned over to a collection agency approved by the 
Village for collection will be issued after 10 days. 

  
 3. In the event that said payment is made after the FINAL NOTICE and 

prior to the collection agency taking any action to collect the penalty, $100.00 
shall be accepted as settlement. 

  
 4. If the person accused of the violation does not settle the claim or 

request a hearing in the Circuit Court of DuPage County, he/she must request of 
the Chief of Police within 10 days of the date of the notice of violation that an 
administrative hearing be held.  Upon receipt of a hearing request, the Chief of 
Police of the Village, or the designee of the Chief of Police, shall conduct the 
hearing.  The person requesting a hearing shall be notified of the time, dale and 
place of the administrative hearing.  After the person accused of a violation has 



 
55-11-1 

 

had an opportunity to present his or her testimony, the Chief of Police or the 
designee of the Chief of Police shall advise the person of his/her findings.  If the 
Chief of Police or the designee of the Chief of Police determines that the violation 
notice was valid and that an ordinance violation occurred, the $50.00 penalty 
shall be due and payable within 10 days.  If the offender fails to pay the fine, the 
claim may be turned over to a collection agency as set forth in paragraphs 2 and 
3 above. 

  
 5. In the event that actions taken by the collection agency fail to result in 

payment of the penalty due, a FINAL NOTICE, which stipulates the date on 
which filing of a complaint with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of DuPage County 
will be commenced, will be issued.  Payment of any fine and costs shall be in 
such amounts as may be determined and established by the Court. 

 
 

10.9. That signs which are removed will be kept by the Village for a period of no more 
than three (3) weeks.  In order to retrieve the signs, the fine must be paid within 
the three-week period of time, otherwise they will be discarded. 

 
11.10. Any noncomplying sign shall be removed.  

 





Article III. Temporary, Exempt and Prohibited Signs 
 
Sec. 55.09. Temporary Signs 
 

  The following signs shall be permitted anywhere within the Village and shall not require a permit. 
Temporary signs may only be erected on private property by or with the express consent of the 
property owner.  

 
A. Construction Work or Activity:  Not more than two (2) signs regarding construction work 

or activity on the property with a total combined surface area not to exceed thirty-two (32) 
square feet and a maximum height, to the top of each sign, of eight (8) feet. Not more than 
one (1) such sign, with an identical message to another, shall be permitted. The signs shall 
be confined to the site of construction, may be erected after a complete building permit 
application is submitted, and shall be removed within seven (7) days after the issuance of 
an occupancy permit. 

 
B. Property Sale, Lease, or Rental:  Signs regarding the sale, lease, or rental of property, not 

exceeding a total area of twelve (12) square feet and a maximum height, to the top of each 
sign, of five (5) feet advertising the sale, rental or lease of all, or part, of the premises on 
which the signs are displayed.  One such sign is permitted for each lot or parcel and such 
signs shall be removed within seven (7) days after the sale is closed or the lease is signed. 

 
C. Non-Commercial: Non-commercial signs, as defined herein, not exceeding sixteen (16) 

square feet in area for each sign. Not more than one (1) such sign, with an identical 
message to another, shall be permitted.  Maximum height, to the top of such signs, shall be 
five (5) feet.   Signs shall be removed within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of the event 
to which they pertain, if any, except as otherwise authorized or required by state and federal 
law. In no case may a temporary non-commercial sign be displayed for longer than one (1) 
year, except as otherwise authorized by state or federal law. Temporary non-commercial 
signs that do not meet the temporal requirements of this subsection shall require a permit. 
(Amended by Ord. A-923-04-17) 

 
D. Development of Property:  Signs regarding property development not exceeding one 

hundred (100) square feet in area.  Maximum height to the top of such signs shall be twenty 
(20) feet.  One such sign shall be permitted for each thoroughfare or highway frontage of 
the development. Such signs may be erected upon approval of a preliminary plat of 
subdivision or upon submission of a building permit application and shall be removed within 
seven (7) days after the last lot or unit is sold. 

 
E. Other Temporary Signs:  Signs not described above may be placed on private property or 

within the public right of way under the following conditions: 
 

1. Signs shall be located no closer than 10 feet from the road pavement edge or 
curb.  
  

2. Signs shall be a maximum of three (3) feet in height and a maximum of four (4) 
feet per face. 

 
3. Signs are prohibited from being affixed to utility poles, light poles, fences, or other 

objects.  
 

4. Signs shall be placed only for seven consecutive days prior to the event occurring 
and removed within one day following conclusion of the event.   

 
5. No sign shall be placed within any portion of a twenty-five (25) foot sight triangle 

at the intersection of two streets.  The sight triangle is determined by extending 
the curb or edge of pavement lines to a point of intersection; then measuring 
back along these extended curb or edge of pavement lines for a distance of 



 
55-11-1 

 

twenty-five (25) feet to two points.  A line drawn connecting the above determined 
points completes a triangle. 

 
6. No attention or attracting devices such as pennants, streamers, balloons, 

inflatable shapes, banners, flashing lights or other illumination shall be attached 
to a sign or placed in the public right-of-way. 

 
7. That signs which are removed will be kept by the Village for a period of no more 

than three (3) weeks.  In order to retrieve the signs, the fine must be paid within 
the three-week period of time, otherwise they will be discarded. 

 
8. Any noncomplying sign shall be removed.  

 



 

Z-12-2022: Request to consider text amendments to Section IV.K 
of the Zoning Ordinance to amend the definition for a commercial 

vehicle and regulations for commercial vehicles in residential 
districts 

 
Prepared for: Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 

Petitioner: Village of Burr Ridge  
 

Prepared by: Janine Farrell, Community Development Director  
 

Date of Hearing: June 6, July 18, and August 1, 2022 
 

 
On June 28, 2021, the Board of Trustees directed the Plan Commission to hold a public hearing 
on potential Zoning Ordinance text amendments to refine what constitutes a “commercial vehicle” 
and review the regulations pertaining to the parking of commercial vehicles in the residential areas.    
 
Under current Zoning Ordinance regulations for the residential zoning districts, commercial 
vehicles are prohibited from being parked overnight and outside. Only two commercial vehicles 
may be stored inside a fully enclosed building or structure for detached, single-family residences. 
Only one commercial vehicle may be stored inside a fully enclosed building or structure for 
duplexes, two-family, multi-family, or townhomes.       
 
Section IV.K.2.e defines a commercial vehicle as follows:  
 

i. Any vehicle exhibiting lettering or logos advertising a business related enterprise (other 
than traditional bumper stickers). 

ii. Any vehicle with attached auxiliary equipment including, but not limited to plows, 
equipment, racks, storage boxes or lockers. 

iii. Any vehicle requiring a vehicle license of Class D as regulated by the State of Illinois 
including but not limited to trucks, cargo vans, commercial limousines, and buses. 
(Amended by Ordinance A-834-19-06) 

iv. Any vehicle containing products, equipment, debris, or materials intended for commercial 
or business use whether in the open, in a cargo storage area, or covered by removable 
material or fabric. 

v. Any van that does not have seating behind the driver’s seat and the front passenger seat or 
without side windows adjacent to the rear seating area such as panel vans.  (Amended by 
Ord. A-834-03-03) 
 

While the Commission may wish to amend all five of the above definitions for commercial 
vehicles, letter ‘ii’ has posed an enforcement challenge since many pick-up trucks with Class B 
plates have storage boxes built into the beds but are used only for personal purposes. Under current 
Zoning Ordinance regulations, a pick-up truck with a storage box could not be parked overnight, 
outside of a residential property because it would be defined as a commercial vehicle.    



Z-12-2022:  Zoning Ordinance Amendments; Text Amendments and Findings of Fact 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

   
Examples of storage boxes and racks in truck beds.  

 
This petition was first heard on June 6, 2022. Below is a summary of the Commission’s comments:  

• Commissioners were not unanimous on letter ‘v’ regarding vans without seats behind the 
driver or without rear windows and if these vehicles should continue to be deemed 
commercial.  

• Commissioners were not unanimous on whether to eliminate “racks.” 
• Commissioners generally agreed to eliminate “storage boxes or lockers.”  
• There was discussion about checking vehicle registration to determine what is a 

commercial vehicle. After staff consulted with the Police Department and Village 
Administrator, this would not be recommended and poses an enforcement challenge.  

 
Based upon the comments above, staff is proposing the following amendment for Section IV.K.2.e, 
for letter ‘ii’ only: Any vehicle with attached auxiliary equipment including, but not limited to 
plows, equipment, or racks., storage boxes or lockers. 
 
Findings of Fact 
 
The findings of fact for a text amendment are limited to assessing whether the amendment is 
compatible with other standards of the Zoning Ordinance and if the amendments fulfill the purpose 
and intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Attachments  

• Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials and Findings of Fact  
• Exhibit B – Zoning Ordinance Section IV.K excerpt 



 

 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
 

PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING 
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF 

APPEALS 
 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION (to be completed by Petitioner) 
 
PETITIONER (All correspondence will be directed to the Petitioner): _____________________________________________ 
 
STATUS OF PETITIONER: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PETITIONER'S ADRESS: _________________________________________________________________________________         
 
ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
PHONE: _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                       
EMAIL: ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: ____________________________________________________________________________________                            
 
PROPERTY OWNER'S ADDRESS: ________________________________ PHONE: _________________________________ 

 
PUBLIC HEARING REQUESTED:    _____ Special Use       _____ Rezoning     _____ Text Amendment     _____ Variation(s) 
 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
  
 

 PROPERTY INFORMATION (to be completed by Village staff) 
 
PROPERTY ACREAGE/SQ FOOTAGE: ___________________________ EXISTING ZONING: ____________________________                                                     
 
EXISTING USE/IMPROVEMENTS: ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBDIVISION: _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                              
PIN(S) #_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  
The above information and the attached Plat of Survey are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I understand the information 
contained in this petition will be used in preparation of a legal notice for public hearing.  I acknowledge that I will be held responsible 
for any costs made necessary by an error in this petition. 
 
 
 
 __ 
 Petitioner’s Signature                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             Date of Filing 

 
 

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
Janine Farrell, Community Development DirectorVillage of Burr Ridge

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
Village of Burr Ridge/municipality

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
7660 S. County Line Road, Burr Ridge, IL 60527

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
(630) 654-8181 x. 6100

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
jfarrell@burr-ridge.gov

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
X

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
N/A

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
Request to amend section IV.K of the Zoning Ordinance to amend the definition for a commercial vehicle and regulations for commercial vehicles in residential districts. 

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



FINDINGS OF FAC I
FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE

VILLAGE OF IUIRR RIDGE ZONrNG ORDINANCE

Section XIIIJ of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance requires that the Plan Commission
determine compliance with the following fmdings in order to recommend a text amendment to the
Zoning Ordinance. The petitioner must respond to and confirm each of the following findings by
indicating the facts supporting such findings.

a. The amendment is compatible with other standards and uses of the Zoning Ordinance;

b. The amendment fulfills the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance;

(Please transcribe or attach additional pages as necessary)



 

 
 

 
IV 1 

 

 
BURR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
SECTION IV 

GENERAL REGULATIONS 
 

 

 
K. PARKING AND STORAGE OF TRAILERS, MOBILE HOMES, MOTOR HOMES, 

BOATS, TRUCKS, COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, AND BUSES 
 

Trailers, mobile homes, motor homes, boats, trucks, commercial vehicles, and buses may be 
parked on private property subject to the following regulations: 

 
1. Trailers, Mobile Homes, Motor Homes, and Boats 

 
For purposes of this section, trailers, mobile homes, motor homes, and boats shall be 
hereinafter collectively referred to as trailers and shall comply with the following 
regulations: 
 
a. Trailers shall not be permitted to be used as dwelling units in any district as 

principal or accessory uses on a lot. 
 
b. Trailers shall not be parked or stored in the open on any lot, except one trailer 

owned by the occupant of a dwelling on the same property may be stored or 
parked in the rear buildable area or the required rear yard of a lot containing a 
dwelling, provided that the trailer is no wider than 8.5 feet and no longer than 
35 feet, or when herein permitted in the operations of a lawfully established 
trailer sales establishment. (Amended by Ordinances A-834-4-02 and A-834-
13-11) 
 

c. Temporary parking and use of trailers shall be permitted when approved by 
the Community Development Director for the following purposes: 
 
i. Parking in the open and use of a trailer owned by the occupant of the 

dwelling for lodging purposes on a lot containing a dwelling, provided 
it is not parked or used thereon more than two days (or any portion 
thereof) in any consecutive 30-day period. 

 
ii. Parking in the open and use of a trailer for lodging purposes on a lot 

during reconstruction of the dwelling on the lot when that dwelling has 
been destroyed by fire, tornadoes, or other acts of nature or otherwise 
beyond the control of the owner; provided that such use shall only be 
allowed when such reconstruction commences within a reasonable 
period of time after destruction of the original dwelling and further 
provided such reconstruction continues without cessation on a 
reasonable construction schedule. 

 
iii. Parking and use of trailers for temporary office or storage uses 

incidental to and only for the period of time of land development 
and/or the construction of a building provided such trailers are located 
on the same or contiguous lots as the building or land development 

jfarrell
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
 
 
Section IV – General Regulations 
 
 
  

 
 

2 IV 

and are at such location as approved by the Community Development 
Director.  

 
d. One boat owned by the occupant of the dwelling may be stored or parked in 

the rear yard of a lot containing a single-family detached dwelling, provided 
no major repair, disassembly, or rebuilding operations are conducted thereon.   

 
2. Trucks, Commercial Vehicles, and Buses - Residential Districts 
 

Off-street parking facilities accessory to residential uses shall be used principally for 
the parking of passenger automobiles.  Overnight, outside parking of commercial 
vehicles, as defined herein, is prohibited but may be permitted in a fully enclosed 
building or structure upon any lot or parcel of land in a residential district in 
accordance with the following provisions: 

 
a. Commercial vehicles may be stored and/or parked overnight only in a fully 

enclosed building or structure. 
 
b. No commercial vehicle shall be permanently affixed to the ground. 

 
c. No more than a combined total of two (2) commercial vehicles may be stored 

or parked overnight in a fully enclosed building or structure upon any lot or 
parcel of land, except as hereinafter provided. 

 
d. Only one (1) commercial vehicle may be stored or parked overnight for each 

unit in a duplex, two-family, multi-family, or townhouse structure, provided 
it is in a fully enclosed building or structure. 

 
e. For purposes of this section commercial vehicles shall be defined as follows: 

 
i. Any vehicle exhibiting lettering or logos advertising a business related 

enterprise (other than traditional bumper stickers). 
 
ii. Any vehicle with attached auxiliary equipment including, but not 

limited to plows, equipment, racks, storage boxes or lockers. 
 

iii. Any vehicle requiring a vehicle license of Class D as regulated by the 
State of Illinois including but not limited to trucks, cargo vans, 
commercial limousines, and buses. (Amended by Ordinance A-834-
19-06) 

 
iv. Any vehicle containing products, equipment, debris, or materials 

intended for commercial or business use whether in the open, in a 
cargo storage area, or covered by removable material or fabric. 

 
v. Any van that does not have seating behind the driver’s seat and the 

front passenger seat or without side windows adjacent to the rear 
seating area such as panel vans.  (Amended by Ord. A-834-03-03) 

 
3. Semi-Tractors and Other Similar Vehicles – Residential Districts 

 
Off-street parking facilities accessory to residential uses shall be used for the parking 
of passenger automobiles only.  Parking of any vehicle with a registered weight of 
16,000 pounds or greater and requiring a vehicle license of Class F or greater as 



 
 
 
 Section IV 
 General Regulations 

 
IV 3  

regulated by the State of Illinois including but not limited to semi-tractors and other 
heavy vehicles is prohibited in all residence districts. (Amended by Ordinance A-834-
12-07) 

 



 
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM: Janine Farrell, AICP 
  Community Development Director 
 
DATE: August 1, 2022 
 
RE:  Board Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

At their July 25, 2022 meeting, the Board of Trustees took the following actions relative to matters 
forwarded from the Plan Commission:  

• Z-16-2022: 6860 North Frontage Rd. (Action Behavior Centers); Special Uses and 
Findings of Fact 

o The Board approved an Ordinance for the special use for a child care center and 
fence in a non-residential district.  

• Z-18-2022: 6880 North Frontage Rd. (Premier IL Burr Ridge); Special Use and 
Findings of Fact  

o The Board approved an Ordinance for the special use for a child care center.  
• Z-08-2022: Live Entertainment Text Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text 

Amendment and Findings of Fact  
o The Board approved an Ordinance for the text amendments as proposed by the 

Plan Commission.  
• Z-19-2022: 595 Village Center Dr. (Yolk); Special Use and Findings of Fact  

o The Board approved a consideration to direct staff to prepare an Ordinance for the 
outdoor dining area.   

• NOTE: Z-20-2022, the petition to re-zone 11731 87th Street from R-1 to R-3 was 
originally scheduled for this meeting, but the petitioner requested that it be on the August 
8th Board meeting agenda. V-03-2022, the petition for variation requests for a garage in 
the corner side yard at 10S675 Glenn Dr was originally scheduled for this meeting, but 
will be on the August 8th agenda due to staff needing to coordinate with the Village 
Attorney.      

 
 



01 /27/2022

Permit Number Date Applied Property Address

Permits Applied For Jun e 2022

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

JCA-22-186 06t07 t2022 16l Tower Dr Skender Construction

JCA-22-205 0612312022 306 Burr Ridge Pkwy Porras Construction

JCMSC-22- I98 0611612022 7660 S County Line Rd Birch Lane Decorating Service

JCPE-22-208 06t27/2022 l0l Shore Dr Cal's Electric

JCPM-22-t99 06120t2022 l5W 100 Plainfield Rd Energy Services

JDEK-22-t75 0610U2022 6976 Fieldstone Dr Platinurn Decking LLC

JDEK-22-183 0610612022 8521 Johnston Rd Homeowner

JDEK-22-195 0611312022 l0l Kraml Dr Drescher Landscaping, lnc

JDEK-22-202 0612112022 8963 Enclave Dr Homeowner

JDS-22-179 0610212022 I 1480 Circle Dr Bek Construction Inc

IDS-22-200 06t20t2022 5921 Madison St Koita Inc

.tF.t,v-22-212 0612812022 6l0l Countv Line Rd TK Elevator

JGEN-22-182 0610612022 l5W 645 8lst ST Generator Technologies

JGEN-22-194 0611312022 7845 Dana Wav Mark Koziol

JrD-22-214 0612812022 120 CARRIAGE WAY DR Homeowner

tPAT-22-177 0610112022 331 Surrev Ln Not Just Grass Landscaping

Maglux Construction & Restor

16l Tower Dr
Burr Ridge lL 60527

227 Fairview St
Belvidere IL 61008

6916 Clover CT
Darien IL 60561

729 CrizzDr
Wood Dale IL 60191

5 l2 W 5th Ave
Naperville IL 60563

336 S Loomis St
Naperville IL 60540

Burr Ridge lL 60527

l7W5l5 N. Frontage
Darien lL 60561

Burr Ridge lL 60527

540 S River Street
Batavia lL 60510

15W308 N Frontage Rd
Burr Ridge lL 60527

Com Alteration

Com Alteration

Commercial M iscellaneous

Com Electrical Permit

Com Mechanical Permit

Deck

Deck

Deck

Deck

Demolition Structure

Demolition Structure

Elevator

Generator

Generator

Interior Derno

Patio

JPAT-22- l8 t 0610612022 15W645 8lstST Patio

Burr Ridge lL 60527

10831 Major Ave
Chicago IL 60615

1640 Brentford Dr
Naperville IL 60563

3600 Lacey Rd, Suite 100
Downers Grove IL 605 l5

1249 Burville Rd
Crete lL 60417

2210 W Wabansia
Chicago lL 60647



01 /27/2022

Permit Number Date Applied Property Address

Permits Applied For Jun e 2022

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

tPAT-22-190

JPAT-22-207

JPAT-22-2t5

JPF-22-2t3

JRAD-22- l9l

JRAD-22-217

JRAL-22-176

JRAL-22-t 80

JRAL-22- 185

JRAL-22- r 88

JRAL-22-189

JRAL-22-192

JRAL-22- r93

tRAL-22-196

JRAL-22-197

JRAL-22-201

06110t2022 6861 Fieldstone Dr

06/2712022 7820 Dana Way

0612912022 8497 Kimberly Ct

06128t2022 7229 Hamilton Ave

06113t2022 128 W 59th ST

0613012022 l47t Garywood Dr

0610112022 ROWs DuPage Locations

0610312022 I1637 White Oak Ct

06/0712022 ROWs Ck Cty Locations

0610912022 ROWs DuPage Locations

0611012022 7845 Dana Way

06113t2022 7701 Forest Hill Rd

0610912022 7812 S Countv Line Rd

06/14/2022 I Hillcrest Ct

06/1412022 ROWs DuPage Locations

0612012022 124 Caniage Way Dr

Viper Contracting LLC

ABA Construction

Apple Landscape Design LLC

Bespoke Fence

Ancient City Contracting LLC

Raspante Dream Builders

Directional Construction Servic

Trull Concrete Company LLC

AXS Points

AT&T

Homeowner

Homeowner

Kitchen Pros Remodeling

Arce Tec, Ltd New Line Desig

INtren Trenching

Homeowner

14007 S Bell Rd
Homer Glen IL 60491

608 S President St
Wheaton IL 60187

2737WlllthSt
Chicago IL 60655

27 Windsor Dr
Oak Brook lL 60523

12744 Berkshire Dr
Mokena lL 60448

440 S Dartmoor Dr
Crystal Lake IL 60014

7941 W 98th Pt

Hickory Hills lL 60457

200 S Shaddle Dr
Mundelein IL 60060

1000 Commerce Dr.
Oak Brook lL 60523

Burr Ridge lL 60527

Burr Ridge lL 60527

64 Orland Sq Dr, Suite 3 l2
Orfand ParklL 60462

19636 97th Ave # I

Mokena lL 60448

3524 Martens St
Franklin Park IL 6013 I

Burr Ridge lL 60527

1766 Armitage Ct.
Addison IL 60101

Patio

Patio

Patio

Fence Permit

Residential Addition

Residential Addition

Right-of-Way

Righrof-Way

Righrof-Way

Right-of-Way

Residential Alteration

Right-of-Way

Residential Alteration

Residential Alteration

Right-of-Way

Residential Alteration

tRAL-22-203 0612112022 ROWs DuPage Locations pirTano Construction Co. Right-of-Way



01 /27/2022

Permit Number Date Applied Property Address

Permits Applied For Jun e 2022

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

tRAL-22-204

JRAL-22-206

tRAL-22-209

IRAL-22-210

JRAL-22-2lL

JRAL-22-216

JRDB-22-178

JRDB-22- 187

JRPE-22-t 84

TOTAL: 43

0612112022 ROWs Ck Cty Locations PirTano Construction Co.

Elia Paving

J&R I st in Asphalt, Inc.

McHandsworth Inc

Directional Construction Servic

Homeowner

SK & MB Design Inc

Homeowner

1766 Armitage Ct.
Addison IL 60101

P.O. Box 580
Hinsdale lL 60521

7659 W.98th Street
Hickory Hills IL 60457

11400 Burr Oak Lane
Burr Ridge lL 60527

440 S Dartmoor Dr
Crystal Lake IL 60014

Burr Ridge lL 60527

I l34l Scenic DR
Willow Springs IL 60480

Burr Ridge lL 60527

933 Wentworth
Calumet City IL 60409

Righrof-Way

Righrof-Way

Right-of-Way

Right-of-Way

Righrof-Way

Righrof-Way

Residential Detached Bui lding

Residential Detached Building

Res Electrical Permit

06/23t2022 1427 Tomlin Dr

06127t2022 167 Post Rd.

06128t2022 8955 Glenrnora Ln

0612812022 ROWs DuPage Locations

06130t2022 I l3 l0 W 72nd St

0610212022 l5W 35 I 87th St

0610812022 365 Kirkwood Cove

06106t2022 7153 Commonwealth Ave Atom Electric



01 /2L/2022

Permit Number Date lssued Property Address

Permits Issued June 2022

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

Value & Sq Ftg

lCA-22-186 0613012022 l6l Tower Dr Skender Construction

JCMSC-22-IO6 06/0712022 212 Burr Ridge Pkwy Ed Signs Inc

JDEK-22-153 061tst2022 159 Pheasant Hollow Dr. CEW Construction

tDEK-22-154 06115t2022 192 Pheasant Hollow DR CEW Construction

JDEK-22-160 0611712022 8550 Oak Knoll

0612812022 3 Andrew Ct

06/3012022 852 I Johnston Rd

06/2812022 I 1580 Circle Dr

06107/2022 7264 Lakeside Cir

06123/2022 6971 Fieldstone Dr

06117t2022 8484 Carlisle Ct

0612812022 331 Surrev Ln

0612912022 l5W 645 8lst ST

06109t2022 7940 S Wolf Rd

0611612022 8143 Kathrvn Ct

DM Outdoor Living Spaces

Platinum Decking LLC

Homeowner

ABT Electronics

Cable Communications, Inc

New Generation Landscape

Filkovic, Toma & Aniela

Not Just Grass Landscaping

Maglux Construction & Restor

Homeowner

Homeowner

MHD Builders

16l Tower Dr
Burr Ridge lL 60527

3339 W Columbus Ave Suite A
Chicago lL 60652

260 Saint Andrews Dr
Bolingbrook lL 60440

260 Saint Andrews Dr
Bolingbrook lL 60440

PO Box 54

Western Springs IL 60558

336 S Loomis St

Naperville IL 60540

Burr Ridge lL 60527

1200 N Milwaukee Av.
Glen View lL 60025

6200 S. Oakley Avenue

Chicago lL 60636

9825 W 56th St

Countryside lL 60525

8484 Carlisle Ct
Burr Ridge lL 60521

540 S River Street

Batavia lL 60510

I5W308 N Frontage Rd

Burr Ridge lL 60527

Burr Ridge lL 60527

Burr Ridge lL 60527

1378 McDaniels Ave
Highland Park IL 60035

Com Alteration

Commercial Miscellaneous

$5,000

Deck

$ 13,750 160

Deck

$13,750 160

Deck

$50,500 1,138

Deck

$42,000 629

Deck

$ 18,000 524

Generator

Patio

JDEK-22-164

JDEK-22- 183

JGEN-2t-4t4

IPAT-22-138

JPAT-22-150

IPAT-22-163

JPAT-22-177

JPAT-22-18t

JPF-22-130

IPF-22-156

Patio

$37,000

Patio

$5,000

Patio

$3,600

Patio

Fence Permit

$ r 0,000

Fence Permit

$6,000

Pool

$ r 1,000

JPPL-22-l4s 0612812022 6l0l Wildwood Ln



01 /27/2022

Permit Number Date Issued Property Address

Permits Issued June 2022

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

Value & Sq Ftg

IPS-22-092 06/1512022 460 Village Cenrer Dr. 4MC Corporation

tRAD-22-123 06t09t2022 l5w 218 87th St Vendramini Construction

JRAD-22- 139 06124t2022 l5W l5l 60th st Griffin Custom Homes

IRAL-22-132 0610312022 7612 Hamilton Ave Leon Seal Coating

JRAL-22-137 06t07t2022 I 14l S Woodview Rd Bradford & Kent Builders

IRAL-22-140 06/2412022 ROWs Ck Cty Locations ComEd

IRAL-22-142 0610912022 128 Circle Ridge Dr Elia Paving

JRAL-22-t48 0610912022 7350 Forest Hill Rd Paul Davis Restoration

IRAL-22-166 06/1712022 ROWs Ck Cry Locarions ComEd

JRAL-22-t67 06/2012022 24 Hidden Lake Dr Irish Castle Paving

06120/2022 8212 Windsor Cr Irish Castle Paving

06t20/2022 2 Seneca Ct lrish Castle Paving

06/17/2022 Rows DuPage Locations Directional Construction Servic

06/21/2022 ROWs Ck Ctv Locations Nicor Gas

06117/2022 Rows DuPage Locations Directional construction Servic

JRAL-22-168

tRAL-22-169

JRAL-22-t70

JRAL-22-t74

JRAL-22-176

1097 N. 400 E
Chesterton IN 46304

5025 Woodland Avenue
Western Springs IL 60558

I l7 S. Williams Street

Westmont IL 60559

807 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove IL 605 l5

I Lincoln Centre

Oak Brook Terrace IL 60181

P.O. Box 580

Hinsdale lL 60522

433 Spring Ave
Naperville IL 60540

I Lincoln Centre

Oak Brook Terrace IL 601 8l
7701 w 99TH ST

Hickory Hills IL 60457

770r w99TH ST

Hickory Hills IL 60457

7701 W 99TH ST

Hickory Hills IL 60457

440 S Dartmoor Dr
CrystalLake IL 60014

615 Eastern Ave
Bellwood lL 60104

440 S Dartmoor Dr
CrystalLake IL 60014

7941 W 98rh Pl

Hickory Hills IL 60457

Sign

$ r 0,000

Residential Addition

$30,000 t,l5l
Residential Addition

$55,800 744

Right-of-Way

5s4,979

Residential Alteration

$ 10,000 43

Righrof-Way

Right-of-Way

$7,723

Residential Alteration

$440,000 4,973

Right-of-Way

Right-of-Way

$7,450

Righrof-Way
$ 12,500

Right-of-Way

$9,600

Right-of-Way

$2,148

Righrof-Way

Right-of-Way

$r,r32
Right-of-Way

JRAL-22- t 80 06t29t2022 I1637 White Oak Ct Trull Concrete Company LLC



01 /21_/2022

Permit Number Date lssued Property Address

Permits Issued June 2022

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

Value & Sq Ftg

JRAL-22-185 0613012022 ROWs Ck Ctv Locations

JRAL-22- 188 0613012022 ROWs DuPage Locations

JRAL-22-193 0612012022 7812 S County Line Rd

IRAL-22-196 06t30t2022 I Hillcrest Ct

tRAL-22-203 0613012022 ROWs DuPage Locations

JRAL-22-204 0613012022 ROWs Ck Ctv Locations

JRDB-22- 187 0613012022 365 Kirkwood Cove

JRES-22-162 06/t712022 440 Devon Dr

IRPE-22-ts7 06117 t2022 302 Old Oak Ct.

JRPF-22-081 0611512022 8220 Ridgepointe Dr

JRSF-22-070 06127/2022 6l l0 Park Ave

JRSF-22-093 06/16/2022 7 Arcadia Ct

JRSF-22- I l3 06108t2022 460 60th Pl

AXS Points

AT&T

Kitchen Pros Remodeling

Arce Tec, Ltd New Line Desig

PirTano Construction Co.

PirTano Construction Co.

Homeowner

Atlas Restoration

Sunpower Corp

Via Meridiana Contractors

Dunree Homes Inc

McNaughton Brothers Constru

Rose Development

200 S Shaddle Dr
Mundelein lL 60060

1000 Commerce Dr.
Oak Brook lL 60523

64 Orland Sq Dr, Suite 3 l2
Orland ParklL 60462

19636 97th Ave # I

Mokena lL 60448

1766 Armitage Ct.

Addison IL 60101

1766 Armitage Ct.

Addison IL 60101

Bun Ridge lL 60527

I l44l Melrose Av
Franklin Park IL 6013 I

2380 Vantage Drive
Elgin IL 60124

8821 Robert Road

Darien lL 60561

P.O. Box 635

Manteno lL 60950

16W347 83rd St.

Burr Ridge lL 60527

7851 W Ogden Ave. #200

Lyons IL 60534

Right-of-Way

s2,7s6

RighrotWay

Residential Alteration

s32,8s5 80

Residential Alteration

$ 109,875 1,465

Right-of-Way

$ 19,032

Right-of-Way

Residential Detached Building

Residential Miscellaneous

$ 15,866

Res Electrical Permit

$46,388

Pool and Fence

$35,000

Residential New Single Family

$750,000 3,685

Residential New Single Family

$ 1,500,000 6,014

Residential New Single Family

$600,000 2,898

TOTAL: 15



Occupancy Certificates Issued June 2022
07/21/22 W,

co# Certificate of Date Occunant of Record Address

oF220t4

oF220l6

oF220t 8

06/10122

06/16/22

06t27/22

Steve and Beckv C)lson

Jonnv Cab's

Brian & Colleen Hickev

7203 Lakeside Cir
212 Burr Ridge Pkwy

8025 Bucktrail Dr



CONSTRUCTION VATUE OF BUILDING PERMITS - MONTHLY SURVEY 2022
(Does not include miscellaneous permits

)

MONTH

SINGTE FAMII.Y

RESIDENTIAL

(NEW)

ADDITIONS

ALTERATIONS

(REs)

NON.
RESIDENTIAI.

(NEW)

ADDITIONS

AI.TERATIONS

(NON-RES)
TOTAI- FOR

MONTH

IANUARY s607,9s0 S17o,8oo 5488,775 SL,26i,s2s
t1l t3l t1l

FEBRUARY s355,385 531,s01 S397,886

tsl I1l
MARCH 5600,000 5672,000 5s,9 t8,42s 57,250,425

t1l I6l t4l
APRIL s2,000,000 s109,07s s310,000 52,4t9,0i5

12) tsl 12)
MAY 5s00,000 5s3,4tj s553,417

I1l 12) I]
JUNE S2,8so,ooo s678,s30 S3,s28,s30

t3l I6l t1l
JU LY 5o

tl tl tl
AUGUST 5o

tl tl tl
SEPIEMBER 5o

I] I] tl
OCTOBER So

I] tl II
NOVEM 8ER So

0 tl 0
DECEM BER So

tl I] tl
zozzrorAL S6,ss7,9so 52,0so,207 so $G,808,701 S1s,416,8s8

{81 I27l tl Iel



45

40

30

25

20

35

15

10

5

Village of Burr Ridge New Housing Permits 2021 Compa red to 2O22

tL r I-a
Jan

0

1

I
.lu ne

3

3

Sept

0

0

Fe

3

0

Aug

0

0

July

0

0

1

1

Apr
0

2

Mar
2

1

b Oct

0

0

Nov

0

0

Oec

0

0

TOT

9

8

0

a 2027

a2022

AL



Village of Burr Ridge Building Permits lssued 2O21 Gompared to 2OZ2
400

380

360

340

320

300

280

260

240

220

200

180

160

140

t20

100

80

50

40

20

0

.2021
2022

rrl I I
May

36

34

I
Jun

60

45

Jan

t7

1"8

Feb

19

20

Mar Apr

30 32

23 38

Nov

0

0

Oct

0

0

Sep

0

0

Aug

0

0

Jul

0

0

Dec TOTAL

t94

178

0

0



0't/27/2022 L2:2I Pttt

Breakdown of Permits by project Type

Permits Issued June 2022 Page I of 1

Permits lssued June 2022

Residential Nevr Single Family
3 (7%)

Residential Miscellaneqrs
I (20,6)

Residential Detached Build
1 (2olo)

Residential Alterati on
4 (go/E)

ResidentialAddfion
2 (4o/oJ

Right-of-Way
r5 (33o/o)

Sion-_""-"i I (i%)

Com Alteration
r (2olr)

al Miscellaneous
r (2%l

Res Electrical Permit . ..-

r (206)

Pool and Fence
I (2ol,)

Deck
s (rr%)

'"r.... 
Fence Permit

Generto{'1",t)
r (2%)

Pool .,.t (P#o
s (1l%J

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
tr
I
I
Ir
T
I

:l: r' A ::':: :.,
,-iiI:=--r'L-:,=--!

- i:\

=: i.:e :e-'rr :

i= r: -l-J

ll: I

l^-

li: 3'r: =ti:e

;,:i i :,::',:3 tr:'r:

ie: le',:: i::::r

i:: ::r: a i :e':: :'

ie: ai-,: i l::ia'e311 ;',i
;,e: ::r: 3 1' !,:i 3-,*3-ri

i.r:.: t'': 3 '\:',,. ! ',; e =3'.'r 'v'

-'r r.-- _tl-1Y

: --i-,_.....-
-


	2022-08-01 Plan Agenda
	2022-07-18 Minutes
	Z-10-2022 9115 Kingery Report Packet 20220801
	Z-10-2022 Staff Report Packet
	Z-10-2022 9115 Kingery Highway Application
	Sign posted
	P2115 Burr Ridge_IL - Traffic Memo
	Traffic Memorandum
	End of Project Memo


	P2115 Burr Ridge_IL - ALTA Survey
	22691 24x36 (1)
	22691 24x36 (2)
	22691 24x36 (3)

	P2115 Burr Ridge_IL - Site Plans
	Sheets and Views
	C3.0 SITE PLAN
	C5.0 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
	C6.0 UTILITY PLAN
	L1.0 LANDSCAPE PLAN


	P2115 Burr Ridge_IL - Photometric Plan
	P2115 Burr Ridge_IL - Building Elevations - Revised 4-7-22
	4400 - Floor Plan (without rear entry)
	4400 - Front
	Fuel Canopy
	Waste Enclosure - 4400

	P2115 Burr Ridge_IL - Signage - Revised 4-7-22
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8

	Pages from Sign Ordinance
	Pages from Zoning Ordinance
	P2115 Burr Ridge_IL - Stormwater Memo - Detention.pdf
	Stormwater Memorandum - Detention
	End of Project Memo



	Burr Ridge 24-HR Request signed
	Objection_no name
	Objection_Vicks
	Z-10-2022 Staff Report V3 20220801.pdf
	/
	HEARINGS:May 2, June 20, and August 1, 2022TO:Plan CommissionGreg Trzupek, ChairmanFROM: Janine Farrell, AICP
	Community Development DirectorPETITIONER:Ryan Swanson of Arc Design on behalf of Thorntons LLCPETITIONER STATUS:Civil Engineering Consultant PROPERTY OWNER:Burr Ridge CRE LLC
	 /
	EXISTING ZONING:B-2 PUD Business DistrictLAND USE PLAN:Recommends Single-family residentialEXISTING LAND USE:Unimproved/vacantSITE AREA:± 1.8 Acres SUBDIVISION:Spectrum Burr Ridge Resubdivision


	Z-11-2022 Staff Report Packet 20220801
	Z-11-2022 Staff Report 20220718
	Z-11-2022 Application Packet

	Z-13-2022_S-01-2022 Staff Report Packet 20220801
	Z-13-2022_S-01-2022 Staff Report 20220718
	Z-13-2022 Application Packet
	Exhibit B Draft Language 1
	Article III. Temporary, Exempt and Prohibited Signs
	Sec. 55.09. Temporary Signs

	Exhibit B Draft Language Clean Copy 2
	Article III. Temporary, Exempt and Prohibited Signs
	Sec. 55.09. Temporary Signs

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Z-12-2022 Staff Report Packet 20220801
	Z-12-2022 Staff Report 20220718
	Z-12-2022 Application
	Redlined Language 2

	2022-07-25 Board Report
	2022-06 Jun Bldg Rpt

	FoFa1: Commercial vehicles in residential districts are prohibited from being parked outside overnight. While this restriction is compatible with other standards and uses of the Zoning Ordinance and is not part of the text amendment request, the definition of a commercial vehicle includes a pick-up truck with a storage box. Vehicles of that type are commonly used for personal purposes, not necessarily commercial reasons.   
	FoFa2: Amending the definition of a commercial vehicle to ensure that residents with pick-up trucks which have storage boxes can be stored outside, overnight complies with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance's overall restrictions on commercial vehicles. 


